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Financial

Highlights

REVENUE
HK$'000

2016 meeee—— 2,939,955
2017 ——— 2,982,701
2018 meeeees——— 2 937,849
2019 e——— 2,716,265

2020 m——— 1,774,549

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX
HK$'000

2016 m 63,840

2017  —— 211,198
2018 mmmm 241,448

2019 171,181

2020 1(158,829)

TOTAL ASSETS
HK$'000

2016 e 17,255,820
2017 oo 21,855,671
2018 e 20,258,229
2019 o— 19,597,081

2020 meeesesssss———— 21,385,195

OWNERS' EQUITY
HK$'000

2016 e 3,632,881

2017 e 4,804,881
2018 meeees—— 4,439,791
2019 e 4,255,072

2020 meeess—————— 4,418,679
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REVENUE BY PROPRIETARY

AND NON-PROPRIETARY BRANDS
HK$'000

2,408,640
2,221,371
° 2,130,885

® o 1,95%828

1,161,345
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® Proprietary Brands

Non-proprietary Brands

HK$1,774,549,000

HK$158,829,000
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Chairman’s
Statement



Revenues decreased by 34.7% to HK$1.77 billion in 2020,
versus HK$2.72 billion generated in 2019. Loss attributable
to the owners of the Company in 2020 was HK$169 million,
compared with profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of HK$44 million in 2019. Basic loss per share was
HK3.89 cents.

The Board resolved not to recommend a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to preserve sufficient
funds to meet the financial needs of the Group during these
challenging times.

2020 Annual Report

On 16 December 2020, the Company entered into an
agreement to the sale and purchase agreement with a
company 100% owned by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, the majority
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to agreement, the
Company has conditionally agreed to sell its equity interests
in and loans to all watch companies except Ernest Borel
Holdings Limited at the consideration of approximately
HK$1.50 billion and HK$2.03 billion respectively (the
"Disposal”). Upon completion, the Company will be
principally engaged in banking and financial businesses
and the Company would also indirectly hold approximately
64% equity interest in Ernest Borel Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1856). The Disposal was approved by independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on
25 March 2021. Subject to the completion of the Disposal,
the Board will declare the payment of special dividend of
HK$0.13 per share to the Shareholders of the Company.

We take a long-term perspective in formulating strategy
and this is reflected in our investments and divestments. We
pride ourselves on being forward-looking and innovative.
We deploy capital and people where we see opportunities
to generate returns which exceed our cost of capital. We
invest in existing and new businesses, focusing on those
where we have a competitive advantage and where our
capital and people can generate long-term value.

In the second half of 2020, the local proprietary watch brand
business in Mainland China rebounded gradually although
slowly for the following reasons: (a) COVID-19 in Mainland
China was substantially in control by the end of the first
half 2020, (b) production and distribution was gradually
recovered through opening-up of business activities, and
(c) consumer confidence was gradually re-established as a
result.

The foreign proprietary watch brand business, owing to the
adverse impact of social distancing, lock-downs and travel
restrictions on the key international markets, where the
general demand is relatively weak, suffered substantially in
2020.
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Chairman’s Statement

Bendura Bank, although its operation and performance
being affected by the COVID-19 due to lesser extent of
communication and interaction with clients, has developed
organically as shown by the stability of asset under
management and increased headcount amid challenging
market conditions. We would deploy more resources in
marketing, compliance and risk management, that are
critical to stay competitive locally and internationally and
generate long-term growth.

Details of the progress we made in 2020 for individual
companies and segments are set out in the MD&A of this
Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to Mr. Fung Tze Wa and Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher
for their outstanding contributions to the Company during
their tenure as our independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk and Mr. Li Ziging have been
appointed to the board in November 2020. Their substantial
banking and financial experience is inevitably valuable to the
banking and financial business on which the Group is going
to focus, after the completion of the disposal of most watch
businesses.

Good environmental, Social and Governance, or ESG,
practices have always been an integral part of the Group’s
business strategy and management approach. As a
good corporate citizen, we not only continue to monitor
our environmental impact but also contributes to the
communities that we operate our businesses, especially in
Mainland China. In accordance with the new requirements
of the Listing Rules, we have designated a director to
head the ESG and strengthened the relevant activities and
disclosures.

We monitor our risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and formulate and adopt appropriate risk management
measures against each principal risk and uncertainty. We are
glad to report that Bendura Bank has incorporated a new risk
policy in the second half of 2020 in order to strengthen the
risk management. In view of our increasing focus on private
banking, fund management and securities trading business,
risk management will continue to be of great importance
for the Group. Special efforts are applied to analyze the
risks related to COVID-19. Our risk management committee
has reviewed the major risks and suggested the relevant
effective ways to manage those risks.

As ever, our success is enabled by the passion and
commitment of the professionals who work for the company.
Towards that end, we are happy to see a wealth of new
talent join the family and provide training and development
to our employees during the year.



The financial year was indeed challenging due to
unprecedented and exceptional circumstances, exacerbated
by the outbreak of the COVID-19. While central banks and
governments of leading countries have been supportive
with measures such as interest rate cuts and stimulus plans
(including relief packages, wage subsidies, and one-time
direct cash payment to individuals etc.) to ease the pressure
during this difficult time, economic growth is expected to be
very slow.

Fortunately, the universe is breathing a sigh of relief with
the vaccine advancements in providing a glimmer of light at
the end of the tunnel. Vaccines from Mainland China, UK,
the US and Europe, although not 100% proven effective, are
available for injection starting from January 2021 in many
advanced countries. With production representing the key
hurdle, the allocation among the developing countries and
the costs associated with mass immunization programs,
especially for countries that have only limited fiscal resources
would be other significant hurdles. Barring from unexpected
adverse development of the virus, it is likely that economies
all over the world would gradually be re-opened in 2022, if
not the fourth quarter of 2021.

For Mainland China, the leadership implements good
decisions on monetary and fiscal stimuli which are lending
support to a recovery of the mainland economy. Besides,
Mainland China’s recently unveiled “dual-circulation
strategy” whereby the country will increasingly depend
on the domestic cycle of production, distribution, and
consumption for its long-term development rather than
relying heavily on export — will reinforce the economic
growth in the medium term. With long-term positive
economic fundamentals, Mainland China is expected to
remain one of the world’s resilient and fundamentally sound
market.
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The market conditions for watches are expected to improve
in the longer term when the COVID-19 will be reprieved.
At that time, market conditions are expected to improve
when the consumer confidence is gradually recovered and
the demand for watches in Mainland China and all over the
world is expected to be also gradually normalized.

Bendura Bank’s performance is expected to be slightly
affected by the COVID-19 impact. Given that most of
clients focus on prudent investments and Bendura Bank
adopts a prudent asset allocation policy, particularly the
lending policy, we believe the Bank would be in a secure
position even in the currently challenging financial market
situation and in the scenario of slowing, if not negative,
global economic growth. Bendura Bank is expected to
demonstrate resilience and sustainability. It is our objective
to keep investing in the growth of the banking and financial
businesses. Specifically, we intend to strengthen Bendura
Bank’s capital base to support the sustainable growth of its
credit business and to expand its geographical coverage
and product coverage in Hong Kong, the Mainland China,
East Asia and strengthen Bendura Bank's asset management
business. Besides, we intend to pursue selective strategic
investment and acquisition opportunities related to the
banking business.

We believe that the proposed disposal of all watch
businesses except Ernest & Borel represents a valuable
opportunity to capitalize on the substantial cash inflow to
strengthen the financial position of the Group by reducing
the indebtedness, and focus on the organic growth of the
banking and financial businesses, as well as the pursuit of
potential business acquisitions.
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Chairman’s Statement

We continue the new mindset and take the COVID-19 as
the most important opportunity and lesson that we should
learn and improve from. Looking ahead, we would remain
calm and apply courage and wisdom to take on the strong
headwind challenges. We have full confidence that with our
strengthened management team and razor-sharp focus on
achieving our goals, we are well along the road to recovery.

Finally, I would like to thank all our employees for their hard
work over the last financial year. Our company is a global
family where the unique contribution of every colleague
is highly valued. | would also like to thank our business
partners, our customers and our shareholders for their
loyalty and support during these challenging times.

Hon Kwok Lung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

Year ended
31 December
2020 2019 Variation
HK$'000 HK$'000 %

Total revenue 1,774,549 2,716,265
Operating expenses 1,278,860 1,595,003
Gross profit generated from non-

banking and financial businesses 769,515 1,255,622
Gross profit generated from banking

and financial businesses 357,629 456,613
EBITDA 111,176 412,823
(Loss)/profit before tax (133,653) 142,637
Net (loss)/profit after tax (158,829) 71,181
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable

to owners of the Company
- Basic HK(3.89) cents HK1.02 cents
— Diluted HK(3.89) cents HK1.02 cents

As at 31 December
2020 2019 Variation
HK$'000 HK$'000 %

Total assets 21,385,195 19,597,081 9.1
Total liabilities 16,648,968 14,936,192
Total equity 4,736,227 4,660,889 1.6
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded total revenue of
approximately HK$1,774,549,000 (31 December 2019: HK$2,716,265,000), a
decrease of HK$941,716,000 or 34.7% over 2019.

Operating expenses (including selling and distribution expenses and
administrative expenses) for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$1,278,860,000 (31 December 2019: HK$1,595,003,000), a
decrease of HK$316,143,000 or 19.8% over 2019.

Gross profit generated from non-banking and financial businesses for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$769,515,000 (31 December
2019: HK$1,255,622,000), a decrease of HK$486,107,000 or 38.7% over 2019.

Gross profit generated from banking and financial businesses for the year ended
31 December 2020 was approximately HK$357,629,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$456,613,000), a decrease of HK$98,984,000 or 21.7% over 2019.

The EBITDA for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$111,176,000 (31 December 2019: HK$412,823,000), a decrease of
HK$301,647,000 or 73.1% over 2019.

Net loss after tax for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$158,829,000 (31 December 2019: net profit after tax of HK$71,181,000).

Our Group comprises three key divisions — watches and timepieces businesses,
banking and financial businesses, and various investment businesses.

I.LA. Local Proprietary Brands

Proportions to Rossini's total revenue
by different types of sales
31 December 31 December 31 December

2020 2019 2018
Physical stores 54.1% 51.9% 55.6%
E-commerce 40.8% 39.5% 33.4%
Other 5.1% 8.6% 1%

Note: Other types of sales mainly include industrial tourism and group purchase.



For the year ended 31 December 2020, Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry
Limited (“Rossini”), a 91% subsidiary of the Group, recorded revenue
of HK$579,647,000, a decrease of HK$362,915,000 or 38.5% from
HK$942,562,000 in 2019. Net profit after tax attributable to owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$49,558,000,
representing a decrease of HK$114,575,000 or 69.8%, from
HK$164,133,000 in 2019.

In the past few years, the traditional retail model of watch industry has
been challenged by the ever-growing e-commerce in Mainland China. The
outbreak of COVID-19 further enlarged the existing challenges. During
the first half of 2020, physical stores had limited operations due to social
distancing measures, lock-downs and travel restrictions. To cope with this
difficult time, Rossini immediately adjusted its strategies.

2020 Annual Report

Year 2018

3,765

Year 2019

3,441

Year 2020

3,428

12
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Firstly, by streamlined the management process,
working efficiency of the employees were enhanced
under COVID-19. As the demand for Rossini watches
dropped significantly, Rossini reduced the number
of employees and hence the labour costs in 2020.
Rossini also streamlined the management structure
so that the communication between management
and employees became more effective. Also,
more in-depth study to the ever-changing market
and business model had been done to ensure the
innovation and competitiveness of Rossini’s product.
According to the development plan, forty new
products were introduced during 2020, some of which
got satisfactory sales performance. With the classical
business type as a basic product line, woman’s fashion
type as a breakthrough product line, and light smart
sports type as a new product line, the market has paid
attention to the development of the Rossini feature
series.

Secondly, Rossini also put more focus on e-commerce
to compensate the loss of revenue from physical
stores.

The demand of watch reduced due to the breakout
of COVID-19 since January 2020. As a result, overall
sales for the year ended 31 December 2020 dropped
significantly by 38.5% compare to 2019. However,
e-commerce business in Mainland China was further
boosted up by temporary lockdown and strict social
distance polices. The management of Rossini reacted
rapidly and allocated more resources on e-commerce
channel to seize the new market. Although
revenue from e-commerce for the year ended 31
December 2020 decreased to HK$236,552,000 from
HK$371,957,000 last year, the contribution of which
increased from 39.5% to 40.8%.

Specifically, Rossini kept expanding its territory for
occupying more market shares by opening online
distributors on the leading e-commerce platforms
including Taobao, Tmall and JD. In addition, the
shopping preferences of the Chinese consumers,
especially those of the young generation, were
influenced by key opinion leaders (KOL), who spread
their views on social media live streaming applications.
Rossini's e-commerce team seized the current trend
and as a result e-commerce live streaming became
one of the spotlights in sales growth. In order to

Management Discussion and Analysis

strengthen its brand awareness, Rossini actively
explored new opportunities on popular social media
platforms including Xiaohongshu, Kuaishou and Tik
Tok, as well as sought more chance of cooperation
with different kinds of potential KOL.

Year 2018 HK$353,778,000
Proportion to its total
revenue 33.4%

Year 2019 HK$371,957,000
Proportion to its total
revenue 39.5%

Year 2020

Proportion to its total
revenue 40.8%

Owing to COVID-19 outbreak in 2020, the whole
local tourism industry entered a harsh winter.
Rossini’s revenue from industrial tourism was also
inevitably affected. Throughout the year of 2020, the
number of tourists was approximately 50,000 (2019:
370,000), and revenue from which was approximately
HK$4,834,000 (2019: HK$71,124,000), representing
a decrease of approximately 93% over the
corresponding period of last year. In order to attract
more local tourists, Rossini will design more specific
events, i.e. talks, seminars and workshop, and provide
more internal trainings to the tourists guides so as to
promote Rossini’s industrial tourism.

With the favourable government policies, the gradual
market resumption and the tremendous efforts taken
by Rossini, Rossini’s performance in the second half of
2020 was improved.



Year 2018 3,082

Year 2019 2,926

Year 2020

Year 2018 HK$165,283,000
Proportion to its total
revenue 27.7%

Year 2019 HK$133,093,000
Proportion to its total
revenue 27.8%

Year 2020

Proportion to its total
revenue 34.6%

EBOHR Group is composed of EB Brand Limited,
EBOHR Luxuries International Limited ("EBOHR"),
Shenzhen EBOHR Luxuries Online E-commerce Co.,
Ltd., PAMA Precision Manufacturing Limited and
Shenzhen EBOHR PAMA Sales Co., Ltd.

Revenue of EBOHR Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$293,934,000, a decrease
of HK$184,790,000 or 38.6%, from HK$478,724,000
in 2019. Net loss after tax for the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$29,322,000, compared with
net profit after tax of HK$7,121,000 in 2019.
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The decline in profits was mainly attributable to
several reasons. Firstly, COVID-19 significantly
impacted the overall economy, people became
more cautious in their consumption, especially in
non-essential goods, leading to overall decrease in
watch demands. Performance of physical stores were
mostly affected under COVID-19, revenue dropped
approximately 42.2% when compared to 2019. Apart
from COVID-19, the competition from smart-watches
also exercised a strong pressure on traditional watch
sales. Fortunately, given that COVID-19 was under
control in Mainland China in late 2020, and EBOHR
organized various festival sales promotion to boost
up the sales, EBOHR slightly improved the sales
performance in the second half of 2020.

Secondly, the e-commerce sales did not perform well
as online selling expenses increased continuously.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
e-commerce sales decreased to HK$101,586,000
from HK$133,093,000 last year, representing a drop
of HK$31,507,000 or 23.7%. To maintain the brand
awareness, EBOHR made use of the social platforms
like Wechat and Tik Tok to deliver creative promotion
on its products. This strategy brought a positive
feedback from the customers eventually. EBOHR
also actively explored the opportunities from live-
streaming promotion. During 2020, EBOHR provided
different trainings to its employees on promotional
skills and formed its live-streaming team, aiming to
improve the e-commerce sales by creating influence
over the youth.

The rapid growth of digital economy is changing
consumer behavior, especially teenager groups
demanding for personality and diversity. Both Rossini
and EBOHR Group are aggressively implementing
strategies to enhance e-commerce. It is believed
that the proportion of the e-commerce sales to both
companies’ revenue and profit will steadily increase.

14
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Proprietary Brands

The Group held approximately 64.08% equity interest
in Ernest Borel Holdings Limited ("Ernest Borel”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Ernest Borel
Group”) as at 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Ernest
Borel Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$116,243,000, representing a decrease of
HK$22,276,000 or 16.1% over HK$138,519,000 in
2019. Net loss after tax attributable to the owners
of the Company was HK$4,645,000, representing
a decrease of HK$45,472,000 or 90.7% over
HK$50,117,000 in 2019.

Mainland China remained as the core market of
the Ernest Borel Group. Revenue from Mainland
China was approximately HK$114,154,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020, accounting for
approximately 98.2% of its total revenue.

The extensive distribution network of the Ernest Borel
Group covered retail markets in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and Southeast Asian countries. As at 31
December 2020, Ernest Borel Group had 804 POS
(31 December 2019: 772), comprising 664 POS in
Mainland China, 54 POS in Hong Kong and Macau,
and 86 POS in other areas, mainly in Southeast Asia
and Taiwan.

In 2020, due to COVID-19 and social disturbance
activities in Hong Kong, the drop in the number of
tourists coming to Hong Kong affected the watch
and timepieces business substantially. Ernest Borel
Group strengthened its e-commerce business by
extending e-commerce sales platform in Mainland
China and actively finding new distribution channels
in Hong Kong and Macau. The duty-free shop and
tourist groups at Hainan Free Trade Port brought
opportunities to Ernest Borel Group as four shops
were opened there at the end of 2020 and the sales
were satisfactory. Ernest Borel Group also increased
the communication with customers on products and
sales policies and marketing activities to understand
their needs in order to bring its brand awareness to a
wider level.

With the superiority of brand awareness of Ernest
Borel and the satisfactory economic recovery in
Mainland China in the second half of 2020, it is
expected that the demand of watches in Mainland
China will gradually rise in 2021 which brings positive
impact to domestic sales.

Other Foreign Proprietary Brands
Collectively, Corum, Eterna and The Dreyfuss Group

Limited (the "Dreyfuss Group”) contributed revenue
and net loss after tax for the year ended 31 December
2020 of HK$171,521,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$399,023,000) and HK$128,128,000 (31 December
2019: HK$77,550,000), respectively.

Asia, Europe and the US have been the major
markets for Corum. Asian and European market sales
represented around 62% of the turnover of Corum.
COVID-19 considerably damaged the overall sales
performance of Corum. The shutdown of international
tourism created obstacles to sales of luxury goods,
including watches. As a result, the revenue of Corum
fell by 66% in 2020.

COVID-19 shaked the Swiss watchmaking industry to
its core. With temporary closures of the manufactures,
Swiss watch exports dropped up to 81% in April 2020,
as compared to April 2019.

The very low level of sales during the first quarter
of 2020 put a lot of pressure on Corum. The
management reacted quickly to cut the operating
expenses drastically to compensate from the lack
of revenue. The operating expenses have been
reduced by 33% in 2020. Corum also disclosed a
new positioning and marketing strategy in early 2020
and the feedbacks from the markets, the retailers,
clients and other stakeholders were very positive.
Some teasers of the new design of the Golden Bridge
have also been disclosed in 2020. The different
reactions revealed that Corum correctly addressed its
positioning and marketing strategies.



According to recent studies from the watches insiders,
Chinese consumers will be the main contributors to
the growth in demand for the luxury goods over the
next five years. With the slow recovery of tourism,
Corum intends to penetrate the Chinese market by
developing new distribution channels.

COVID-19 also affected both activity and turnover
of Eterna, which reduced by around 26.7% when
compared to 2019. During the year, Eterna mainly
focused on cleaning stocks.

Eterna’s strongest markets remained in Europe, with
entry into the British market in 2020. As shown by
figures disclosed by the Federation of the Swiss Watch
Industry at the end of 2020, Mainland China was the
only market to post very strong growth at the end of
the year. Thus Eterna plans to explore the Chinese
market in the coming years.

The revenue for the year ended 31 December
2020 of Eterna Movement was heavily affected by
COVID-19 with lockdown period imposed by the
Swiss government from mid-March to end April
and new measures beginning in October until year-
ended 2020. COVID-19 also influenced the budgeted
sales orders from Corum and Eterna. It led to
smaller production activity during the year. Eterna
Movement managed to cut most of its production
costs in a higher ratio than the revenue reduction and
succeeded in reducing the year-end loss in 2020 when
compared to 2019.

UK is the Dreyfuss Group's largest single market,
representing 83% of its revenue for the year ended
31 December 2020. Three national lockdowns
and tiered approach systems in between since the
outbreak of COVID-19 in March 2020 influenced the
Dreyfuss Group's sales. Its total revenue for 2020
dropped 32% from last year. The Dreyfuss Group's
key objective during the year was to achieve break
even by focusing on improving margins, better terms
with customers, cost control and reducing stock level.
The effectiveness was evidenced by the improvement

2020 Annual Report

in gross margin and cost reduction and control. The
gross profit ratio increased 7.8% to 51.6% for 2020 by
a continuous focus on customer profitability instead of
revenue only. The total overheads and marketing costs
reduced by approximately 36% and 52% respectively.
Watch stock quantity across the Group at the end of
2020 reduced by 23.9% as compared to 2019.

The Dreyfuss Group has put efforts in developing the
international market in order to reduce its reliance
in the UK market. There was a decrease of POS in
European market mainly due to COVID-19. With
the vaccine program introduced, it is expected that
through the next 12-18 months, the European team,
with a primary focus on Germany, can continue to
achieve modest growth. On the other hand, POS in
MENA region increased with Middle East areas as the
top progressing business area for Rotary.

Backed by our competitive strengths and deep
understanding of the needs of our customers, we will
redeploy our resources to realize gains in efficiency
and synergy and will build on the good progress we
have made to provide long-term value.

Non-Proprietary Brands

Currently, the Group holds four distribution
companies. Collectively, distribution companies
contributed revenue and net profit after tax for the
year ended 31 December 2020 of HK$216,220,000
(31 December 2019: HK$256,642,000) and
HK$3,093,000 (31 December 2019: HK$11,598,000)
respectively.

. Watches and Timepieces Business — Others

Other non-major subsidiaries of the Group are also
engaged in other non-major categories of watches
and timepieces businesses, which collectively
contributed revenue and net loss after tax for the
year ended 31 December 2020 of HK$28,247,000 (31
December 2019: HK$34,267,000) and HK$14,882,000
(31 December 2019: HK$20,491,000), respectively.
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BANKING AND FINANCIAL BUSINESS

IILA. BENDURA BANK AG
ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT

For the year ended CHF'000,000
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Revenue of Bendura Bank AG (“Bendura Bank”
or the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Bendura
Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
HK$346,724,000, a decrease of HK$106,529,000 or
23.5% from HK$453,253,000 over 2019. Net loss of
the Bendura Group after tax attributable to owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020
was HK$3,633,000, compared with net profit after tax
of HK$125,137,000 in 2019. The result was due to
further reduction in interest rate cuts in the US dollars,
the impact of extraordinary adjustment effects in the
balance sheet, and the reduction in client interaction,
which was a consequence of travel restrictions due to
COVID-19.

In interest-related business, the Bank continued to
face low interest rates in Swiss Francs and Euros. Net
interest income fell from CHF23.3 million in 2019 to
CHF15.5 million in 2020.

Income from commission and service fee activities
of the Bank recorded CHF20.9 million, showing a
decrease of 12.1% over the previous year.

Client's assets under management of the Bank
climbed by CHF13.3 million year on year, ending at
CHF3,685.7 million in 2020. The increase is mainly due
to a pleasing net new money inflow of CHF203 million.



Due to lower income from foreign exchange
transactions for clients and a negative valuation
adjustment of an investment in the trading portfolio,
the Bank’s income from financial transactions
amounted to CHF2.8 million, about CHF4.3 million
lower than the previous year.

The Bank made an impairment for the Wirecard AG
notes investment of CHF3.07 million in June 2020
as elaborated in the Interim Report 2020 and an
additional CHF0.5 million for the second half of 2020,
totalling CHF3.57 million. There was also a negative
valuation adjustment of an investment in the trading
portfolio. As a result, the Bank has imposed more
stringent risk policy such as level up the rating of
investment grade to minimize the occurrence of, and
loss from similar risk.

Business expenses of the Bank amounted to CHF31.5
million, representing an increase of 3.7% over
previous year, primarily due to higher personnel costs.

As an innovative private bank, Bendura Bank
continued to expand in trading and investment
consulting for discrete clients. Considering the strong
growth in advisory mandates and tailor-made strategy
solutions, the Bank has introduced, alongside with its
classic strategies, a whole range of new and innovative
investment solutions in 2020.

The new solutions included launching a portfolio
which invests globally and focuses primarily on Asian
assets, namely “BENDURA Asian Dragon”, a portfolio
which focuses on Eastern Europe, namely “BENDURA
Eastern Eagle”, and a portfolio which follows an ESG
integrated investment process including ESG impact
investments, namely “BENDURA ESG Panda”. The
creations will allow clients to combine any two or three
of the above portfolios to fit the clients’ investment
and ESG strategies and hence they can have more
flexibility on their investing strategy.

As measures to deal with the impact of COVID-19,
all employees of Bendura Bank were equipped with
laptops. They worked from home and hence, the daily
business were not affected. All digitalization projects
will be pushed so that our employees will have full
access to all necessary information when working at
home. Besides, new software for online on boarding
of clients will be implemented and similar software will
be provided for new employees.

I.B
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The Bank recorded a pleasing inflow of new
money during 2020, which is a strong indicator of
the Bank’s sustainable earning power. The global
economy is expected to recover gradually in 2021.
The Bank will maintain its existing strategy of highly
specialized niche player. Starting in 2021, the Bank
will strengthen the digitalization endeavours for the
sake of stakeholders, meet the needs of international
clients by enlarging the advisory and investment
services offering, reduce marketing costs greatly,
and introduce a direct costing approach within sales
departments to focus on profit contribution margin.

SHUN HENG FINANCE HOLDING
(HONG KONG) LIMITED

The Group currently conducts securities and asset
management businesses under the umbrella of Shun
Heng Finance Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shun
Heng Finance Holding”), which is 60% owned by the
Group. It comprises Shun Heng Securities Limited
and Hong Kong Metasequoia Capital Management
Limited.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Shun
Heng Finance Holding contributed revenue and
net profit after tax attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$10,905,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$3,360,000) and HK$4,535,000 (31 December
2019: HK$1,430,000) respectively.

SHUN HENG SECURITIES LIMITED
Shun Heng Securities Limited (“Shun Heng

Securities”), a corporate licensed to conduct Type
1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"), is
mainly engaged in securities brokerage and margin
businesses.

In addition to the traditional brokerage business, Shun
Heng Securities has actively seek opportunities to
grow the underwriting business for overseas bonds
issued by Chinese enterprises. During 2020, Shun
Heng Securities assisted in the completion of two
private equity US dollar bond underwriting projects,
with total issuance of US$46 million. As at end of 2020,
Shun Heng Securities has successfully underwritten
9 bond projects with a cumulative amount of
approximately US$0.86 billion, achieving brand
awareness in Hong Kong Market.
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ln.A

HONG KONG METASEQUOIA CAPITAL
MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Hong Kong Metasequoia Capital Management
Limited (“Metasequoia Capital”), a corporate licensed
to conduct Type 4 (advisory on securities) and Type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the SFO, is mainly engaged in asset management
business.

Metasequoia Capital has launched two funds since
its setting up, namely Global Opportunities Fund
and Stable Growth Fund. Global Opportunities
Fund invests mainly in securities markets in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and the US, with assets under
management from US$10.24 million initially to
approximately US$12.49 million as at 31 December
2020. The Stable Growth Fund, launched in 2019,
invests in domestic CNY bond and its assets under
management reached approximately US$6.23
million as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December
2020, the aggregate assets under management
of Metasequoia Capital was approximately
US$18,720,000 (31 December 2019: US$23,560,000).

Listed Equity Investment
CITYCHAMP DARTONG COMPANY
LIMITED

As at 31 December 2020, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income of the Group
was HK$470,794,000. HK$131,636,000 was related
to the listed equity investment in the equity share of
Citychamp Dartong Company Limited (“Citychamp
Dartong”). Citychamp Dartong is a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code:
600067) and engaged in real estate, enameled wire,
banking and new energy. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group owned 30,389,058 shares of Citychamp
Dartong at the market price of RMB3.65 per share
(equivalent to HK$4.33 per share) with the fair value
of HK$131,636,000. The shares held by the Group
accounted for 2.04% of the total issued share capital
of Citychamp Dartong as at 31 December 2020. Such
fair value accounted for 0.6% of the Group's total
assets.

The Group incurred a net loss on fair value change
through other comprehensive income in investment
in Citychamp Dartong of HK$3,540,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020, as a result of decrease in
the share price of Citychamp Dartong from RMB3.98
(equivalent to HK$4.45) as at 31 December 2019 to
RMB3.65 (equivalent to HK$4.33) as at 31 December
2020.

This is the Group’s long-term investment due held
for dividend yield and long-term capital gain. Given
its substantial land bank for development and
profitability of certain business segments, we are
optimistic about the future prospects of Citychamp
Dartong.

MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED

Investment in Min Xin Holdings Limited (“Min Xin")
(Stock code: 222) was measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The Company intends
to hold the investment on a long-term basis.

Min Xin is a company engaged in financial services,
securities trading, real estate development, toll
road and manufacturing. As at 31 December 2020,
the investment in Min Xin was HK$333,207,000, i.e.
88,150,000 shares at the market price of HK$3.78 per
share as at 31 December 2020. Such fair value of the
investment accounted for 1.6% of the Group’s total
assets. The shares held by the Company accounted for
14.76% of the total issued share capital of Min Xin as
at 31 December 2020.

The Company incurred a net gain on fair value change
in Min Xin's investment of HK$51,127,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: net
loss of HK$210,679,000), as a result of increase in the
share price of Min Xin from HK$3.20 as at 1 January
2020 to HK$3.78 as at 31 December 2020. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Company’s
dividend income from Min Xin was HK$8,815,000 (31
December 2019: HK$8,815,000).
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lll.B Property Investment 3% 3%
The properties in Mainland China and Hong Kong
owned by the Group have been leased out, with
stable rental returns to the Group for the year under
review. During the year, these investment properties 13%
generated rental income of HK$11,108,000 (31
December 2019: HK$9,915,000). Net profit after tax
from the property investment business for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was HK$15,378,000 (31
December 2019: HK$7,974,000).

SECTOR
BREAKDOWN

ll.C Other Marketable Securities
The Group has acted as the founder investor and

invested US$5.12 million in “Metasequoia Investment
Fund SPC — Global Opportunities Fund SP” (the
“Fund”) since 15 August 2017 in order to facilitate
establishing the fund management business with @ Information Technology @ Consumer Staples
an initial capital of US$10.24 million and the rest

of the fund was subscribed by other investors with ® Communication Services @ Utilities

the capital of US$5.12 million. As of 4 May 2020, @ Consumer Discretionary @ Energy
the Group redeemed 3,840 shares in the amount ' )

of US$5,907,000 of Metasequoia Investment Fund Financials

SPC which generated a profit of US$2,067,000 since o

August 2017 and US$655,000 for the period from 1 5% 3%

January 2020 to 4 May 2020 respectively.

N

As at 31 December 2020, the total net asset value of
the Fund was US$12.49 million (31 December 2019:
US$13.13 million), which composed by US$2.30
million and US$10.19 million for the Group and
other inventors respectively. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the unrealized loss on fair value of
the investment was approximately US$432,165 (31
December 2019: unrealized gain US$1,767,735).

GEOGRAPHICAL
BREAKDOWN

18%

@ China Singapore
@ United States () Taiwan

® Hong Kong
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Losses from administrative expenses, finance costs and income tax of the headquarter and other non-major subsidiaries
and/or non-major categories of businesses for the year ended 31 December 2020 was HK$61,187,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$124,989,000).

M

(2)

(3)

M

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had non-pledged cash and bank balances of approximately HK$5,612,645,000
(31 December 2019: HK$4,785,483,000). Based on the borrowings of HK$1,564,822,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$1,740,362,000), due to a shareholder of HK$12,000,000 (31 December 2019: HK$12,000,000), due to directors of
HK$21,233,000 (31 December 2019: HK$22,241,000) and shareholders’ equity of HK$4,418,679,000 (31 December
2019: HK$4,255,072,000), the Group's gearing ratio (being borrowings plus due to a shareholder and due to directors
divided by shareholders’ equity) was 36% (31 December 2019: 41%).

Charge on assets
As at 31 December 2020, the Group's borrowings were mainly secured by:

(@)  corporate guarantees provided by certain subsidiaries within the Group;

(b)  equity interest of certain subsidiaries within the Group; and

(c) alegal charge over the Group's property, plant and equipment with the carrying amount of HK$310,118,000
(2019: HK$95,180,000).

Capital commitment
Capital commitments as at 31 December 2020 were approximately HK$270,000,000 in total (31 December 2019:

HK$482,652,000), for investment in an associate — Citychamp Allied International Limited and purchase of property,
plant and equipment.

Except for the above, the Group had no other material capital commitments as at 31 December 2020.

Total assets
Total assets increased to HK$21,385,195,000 as at 31 December 2020 from HK$19,597,081,000 as at 31 December

2019.

Cash and deposits

31 December 31 December Increase/(decrease)
2020 2019 Amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
Cash and bank balances 303,644 329,377 (25,733) -7.8
Cash held on behalf of clients 110,985 104,227 6,758 6.5

Sight deposits with central banks 5,198,016 4,463,642 734,374 16.5




2020 Annual Report 24

Due from banks

31 December 31 December Increase/(decrease)
2020 2019 Amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
Due from banks on a daily basis 5,229,597 4,720,429 509,168 10.8
Due from banks other claims 238,021 182,006 56,015 30.8
Valuation adjustments (1,358) (1,237) (121) (9.8)

(2) Investments
The investment as at 31 December 2020 included (a) trading portfolio investments of HK$80,310,000; (b) derivative

financial assets of HK$29,224,000; (c) financial assets at amortised cost of HK$1,449,886,000; and (d) financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income of HK$470,794,000 (the “Investments”).

(a) Trading portfolio investments of HK$80,310,000

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Equity Instruments
Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong at market value 649 69,042
Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong at market value 4,522 78,307
Total equity instruments 5,171 147,349
Debt instruments
Unlisted debt instruments of financial institutions 12,938 27,612
Total debt instruments 12,938 27,612
Investment fund units
Unlisted investment fund unit 55,843 46,758
Total investment fund units 55,843 46,758
Investments in other financial products 6,358 6,184
Total trading portfolio investments 80,310 227,903

It is the objective of the Group to maintain certain level of liquidity in the form of trading portfolio investments for
unplanned capital expenditure. The liquidity is usually parked with the listed equities in order to generate short
term return.

As at 31 December 2020, there were HK$649,000 invested in a variety of listed equities in Hong Kong and
HK$4,522,000 invested in Mainland China and overseas markets.

The debt instruments of HK$12,938,000 invested in the Mainland China by PRC company.



25

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

Management Discussion and Analysis

(c)

Trading assets of CHF3.0 million (equivalent to HK$26,118,000) represents the single investment by Bendura
Bank in the form of an unlisted investment fund. Bendura Bank acquired above trading assets from a professional
counterparty in March 2019. The investment policy of Bendura Bank AG includes strict implementation of the
investment process and is subject to constant review by the investment committee.

Investments in other financial products consist of the financial product investments of HK$6,358,000 invested by
Eternal Brands.

Derivative financial assets of HK$29,224,000

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
Derivative financial assets
Forward and option contracts 29,224 10,275

In the derivative financial assets of HK$29,224,000, there were forward and option contracts conducted by
Bendura Bank.

Bendura Bank offers derivative products including currency forwards and swaps to its clients. These derivative
positions were managed through entering back-to-back deals with external parties to ensure that remaining
exposures are within acceptable risk levels. First-rate banks serve as counterparties, as is generally the case in
trading business. It is not the objective of Bendura Bank to speculate the gain on the change in the price by
conducting forward and option contracts without having invested in the underlying assets.

As at 31 December 2020, forward contracts of HK$29,224,000 related to FX swaps entered by Bendura Bank.
Based upon risk/return considerations, client deposits denominated in foreign currencies were, in part, no longer
invested on the interbank market but were swapped into Swiss francs using currency swaps and deposited with
the Swiss National Bank (SNB). Income from the interest component of currency swaps exceeded the expense of
SNB negative interest and the reduced level of interest from banks.

At as 31 December 2019, derivative financial assets of HK$10,275,000 related to forward and option contracts
conducted by Bendura Bank.

Other financial assets at amortised cost of HK$1,449,886,000

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000

Listed debt instruments, at amortised cost

Issued by:

Governments and public sector 84,447 82,373
Financial institutions 1,053,351 778,199
Corporations 312,088 447,388

1,449,886 1,307,960
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Bendura Bank invested in listed debt instruments issued by government and public sector, financial institutions
and corporations amounting to HK$1,449,886,000. The portfolio was composed of 79 listed debt instruments
with different maturity, geography, segment and currency and hence, diversification is ensured. Almost all
listed debt instruments were considered upper-medium grade and are subject to low credit risk. The average
remaining term of the held-to-maturity investment is 2.3 years. Largest single investments are bond issued
by European Investment Bank (CHF11 million) and followed by International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development (CHF9 million). Both are triple-A issuers. Risk concentration is analysed and presented to the senior
management on a monthly basis.

Relatively major listed debt instruments as at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Nature of
Issuer interest rate  Sector Maturity date Value
(CHF'000)
Bank of Montreal Fixed Financial corporations 22 December 2023 5,000
China Merchants Bank/Lux Fixed Financial corporations 19 June 2022 5,407
Abn Amro Bank Nv Floating Financial corporations 19 July 2022 7,071
Deutsche Bank Ag Floating Financial corporations 16 May 2022 7,566
Bank of Nova Scotia Floating Financial corporations 5 October 2022 8,166
Intl Bk Recon & Develop Fixed Financial corporations 19 March 2024 8,830
European Investment Bank Floating Financial corporations 24 March 2021 10,608
Others 112,391
Total 165,039
HKD Equivalent to (in ‘000) 1,449,886

Collectively, listed debt instruments, at amortised cost accounted for 6.8% of the Group’s total assets.

As at 31 December 2019, Bendura Bank invested in listed debt instruments issued by government and public
sector, financial institutions and corporations amounting to HK$1,307,960,000, the portfolio was composed of
58 listed debt instruments with different maturity, geography, segment and currency and hence, diversification is
ensured. Almost all listed debt instruments were considered upper-medium grade and are subject to low credit
risk. Largest single investments are bond issued by International Bank for Reconstruction and Development
(CHF19 million) and followed by European Investment Bank (CHF12 million). Both are triple-A issuers. Risk
concentration is analyzed and presented to the senior management on a monthly basis.
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(d)

(3) Goodwill and Intangible assets

(a)

Relatively major listed debt instruments as at 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Nature of
Issuer interest rate  Sector Maturity date Value
(CHF'000)
China Merchants Bank/Lux Fixed Financial Institutions 19 June 2022 5,426
Deutsche Bank Ag Floating Financial Institutions 16 May 2022 7,591
Abn Amro Bank Nv Floating Financial Institutions 19 July 2022 7,746
Bank of Nova Scotia Floating Financial Institutions 5 October 2022 8,228
Intl Bk Recon & Develop Fixed Financial Institutions 19 March 2024 9,670
European Investment Bank Floating Financial Institutions 24 March 2021 11,631
Intl Bk Recon & Develop Floating Financial Institutions 18 March 2020 19,364
Others 92,845
Total 162,501
HKD Equivalent to (in '000) 1,307,960

Other financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income of HK$470,794,000

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong 333,207 282,080
Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong 131,636 135,176
Unlisted equity investment 5,951 5,605
470,794 422,861

Listed equity instruments of HK$131,636,000 related to investment in Citychamp Dartong and HK$333,207,000
related to investment in Min Xin. Details of investments in Citychamp Dartong and Min Xin are set out from page

21 of this report.

Goodwill

Goodwill is arising from business combinations, and capitalised as assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group engages professional valuer to conduct impairment testing on individual CGUs
every financial year. As at 31 December 2020, the net carrying amount of Goodwill was HK$1,144,071,000 (As at
31 December 2019: HK$1,065,051,000), which mainly composed of the following CGUs:

31 December

31 December

2020 2019

Segment HK$'000 HK$'000

Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited Watches and timepieces 649,530 611,694
Bendura Group Banking Business 269,549 246,961
Ernest Borel Group Watches and timepieces 221,912 203,317
Others 3,080 3,079
Total: 1,144,071 1,065,051




(4)

)

(6)

(7)
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The increase in Goodwill was solely due to the exchange rate difference between foreign currencies and Hong
Kong Dollar as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

(b) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are arising from business combinations, and capitalised as assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position. They included Supplier and distribution networks, Brand names, Patents and Trading rights.
As at 31 December 2020, the net carry amount of Intangible assets was HK$54,415,000 (As at 31 December
2019: HK$52,089,000), which allocated to the following category:

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

Supplier and distribution networks 833 2,246
Brand Names 46,336 42,597
Trading Rights 7,246 7,246
Total 54,415 52,089

Brand Name with indefinite useful lives amounted to HK46,265,000 are attributable to the CGU of Ernest Borel
Group and the increase in the value of Brand Names was solely due to the exchange rate difference between
foreign currency and Hong Kong Dollar as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Total liabilities
Total liabilities increased to HK$16,648,968,000 as at 31 December 2020 from HK$14,936,192,000 as at 31 December

2019, mainly attributable to an increase in due to clients.

Due to clients

31 December 31 December Increase/(decrease)
2020 2019 Amount %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Due to clients — precious metals 130,119 56,762 73,357 129.2
Other amounts due to clients, mainly
bank deposits 13,835,358 11,906,290 1,929,068 16.2

Gross profit from non-banking and financial businesses
Gross profit from non-banking and financial businesses was HK$769,515,000, a decrease of HK$486,107,000, or

38.7%.

EBITDA
EBITDA was HK$111,176,000, a decrease of HK$301,647,000 or 73.1%.

Selling and distribution expenses
Total selling and distribution expenses was HK$550,428,000, a decrease of HK$267,461,000 or 32.7%.
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(8) Administrative expenses
Total administrative expenses was HK$728,432,000, a
decrease of HK$48,682,000 or 6.3%.

(9) Share of profit of associates
The share of profit of Fair Future Industrial Limited

("Fair Future”), a 25% owned associate of the Group,
was HK$3,180,000, representing a decrease of
HK$14,495,000 or 82.0%. Fair Future is one of the
leading OEM quartz watch manufacturers in Mainland
China.

(10) Finance costs from non-banking business
Finance costs from non-banking business was

HK$82,956,000, representing a decrease of
HK$12,364,000 or 13.0%. It was composed of the
interest charged on corporate bonds and the interest
charged on bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and
lease liabilities.

(11) Loss/profit attributable to owners of the
Company
Loss attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$169,233,000 (31 December 2019: profit of
HK$44,246,000) for the year ended 31 December
2020.

(12) Inventories
Inventories was HK$2,255,553,000, a decrease of

HK$2,413,000 or 0.1%.

COVID-19 continues to dominate the headlines, for both
everyday life and developments of the global economy.

The central banks of major economies have pulled out
all the policies since COVID-19 crisis began, pursuing
unprecedented and decisive monetary expansion in order
to support the economic activity. Similarly, the central banks
of some smaller advanced economies, such as Australia
and New Zealand, and emerging economies, such as India,
have also resorted to unconventional measures. Fiscal
measures are complemented by coherent and tough virus-
containment strategies, which credibly enable economic
reopening.

Mainland China has achieved apparent success in bringing
epidemic under control and it is now the first major economy
to recover from COVID-19. Coupled with the positive and
strong economic fundamentals, Mainland China is expected
to remain one of the world’s few countries where the citizens
live and work normally. Owing to the unresolved COVID-19
challenges, major economies other than Mainland China
are yet to recover. The short-term outlook for the global
economy remains uncertain and will be highly dependent on
the duration of COVID-19. Vaccines from Mainland China,
the UK, the US and Europe, although not 100% proven
effective, are available for injection starting from January
2021 in advanced countries. By the end of 2021, most
population of both advanced and developing countries
would have been injected with vaccine. Hence, the global
economic growth is expected to be still negative before
economies are practically reopened in 2022.

In 2021, the local proprietary watch brand business in
Mainland China is expected to rebound gradually although
slowly. Generally, the market conditions are expected to
be optimistic in 2021. Our well-established e-commerce
platform and our comprehensive and unique network
across Mainland China would contribute to the slight
recovery in 2021 and significant recovery in 2022 when
both consumption propensity and consumer confidence are
substantially re-established.

The foreign proprietary watch brand business, owing to the
adverse impact of continuous social distancing, lock-downs
and travel restrictions on their key markets where the general
demand is relatively weak, remains very challenging in 2021.
Apparently, the prospect in 2022 is expected to be slightly
optimistic when major economies are gradually reopened.



Bendura Bank, although its operation and performance
being affected by COVID-19, has developed organically
as shown by the stability of asset under management,
higher liquidity level and increased headcount. By
combining human resources, market opportunities and risk
management, and by drawing on the professionalism of its
banking and financial businesses employees, a powerful
banking and financial business segment with operations
in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Europe will gradually
evolve. The banking and financial businesses continue to
perform with banking business as the main driver of revenue
and profitability in the years to come. It is our objective to
keep investing in the growth of the banking and financial
businesses. Specifically, we intend to strengthen Bendura
Bank’s capital base to support the sustainable growth of its
credit business and to expand its geographical coverage
and product coverage in Hong Kong, Mainland China, East
Asia and strengthen Bendura Bank’s asset management
business. Besides, we intend to pursue selective strategic
investment and acquisition opportunities related to the
banking business.

We have strong faith that the world will overcome this
challenging period. Meanwhile our organization must
adopt a new mindset and take this as the most important
lesson that we should learn and improve from. Should the
disposal of most watch companies be properly executed
in the second quarter, if not in the third quarter, of 2021,
the Group will then primarily focus on the banking and
financial businesses. Given the competent human resources
and strong infrastructure, the Group is well placed to
meet the challenging economic environment and to grasp
opportunities and keep striving for sustainable profitability
under the new business structure.

2020 Annual Report

Our sustained success would not be possible without the
high levels of expertise, professionalism and commitment
shown by our employees.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately
4,600 fulltime staff in Hong Kong and Mainland China
and approximately 300 fulltime staff in Europe. The
remuneration packages offered to the employees were
determined and reviewed on an arm’s length basis
with reference to the market condition and individual
performance. The Group also provides other benefits to
its employees, including year-end double pay, medical
insurance and retirement benefits, and incentive bonuses
are offered with reference to the Group's operating results
and employees’ individual performance. All employees of
the Group in Hong Kong have joined the provident fund
schemes. Employees of Group's subsidiaries in Mainland
China also have participated in social insurance scheme
administrated and operated by local authorities and
contributions were made according to the local laws and
regulations.

Our financial performance and strategic moves reflected
the joint efforts of the board and management in
successfully pursuing our mission. | would like to express
my deep gratitude to our employees, customers, suppliers,
bankers, professional consultants, business partners, and
shareholders for their support.

Shang Jianguang
Executive Director & CEO

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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HON Kwok Lung, 885

Chairman

SHANG Jianguang
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, aged 66, joined the Board in April 2004. He is the chairman of
the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Hon was the Chairman of Citychamp Dartong Company Limited
("Citychamp Dartong”), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange with stock code 600067 in Mainland China, during the period from
November 2001 to January 2017. Mr. Hon is still the actual controller of Citychamp
Dartong. Citychamp Dartong is principally engaged in property development and
manufacturing and sale of enamelled copper wires in Mainland China. Mr. Hon
has extensive business experience in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Europe.
Mr. Hon is an Executive Member of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese Committee and the Executive Vice President of China Federation of
Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs. Mr. Hon is also appointed as director of various
subsidiaries of the Company, including Bendura Bank AG. Mr. Hon is father of Mr.
Hon Hau Wong, father-in-law of Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Teguh Halim and brother-
in-law of Mr. Lam Toi Man.

Mr. Shang Jianguang, aged 69, joined the Board in November 2004. He is a
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of

the Company. Mr. Shang has been appointed as the chairman of Ernest Borel

Holdings Limited (stock code: 1856, “Ernest Borel”), a subsidiary of the Company,
with effect from 12 October 2018. Mr. Shang is also appointed as director of
various subsidiaries of the Company, including Bendura Bank AG, and the
General Manager of Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited and EBOHR Luxuries
International Limited. Mr. Shang, graduated in Fuzhou University majoring in
Chemistry, is a qualified senior engineer in Mainland China. Prior to joining the
Group, he assumed senior posts in various large companies, and was General
Manager and Director of Min Xin Holdings Limited (stock code: 222). He also
served as a director of Citychamp Dartong, the shares of which are listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, from December 2007 to January 2020. Mr. Shang has
extensive knowledge and experience in corporate and investment management.




SHI Tao

LAM Toi Man

Bl Bo
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Mr. Shi Tao, aged 57, joined the Board in April 2004. Mr. Shi holds a Bachelor
degree in Engineering from Tsinghua University and a Master degree in
Engineering from Wuhan University of Technology (formerly known as Wuhan
Industrial University). Mr. Shi has years of business experience in Mainland China.
He was an Executive Director of New Capital International Investment Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Shi is a member
of the risk management committee of the Company and director of various
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Lam Toi Man, aged 63, joined the Board in April 2004. Mr. Lam has various
years of experience in property development in Mainland China. Mr. Lam was
the General Manager of Zhejiang Huashun Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd. and
an Executive Director and the General Manager of Hangzhou Yuanhua Mart
Construction Co., Ltd. Mr. Lam is the brother-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, uncle
of Mr. Hon Hau Wong and uncle-in-law of Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Teguh Halim. Mr.
Lam is a member of the risk management committee of the Company and director
of various subsidiaries of the Group. He has been appointed as an executive
director of AVIC Joy Holdings Limited (stock code: 260) since 18 September
2020.

Mr. Bi Bo, aged 42, joined the Board in August 2010. Mr. Bi received a degree of
Master of Science (Finance) from The Johns Hopkins University in May 2006. Prior
to joining the Group, he was a senior actuarial assistant (supervisor) in Carefirst
Bluecross Blueshield, working on actuarial valuation and risk management of

insurance company. He qualifies as an associate of the Society of Actuaries (ASA)

in 2009. He also has years of experience in M&A activities. Mr. Bi is also a member
of the risk management committee of the Company and director of various
subsidiaries of the Group.

32



33 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Sit Lai Hei, aged 43, joined the Board in November 2004. She was appointed
as a Non-executive Director of the Company in November 2004 and re-
designated as an Executive Director of the Company on 26 March 2012. Ms. Sit
graduated in Fuzhou University taking Marketing as her major and is a qualified
assistant engineer in Mainland China. Ms. Sit is also a Director of Citychamp
Dartong, the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and the
legal representative and director of Fujian Fengrong Investment Co., Ltd. Ms. Sit
is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, a niece-in-law of Mr. Lam Toi Man
and sister-in-law of Mr. Hon Hau Wong and Mr. Teguh Halim. Ms. Sit is also the
chairman of the risk management committee of the Company and director of
various subsidiaries of the Group.

SIT Lai Hei

Mr. Hon Hau Wong, aged 43, joined the Board in August 2014. Mr. Hon
graduated from Tongji University and holds a bachelor degree in Engineering
Management. He had also served as the Deputy Chairman of Citychamp Dartong,
the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, since August 2006,
and have been elected to be the Chairman of Citychamp Dartong since January
2017. He has extensive experience in the real estate industry in Mainland China.
He is currently a member of Fujian Province Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference and a standing member of Beijing Haidian
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Hon
Hau Wong is a son of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, a nephew of Mr. Lam Toi Man and
brother-in-law of Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Teguh Halim.

HON Hau Wong

Mr. Teguh Halim, aged 39, joined the Group in October 2008 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 23 January 2018.
Before being appointed as an Executive Director of the Company, he was an Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Halim is also the director of several subsidiaries

of the Company engaged in watch business. Mr. Halim has also been appointed

as the vice chairman of Ernest Borel with effect from 12 October 2018. He has
gained years of experience in the watch manufacturing and distribution industry
and business management. Mr. Halim graduated from Ohio State University as
bachelor of science in business administration majoring in accounting. Mr. Halim
is the son-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, nephew-in-law of Mr. lam Toi Man and
brother-in-law of Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Hon Hau Wong.

Teguh HALIM
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Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael, aged 56, joined the Board in April 2004 and is a
member of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Dr. Kwong is a fellow of the International Institute
of Management, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, a business
strategist specialising in the area of marketing and business administration. Dr.
Kwong obtained a Bachelor of arts degree with honours in philosophy from the
University of Nottingham in the United Kingdom in 1987 and a Doctorate degree
in business administration from Newport University (US) in 2001.

Mr. Zhang Bin, aged 56, joined the Board in November 2014 and is a member
of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang is currently a partner of Beijing Hylands
Law Firm (“Hylands"”). He obtained a degree of Bachelor of Laws from Fudan
University in Shanghai in 1986 and was qualified as a lawyer in China in 1988 and
had served as a legal advisor in a large scale state-owned enterprise for years
upon his graduation. Before joining Hylands in 2008, he worked in law firms in
Beijing, London and Hong Kong. Mr. Zhang is involved in a wide range of areas of

practice and has accumulated tremendous experiences in legal affairs in respect

of financial investments, real estates and intellectual property rights.
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Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk (formerly known as Kam Leung Ming), aged 46,
joined the Board in November 2020 and is the chairman of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination committee
of the Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in corporate governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and an associate member of The Chartered Governance Institute. Mr. Kam has
over 24 years of experience in auditing, professional accounting and worked for
several Hong Kong listed companies of various industries and served senior roles
in financial management and secretarial functions.

Mr. Kam is currently an executive director and company secretary of Get Nice
Holdings Limited ((“Get Nice"”), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), Stock Code: 64); an
independent non-executive director of Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1549)
and Genes Tech Group Holdings Company Limited (a company listed on the
. . Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 8257). He is an
KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk independent |Zon—execu‘cive director of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 3663)
since 16 December 2020. He is a non-executive director of Panagaea Connectivity
Technology Ltd. (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 1473) since 19 February 2021. He was an independent non-executive
director of Casablanca Group Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 2223) from April 2015 to May 2017 and also an
executive director and company secretary of Get Nice Financial Group Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1469) from

September 2015 to April 2017.

Mr. Kam was appointed as a director of the board of directors of the é6th Term
Guangzhou Overseas Friendship Association Committee in March 2013, a
committee member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Shanghai Committee (Baoshan District) in December 2016 and a director of the
board of directors of the 7th Term Shenzhen Overseas Friendship Association
Committee in 2017.

Mr. Li Ziging, aged 69, joined the Board in November 2020 and is a member of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. He graduated from Peking University, and he is a senior
economist. From 1981 to 1982, he worked in the General Bureau of Bank of China
Headquarters. From September 1982 to March 1998, he served as a cadre of the
Foreign Exchange Division and Deputy Director of the Information Department of
the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the People’s Republic of China.
From March 1998 to 2013, he served as the Vice President and Party Committee
Member of China Everbright Bank (”Everbright Bank”) and he served as Vice
President and Chairman of Everbright Financial Leasing Company from 2010 to
2013. In addition, during the tenure of Mr. Li at Everbright Bank, he has been in
charge of several departments including the Development Research Department,
Accounting Department, Retail Business Department, Wealth Center, Credit Card
Department, Financial Market Department, Investment Banking Department,
and Technology Department, etc.. Among them, the credit card department,
investment banking department, wealth center and the leasing company were
founded by Mr. Li. Mr. Li also led Everbright Bank to issue the first wealth
management products in the banking industry.

LI Ziqing
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Mr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 58, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary
of the Company. Mr. Fong is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company, including Bendura Bank AG. Mr. Fong is a fellow member of HKICPA,
a fellow member of CPA Australia, a Chartered Financial Analyst, a member of the
Institute of Certified Management Accountants, Australia and a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Fong has over 25 years of extensive experience in
various sectors of the financial industry, including direct investment, project and
structured finance, and capital markets with focus on Mainland China and Hong
Kong. Mr. Fong was a director of Baring Capital (China) Management Limited
and held various management positions in ING Bank. He joined the Company in
September 2004.

Mr. Lu Jun, aged 57, has been appointed as the Vice President of the Company
since October 2014. He currently serves as the General Manager of Guangzhou

Five Goat Watch Company Limited, the Chairman of The Dreyfuss Group
Limited and the CEO of Eterna Movement AG, all of which are subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Lu holds a master degree in Executive Master of Business

Administration from Tianjin University of Finance & Economics. He had been
working for Tianjin Watch Factory (currently known as Tianjin Seagull Watch Co.,
Ltd, “Tianjin Seagull”) since 1983 and acting as the General Manager of Tianjin
Seagull for almost four years before joining the Company. Mr. Lu has engaged in
the domestic and overseas watch industry for more than 30 years and possesses
tremendous experiences in business administration and international trading.

Ms. Lam Lai, aged 42, has been appointed as the Vice President of the Company
in April 2021. She is also the director of various subsidiaries of the Company,
including Bendura Bank AG and VGB Limited. Ms. Lam joined the Company in
2008 and served as investment manager and CEO assistant, mainly responsible
for merger and acquisition projects as well as business development. Ms. Lam is
currently an Executive Director and Authorized Representative of Ernest Borel and
a Non-executive Director of Dragon Mining Limited (Stock code: 1712). Ms. Lam
graduated from University of Western Sydney in 2001 with a bachelor degree of
business majoring in marketing.
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The Company is committed to maintain a standard of corporate governance that is consistent with market practices.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance

Code (the "CG Code”) and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31

December 2020 except with the details disclosed below:

(i)

(i)

CG Code E.1.2

CG Code E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the board of directors (the “Board”) should attend the annual general
meeting of the Company. The Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 June 2020 (the “AGM 2020") due to other business engagement.

CG Code A.6.7

CG Code A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive directors should attend general meetings. Three
independent non-executive directors of the Company (the “Independent Non-executive Director”) did not attend the
AGM 2020 due to other business engagements or travel restrictions under COVID-19.

Note:

Mr. Fung Tze Wa (“Mr. Fung”) and Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher (“Mr. Escher”) resigned from their respective directorship with effect
from 1 September 2020 and accordingly, Mr. Fung ceased to be the chairman of Audit Committee and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and Mr. Escher ceased to be a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Upon of their resignation, the Board comprises of ten Directors, including
eight Executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive Directors. The number and composition of Independent Non-executive
Directors fail to meet the requirements under (i) Listing Rule 3.10(1) which requires that every board of directors must include at least
three independent non-executive directors; (i) Listing Rule 3.10(2) which requires at least one of the independent non-executive
directors must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise; and (i) Listing
Rule 3.10A which requires that the number of independent non-executive directors must represent at least one-third of the board.

In addition, following the resignation of Mr. Fung and Mr. Escher, the Company does not meet the requirements of the Listing Rules
(i) Rule 3.21 which requires that the Audit Committee must be chaired by an independent non-executive director and comprise
a minimum of three members and at least one of whom is an independent non-executive director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2); (i) Rule 3.25 requires that
the Remuneration Committee must be chaired by an independent non-executive director and comprise a majority of independent
non-executive directors; and (iii) CG Code A.5.1 requires the Nomination Committee must comprise a majority of independent non-
executive directors.

With effect from 6 November 2020, (i) Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk (“Mr. Kam") has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee; and (i) Mr. Li Ziging (“Mr. Li") has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of each of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

Following the appointment of Mr. Kam and Mr. Li, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10, 3.10A, 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and CG Code A.5.1.

The Chairman of the Board and Independent Non-executive Directors will endeavor to attend all future general meetings

of the Company unless unexpected or special circumstances preventing them from doing so. The Board will continuously

review and improve the corporate governance practices and standards of the Company to ensure that business activities and

decision-making processes are properly regulated.
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The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conducts for securities transactions by Directors of the Company. All
the members of the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development and direction of the Group. The Board also monitors
the financial performance and the internal controls of the Group's business operations. Moreover, the Board is responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties. The Board has established a clear segregation of duties and responsibilities
between the Board and the management as to which types of decisions are to be taken by the Board and which are to be
delegated to management. This segregation of duties and responsibilities will be regularly reviewed by the Board. With the
Chairman as a facilitator in the establishment that promotes discussion among Directors, all the Directors have brought a
wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
delivery of the board functions.

Size, Composition and Diversity of the Board
The Board currently comprises of eight Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors, as detailed
below:

Date of first Date of last
appointment to re-election as
Name of Director Position the Board Director
HON Kwok Lung Chairman/Executive Director 08/04/2004 30/05/2019
SHANG Jianguang Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 18/11/2004 30/06/2020
SHI Tao Executive Director 08/04/2004 30/05/2019
LAM Toi Man Executive Director 08/04/2004 30/05/2019
Bl Bo Executive Director 24/08/2010 30/05/2019
SIT Lai Hei Executive Director 18/11/2004 28/05/2018
HON Hau Wong Executive Director 29/08/2014 30/06/2020
Teguh HALIM Executive Director 23/01/2018 28/05/2018
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael Independent Non-executive Director 08/04/2004 28/05/2018
ZHANG Bin Independent Non-executive Director 26/11/2014 30/06/2020
KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk Independent Non-executive Director 06/11/2020 N/A*
LI Ziging Independent Non-executive Director 06/11/2020 N/A*
* This director will hold office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election at

that meeting.
Save as mentioned below, there is no relationship among members of the Board:

(i) Mr. Hon Kwok Lung is father of Mr. Hon Hau Wong, father-in-law of Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Teguh Halim and brother-
in-law of Mr. Lam Toi Man.

(i) Mr. Lam Toi Man is the brother-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, uncle of Mr. Hon Hau Wong and uncle-in-law of Ms. Sit
Lai Hei and Mr. Teguh Halim.

(i) Ms. Sit Lai Hei is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, a niece-in-law of Mr. Lam Toi Man and sister-in-law of Mr.
Hon Hau Wong and Mr. Teguh Halim.

(iv)  Mr. Hon Hau Wong is a son of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, and also a nephew of Mr. Lam Toi Man and brother-in-law of Ms.
Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Teguh Halim.

(v)  Mr. Teguh Halim is the son-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, nephew-in-law of Mr. Lam Toi Man and brother-in-law of Ms.
Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Hon Hau Wong.

Profiles of Directors are set out in the pages 31 to 35 of this annual report.

38



39

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

Corporate Governance Report

Board Diversity Policy
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of board members to enhance the quality of its

performance. The Company upholds that a high performing board is one that composes directors with the combination of
competencies and diversity of perspectives aligning with the Company’s strategy and objectives, and which is in the best
position to deal with the key issues that the Company faces.

A board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) was adopted by the Company in order to set out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board, a summary of which is set forth on page 65 of this annual report.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the board
level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
board appointments will be made on a merit basis but the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
independence from or relationship with other members of the Board, experience (professional or otherwise), skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness and discuss any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such revisions
to the Board for consideration and approval.

A diversity analysis of the existing board composition is set out at the chart below:

Board Diversity
(no. of members)

1 1"

Female Male

-—
IS
w
'S

31-40 41-50 51-60 61-70

(")
IS

Executive Director Independent Non-executive Director

7 2 3
11-15 6-10 0-5
7 5
No Yes
2 6 3 1
Other Bachelor Master PhD

5 7
Yes No
4 8
Yes No
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Nomination of Board Members and Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”), aiming to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business. The Nomination Policy sets
out, among others, factors that will be given due consideration to in assessing, selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship to the Board and the nomination procedures, details of which are set out on pages 62 to 64 of this annual report.

For every newly appointed director, the Company will provide comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment, including but not limited to, briefing from external lawyers about the governance policies of the Company,
responsibilities of directors under applicable rules and regulations. He/she will also receive an information pack and has a
chance to meet with the Company’s management. If necessary, the Board members have access to external professional
advice at the Company’s expense.

Independent Non-executive Directors
One of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise.

With a wide range of expertise and a balance of skills, the Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct
through their participating in board meetings and committee work.

The views of the Independent Non-executive Directors carry significant weight in the Board'’s decision-making process. The
Board considers that each Independent Non-executive Director is independent in character and judgment and that they all
meet the specific independent criteria as required by the Listing Rules. The assessments of the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors are carried out upon appointment and annually pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and at any
other time where the circumstances require special consideration.

Special consideration will be given to the independence of Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael, who has served the Company
as Independent Non-executive Director since 2004. In this regard, a separate resolution to approve his re-election will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting for shareholders’ approval in accordance to CG Code A.4.3. The
Company still considers Dr. Kwong to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The posts of Chairman and CEO are segregated and each of them plays a distinct role. The segregation of such two roles

ensures a clear division between the respective responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO. The Chairman, Mr. Hon Kwok
Lung, is mainly responsible for setting direction and strategies of the business development, and leading and managing the
Board. The CEO, Mr. Shang Jianguang, undertakes a supervisory role to manage the day-to-day operation and business of
the Group.

AGM, Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the overall strategy, discuss business opportunities and to monitor
the operation as well as the financial performance of the Group. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairman
and the CEO are primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda for each board meeting in consultation
with all Directors. Notice of at least 14 days have been given to all Directors for all regular board meetings and the Directors
can include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect of regular
board meetings are sent out in full to all Directors within reasonable time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by the Company Secretary. All Directors have access
to board papers and related materials and are promptly provided with adequate information, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, four board meetings and one general meeting were held and the individual
attendance of each Director is set out below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
Name of Directors Board Meetings AGM 2020

Executive Directors:

HON Kwok Lung 4/4 0/1
SHANG Jianguang 4/4 171
SHI Tao 3/4 0/1
LAM Toi Man 4/4 11
Bl Bo 4/4 11
SIT Lai Hei 2/4 0/1
HON Hau Wong 174 0/1
Teguh HALIM 4/4 11
Independent Non-executive Directors:

FUNG Tze Wa* 1/2 0/1
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael 3/4 11
ZHANG Bin 3/4 0/1
Rudolf Heinrich ESCHER* 172 0/1
KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk? 171 N/A
LI Ziging* 11 N/A

* resigned on 1 September 2020

#

appointed on 6 November 2020

Re-election of Directors
All Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company were appointed for a specific term and are subject to the relevant
provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company whereby the Directors shall retire by rotation.

According to Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, any Director appointed as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the following general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
Further, according to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire
from office by rotation. Every Director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. To enable
shareholders of the Company to make an informed decision on the re-election of retiring directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting, their biographies are set out in the circular of the Company dated 28 April 2021.

Continuing Professional Development
All Directors participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, so as to

ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

To facilitate the Directors to discharge their responsibilities, monthly updates and reference materials are provided to
Directors for their reading including the latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime, the business and market changes, the strategic development of the Group and the information
on directors’ training courses. Directors are also encouraged to attend outside talks and seminars to enrich their knowledge
and skills in discharging their duties.
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Directors’ participation of continuous professional development

Attending Reading monthly

outside updates and

trainings/ reference

Directors seminars materials

Executive Directors

HON Kwok Lung

SHANG Jianguang

SHI Tao

LAM Toi Man

Bl Bo

SIT Lai Hei v
HON Hau Wong

Teguh HALIM

Independent Non-executive Directors

FUNG Tze Wa*

KWONG Chun Wai, Michael v
ZHANG Bin

Rudolf Heinrich ESCHER*

KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk* 4
LI Ziging*

NSNS SN SASN

AN NN Y

* resigned on 1 September 2020

#

appointed on 6 November 2020

Any Director may request the Company to provide independent professional advice at the expense of the Company to
perform the director’s duties and responsibilities.

Tailored introduction kit will be given to newly appointed director to his individual needs. This includes meetings with other
directors and senior management of the Company and the external auditors, to enable them to have better understanding
of the Group’s business and strategy and the key risks and issues. With such information, the Directors can carry out their
duties in an informed manner. Two Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed in November 2020, and a training
on director’s responsibilities was given to them by external lawyers.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their respective training records pursuant to the CG Code.
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Communication with Directors

The Company acknowledges the importance of providing sufficient and accurate information to all members of the Board
on a timely basis so as to enable them to discharge their duties and responsibilities effectively. All Directors are entitled
to have access to board papers and relevant materials. Agenda, board papers and those relevant materials are sent to all
Directors in a timely manner before the date of a board or board committee meeting, to enable the Board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it at the meetings. All Directors are provided with monthly consolidated accounts of the
Group and financial information updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the performance, financial
position and prospects of the Group. Board briefings are issued and circulated to all members of the Board when necessary
and appropriate, covering financial and operating highlights of the Group. All Directors are also provided from time to
time the latest changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practice and other regulatory regime.
The management is prepared to provide additional information and explanations if there are areas the Directors need to
elaborate.

Independent Non-executive Directors are given the opportunity to discuss issues of the Group with the Chairman in
the absence of Executive Directors. Besides, they are also given the opportunity to discuss issues of the Group with the
management in the absence of Executive Directors. The Independent Non-executive Directors, also being the members of
audit committee, regularly pay visit to major subsidiaries of the Company and meet the management of those subsidiaries.
During the visits, Independent Non-executive Directors receive presentations from the management of subsidiaries in
relation to the updated developments of those subsidiaries and review and comment on the issues concerning the internal
control and risk management systems.

Insurance for Directors and Officers

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance ("D&O Insurance”) for Directors and officers of the
Company. The Company undertakes an annual review of the Company’s D&O Insurance policy in terms of the amount of
cover, the reputation and financial strength of the potential insurer and the provisions of the insurance policy to ensure that
sufficient cover and protection are provided to the Directors and officers of the Company.

Directors’ Shareholding Interests
Directors’ interests in the securities of the Company and its associated corporations as at 31 December 2020 are disclosed in
pages 54 to 55 of this annual report.

The Board has delegated certain authority to four board committees which are established and perform their functions under
specific terms of reference. The committees are provided with sufficient resources and opportunities to seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform their responsibilities.

Normida o BOARD | Risk
oI pe COMMITTEES ' | Remuneration Management
\glommrctee Committee Committee Commitioe,

Audit Committee
The details of the audit committee of the Company and its work performed during the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out on pages 59 to 60 of this annual report.
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Risk Management Committee
The details of the risk management committee of the Company and its work performed during the year ended 31 December

2020 are set out on pages 67 to 71 of this annual report.

Remuneration Committee
The Company has established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 23 August 2005 in

compliance with the Listing Rules, terms of reference of which have been adopted by the Board of the Company and are
consistent with the requirements of the CG Code. The full version of the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
is available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises following members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk (Committee Chairman)
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael

ZHANG Bin

LI Ziging

Executive Directors
HON Kwok Lung
SHANG Jianguang

The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors'’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Director and senior management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no Director
or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee also reviews the
main elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for Directors and senior management from time to time, taking into
consideration of salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities, and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties.

During the year, one meeting was held. The individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Members Meetings Held
FUNG Tze Wa (Committee Chairman)* 171
KAM, Eddie Shing Cheuk (Committee Chairman)* 0/0
HON Kwok Lung 1/1
SHANG Jianguang 171
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael 11
ZHANG Bin 1771
Rudolf Heinrich ESCHER* 1771
LI Ziging* 0/0

* resigned on 1 September 2020
# appointed on 6 November 2020
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Nomination Committee
The details of the Nomination Committee of the Company and its work performed during the year ended 31 December 2020

are set out on pages 61 to 66 of this annual report.

Mr. Fong Chi Wah is the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company. The Company Secretary supports
the Chairman in promoting the highest standards of corporate governance and facilitates the effective functioning of
the Board and its committees. All Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board governance matters, and is responsible for ensuring that board policy
and procedures are followed and for facilitating timely and appropriate information flows among Directors. The Company
Secretary also plays an essential role in the communication with investors, regulators and other stakeholders. The Company
Secretary and the assistant company secretary participate in a variety of trainings organized by the professional accounting
and company secretarial associations. During 2020, the Company Secretary undertook over 20 hours of relevant professional
training respectively to update his skills and knowledge in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The biography of the Company Secretary is set out in the Directors and Senior Management section on page 36 of this
annual report.

The Group has established its internal audit function during the year ended 31 December 2020 as required under CG Code
C.2 and the Group Internal Audit applies the Standards for Professional Practice of Internal Auditing set by the Institute of
Internal Auditors. The Group Internal Auditor, reporting directly to the Audit Committee of the Company and administratively
to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The Group Internal Auditor provides independent assurance as to the existence and effectiveness of the risk management
activities and controls in the Group’s business operations. The Company maintains adequate oversight of the risk through
strengthening the rules of procedures of internal control and corporate governance. The audit committee reviews the internal
audit reports and activities of the department as well as the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function, at least
annually.

Internal audit is responsible for assessing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including reporting its
findings to the Audit Committee and the senior management concerned as well as following up on the issues to ensure that
they are satisfactorily resolved. In addition, internal audit maintains a regular dialogue with the Group's external auditor so
that the parties are aware of the significant factors which may affect their respective scope of work.

The Board notes that the system of internal controls and risk management provides reasonable, but not absolute assurance
that the Group will not be affected by any event that could be reasonably foreseen as it strives to achieve its business
objectives.



2020 Annual Report

The Group's external auditor for the year ended 31 December 2020 was BDO Limited ("BDO"). The audit committee reviews
and monitors the independence of the external auditor to ensure the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards and the objectivity of the financial statements. BDO has made a written declaration to the audit
committee that they are independent with respect to the Company and that they are not aware of any matters which may
reasonably be though to bear on their independence. The following table illustrates the fees paid/payable by the Group to
BDO in the past two years for audit and non-audit services:

2020 2019
Audit services HK$4,800,000 HK$4,800,000
Non-audit services HK$2,300,000 HK$300,000
Total HK$7,100,000 HK$5,100,000

The non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly included professional services in respect of interim
financial information and very substantial disposal transaction.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board:

(@)  selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;

(b)  adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards;

() made adjustments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and

(d)  ensured that the financial statements were prepared on the going concern basis.

The Board is also responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company.

The Board is committed to present a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospects.

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the shareholders to be our goal. The Company may declare and
distribute dividends to shareholders provided that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the normal
operations of the Group.

A dividend policy has been approved and adopted (the “Dividend Policy”) in order to provide return to the shareholders of
the Company whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development.
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According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board shall take into account the following factors:

(@)  the Group's retained earnings and distributable reserves;

(b)  the Group's future earnings;

() the Group's capital requirements;

(d)  the Group's working capital requirements;

(e)  the general financial conditions of the Group;

(/)  the Group’s business development strategies and future expansion plans;
(g)  contractual restrictions on payment of dividends;

(h)  the general economic and industrial conditions; and

(i) any other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
shall be subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time. There can be no assurance that dividends will
be proposed or declared in any particular amount for any given period.

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association of the Company, an extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on
the written requisition of any two shareholders of the Company or any one or more shareholders of the Company together
holding shares carrying not less than one tenth of the voting rights at general meetings of the Company deposited at the
registered office of the Company specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionists themselves may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as result of
the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary of the Company. The Company Secretary will forward the enquiries or concerns to the CEO or the
chairman of the board committees or senior management of the Company as appropriate within their area of responsibilities
for handling.

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to
be discussed at shareholders’ meeting. Proposal shall be sent to the Board or the Company Secretary by written requisition.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal shall convene an
extraordinary general meeting by following the procedures set out above.
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The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in communicating with shareholders and the investment
community at large. In order to ensure effective, clear and accurate communications with the shareholders and investors, all
corporate communications are arranged and handled by the Executive Directors and designated senior executives according
to established practices and procedures of the Company. The Company provides up-to-date and extensive information in
its annual reports, interim reports, circulars and announcements in a timely manner and within the time limits set out in the
Listing Rules to ensure that all shareholders are able to form an accurate understanding of the business performance and
financial position of the Group and make informed investment decisions.

The Company treats annual general meetings as the principal forum for the Board to meet and communicate with the
shareholders face to face. The Chairman of the Board, all Executive Directors, chairmen of the board committees and the
external auditors endeavor to attend the annual general meetings to report the business and operation of the Group to the
shareholders, to answer questions and develop a balanced understanding of the view of the shareholders.

The most recent annual general meeting was the AGM 2020 held at Ming Room Il, Fourth Floor, Sheraton Hong Kong Hotel
& Towers, 20 Nathan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong on 30 June 2020. At the AGM 2020, separate resolutions were proposed
on each substantially separate issue including the re-election of individual directors. The procedures for demanding a poll
were explained in the circular to shareholders despatched together with the Annual Report 2019. The major items discussed
at the AGM 2020 were:

- receiving and adopting the audited consolidated financial statements and the report of the directors and the
independent auditor’s report for the year ended 31 December 2019;

- re-electing Directors and authorising the Board to fix their remuneration;

- re-appointing the auditor and authorising the Board to fix their remuneration;

- approving a general mandate to authorise the Directors to make share buy-backs; and
- approving a general mandate to authorise the Directors to allot and issue shares.

The poll results were posted on the websites of both the Company (www.irasia.com/listco/hk/citychamp) and the Stock
Exchange on the same day after the AGM 2020.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with investment community at large. Executive
Directors and designated senior management will maintain open and active dialogues with shareholders, institutional
investors, fund managers, analysts and the media. The management is pleased to help them better understand the Company
and respond to enquiries raised by them during meetings, interviews and road shows, within the constraints of information
already provided to the public.
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Key shareholders’ events in 2020 are set out below:

Events

Date

Announcement in respect of annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019

Publication and despatch of annual report 2019

AGM 2020

Announcement in respect of unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020

Announcement in respect of resignation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Publication and despatch of interim report 2020

Announcement in respect of appointment of Independent Non-executive Directors

Announcement in respect of very substantial disposal and connected transaction relating to the
disposal of sale shares and sale loans of the target companies

31 March 2020

28 April 2020

30 June 2020

28 August 2020

1 September 2020
28 September 2020
6 November 2020
16 December 2020

Important shareholders’ dates in the coming 2021 are set out below:

Events

Date

Circular in respect of very substantial disposal and connected transaction
Extraordinary general meeting

Announcement in respect of annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020
Publication and despatch of annual report 2020

Annual general meeting 2021

25 February 2021
25 March 2021
30 March 2021

28 April 2021
28 May 2021

There was no change to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Company’s website (www.irasia.com/listco/hk/citychamp) enables shareholders, investors and the general public to have
access to the information of the Company on a timely basis. Financial information and all corporate communications of the
Company are made available on the Company’s website and updated regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board may write to the Company Secretary at Units 1902-04, Level 19,

International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Material events after closure of financial year are set out in note 53 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of
the Directors

The Board of directors of the Company are pleased to present their report and the audited financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and its subsidiaries are engaged in manufacturing and
distribution of watches and timepieces, property investments, and banking and financial businesses. Details of the principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 52 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no other
significant changes to the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the financial positions of the Group as at
that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 149 to 334 of this annual report.

Pursuant to the requirements under the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”) for companies to have a “business review” section in report of the directors, a summary of the relevant sections
in this annual report is set out below for ease reference:

Required disclosures Relevant sections
a fair review of the Group’s business for the year ended Chairman’s Statement (pages 5 to 9)
31 December 2020 Management Discussion and Analysis (pages 10 to 30)

a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the ~ Risk Management Committee Report (pages 67 to 71)
Group

particulars of important events affecting the Group that have Material events after Closure of Financial Year (page 49)
occurred since the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2020 (if any)

an indication of likely future development in the Group’s business Outlook (pages 8 to 9 and pages 29 to 30)
an analysis using financial key performance indicators Management Discussion and Analysis (pages 10 to 30)

a discussion on (i) the Group’s environmental policies and Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2020
performance; and (i) the Group’s compliance with the relevant  published separately by the Company
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group

an account of the Group's key relationships with its stakeholders Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2020
that have a significant impact on the Group and on which published separately by the Company
the Group's success depends




51

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

Report of the Directors

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on pages 335 to 337 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and investment properties of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. Further details of the
Group's principal investment properties are set out on pages 338 to 339 of this annual report.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

During 2020, the permitted indemnity provision was in force for the benefits of directors. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for the directors and officers of the Group in respect of potential losses
or liabilities which the directors and officers may incur in the performance of their duties.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2020 are set out in note 52 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company and its subsidiaries did not buy back any Company’s listed shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or
otherwise) during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during the year are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium account of the Company is also available for
distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business immediately following the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had reserves of HK$1,066,942,000 being the aggregate of retained profits and share
premium account, available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie.
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In the year under review, sales and purchases attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers respectively is set
out as follows.

Percentage of
the total sales/purchases

Sales Purchases
Top five customers 15% -
Top five suppliers - 24%
The largest customer 6% -
The largest supplier - 9%

The directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Current Board members:

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, Chairman

Mr. Shang Jianguang, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Shi Tao

Mr. Lam Toi Man

Mr. Bi Bo

Ms. Sit Lai Hei

Mr. Hon Hau Wong

Mr. Teguh Halim

Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael

Mr. Zhang Bin

Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk (appointed on 6 November 2020)
Mr. Li Ziging (appointed on 6 November 2020)

Ex-directors:
Mr. Fung Tze Wa (resigned on 1 September 2020)
Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher (resigned on 1 September 2020)

In accordance with Articles 116 and 99 of the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third of the directors for the time
being and the newly appointed directors shall retire from office and be eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, provided that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years as prescribed by the Listing Rules. Accordingly, Mr. Shi Tao, Ms. Sit Lai Hei, Mr. Teguh Halim, Dr. Kwong Chun
Wai, Michael, Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk and Mr. Li Ziging will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from each of the four existing Independent Non-executive
Directors that they have met all the factors concerning their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
that there are no other factors which may affect their independence. The Board considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.



53

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

Report of the Directors

Disclosure of Directors’ Information Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules
Changes in the biographical details of the directors since the publication of the 2020 interim report are set out below:

(1) Mr. Lam Toi Man, an executive director of the Company, was appointed as an executive director of AVIC Joy Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 260) on 18 September 2020.

(2)  Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk, an independent non-executive director of the Company, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 3663) on 16 December 2020 and as a non-executive director of Panagaea
Connectivity Technology Ltd. (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1473) on 19
February 2021.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company as at the date of this report are set out on
pages 31 to 36 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in paragraphs of “Connected Transaction” below, no director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Mr. Shang Jianguang, the Executive Director and CEO, has entered into service contract with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 18 November 2011, which is subject to termination by either party by giving not less than
three-month written notice. The contract can be renewed upon both parties’ consent. Each of other Executive Directors of
the Company has entered into service contract with the Company for an initial term of two years commencing from the date
of appointment, which is automatically renewed for successive terms unless it is terminated by either party by giving not less
than two-month written notice. Each Independent Non-executive Director of the Company has entered into service contract
with the Company for an initial term of two years commencing from the date of appointment, which is automatically renewed
for successive terms unless it is terminated by either party by giving not less than one-month written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Directors’ fees can be fixed by the Directors of the Company and are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to the duties, responsibilities and performance of
the Directors and the results of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the Directors and chief executive in the share capital and
underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in the Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s long positions in shares of the Company

Number of shares held

Beneficial Corporate Family Total  Percentage of
Name of director owner interests interests interests shareholding
Hon Kwok Lung 3,500,000 3,017,389,515® 1,374,000@  3,022,263,515 69.45%
Shang Jianguang
(executive director and
chief executive officer) 5,300,000 - - 5,300,000 0.12%
Shi Tao 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.11%
Lam Toi Man 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000 0.06%
Sit Lai Hei - 200,000,000 @ - 200,000,000 4.60%
Hon Hau Wong 1,750,000 - 200,000,000 @ 201,750,000 4.64%
Teguh Halim 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 ® 6,000,000 0.14%
Notes:

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the Company’s issued share capital of 4,351,888,206 shares as at 31 December

2020.

m

The 3,017,389,515 shares comprise of 1,640,128,000 shares held by Full Day Limited (“Full Day”), which is wholly-owned by Mr. Hon
Kwok Lung, and 1,377,261,515 shares held by Sincere View International Limited (“Sincere View"), which is owned as to 80% by Mr.
Hon Kwok Lung and 20% by his spouse.

1,374,000 shares were held by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung’s spouse, Ms. Lam Suk Ying.

The 200,000,000 shares were held by Qiangda Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fengrong Investment (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Fengrong Hong Kong”). Fengrong Hong Kong is wholly owned by Fujian Fengrong Investment Company Limited (“Fujian
Fengrong”), which is owned as to approximately 68.5% by Ms. Sit Lai Hei.

Mr. Hon Hau Wong is deemed to have an interest in 200,000,000 shares which were held by Qiangda Limited, a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Fengrong Hong Kong. Fengrong Hong Kong is wholly owned by Fujian Fengrong which is owned as to approximately
31.5% by Ms. Lu Xiaojun, the spouse of Mr. Hon Hau Wong.

3,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Teguh Halim’s wife.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive's long position in shares of the associated corporations of the
Company

Percentage of

Name of Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest shareholding

Sit Lai Hei Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited @ Corporate @ 9%

Hon Hau Wong Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited @ Family interest @ 9%
Notes:

(1) Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited (“Rossini”) is owned as to 91% indirectly by the Company and 9% by Fujian Fengrong. Rossini is
an associated corporation of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

(2) The interest in Rossini was held by Fujian Fengrong, which is owned as to approximately 68.5% by Ms. Sit Lai Hei, an Executive Director
of the Company, and 31.5% by Ms. Lu Xiaojun. Both Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Ms. Lu Xiaojun are daughters-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, an
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Hon Hau Wong, an Executive Director of the Company, being the husband of Ms. Lu Xiaojun,
is also deemed to be interested in the 31.5% interest in Fujian Fengrong.

Senior Management's long position in shares of the Company
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person had registered an interest or short position in the shares and

underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any director of the Company or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to

acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
As at 31 December 2020, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Percentage of
existing issued

Nature of interest No. of Shares capital
Sincere View International Limited Beneficial owner 1,377,261,515 31.65%
Full Day Limited Beneficial owner 1,640,128,000 37.69%
Hon Kwok Lung Corporate interest, beneficial owner and 3,022,263,515M 69.45%

family interest
Lam Suk Ying Beneficial owner and family interest 3,022,263,5150 69.45%
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Notes:

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the Company’s issued share capital of 4,351,888,206 shares as at 31 December
2020.

(1) Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and Ms. Lam Suk Ying, his spouse, are deemed to have an interest in the same parcel of 3,022,263,515 shares,
which comprise 1,377,261,515 shares held by Sincere View, 1,640,128,000 shares held by Full Day, 3,500,000 shares held by Mr. Hon
Kwok Lung and 1,374,000 shares are held by Ms. Lam Suk Ying. The shareholding structure was summarised in the following chart:

0.03%
Lam Suk Ying
/ 20%
Sincere 31.65%
View
——-—  Company
80%
o) o)
L00% o, 37:69%
Hon Kwok Lung
0.08%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other than the directors and chief executive of the Company,
whose interests are set out in the section headed "Directors’, chief executive’s and senior management’s interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position in shares and underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

During the year, the Group conducted the following transaction with connected person of the Company. This transaction
constituted very substantial disposal and connected transaction of the Company and is subject to reporting requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 16 December 2020, after trading hours, the Company (as the vendor), Tycoon Idea Global Limited (the “Purchaser”,
which is an associate of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and therefore connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules) and
Sincere View International Ltd. (the “Purchaser’s Guarantor”) entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to sell, and the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to acquire, all the issued
shares of (the “Sale Shares”) and the entire sum owing to the Company (the “Sale Loans”) by each of the following target
companies: International Volant Limited, EB Brand Limited, Jia Cheng Investment Limited, Joyful Surplus International
Limited, Sharptech International Limited, Unique Leader Limited and Sure Best Management Limited at consideration
comprising (i) the consideration for the Sale Shares of HK$1.5 billion; and (i) the consideration for the Sale Loans of HK$2.03
billion (being the face value of the Sale Loans as at 30 June 2020), to be paid by the Purchaser (or its nominee(s)) to the
Company (or its nominee(s)), subject to adjustment at completion of the transaction. The gross proceeds to be received by
the Company shall be HK$3.53 billion, which will be settled in four stages by the Purchaser by (i) a cashier order issued by
a licensed bank in Hong Kong, (ii) a banker’s draft drawn against a licensed bank in Hong Kong, (iii) by telegraphic transfer
to the designated bank accounts of the Company (or its nominee(s)) or as the Company may direct in writing, or (iv) by such
other method as the Purchaser and the Company agree in writing.

56



57

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

Report of the Directors

The connected transaction was approved by independent shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 25 March 2021. Pursuant to the terms of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the completion of transaction is subject
to the satisfaction or waiver (where applicable) of a number of conditions and, accordingly, may or may not proceed. The
transaction is not yet completed up to the date of this report.

Details are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 16 December 2020 and 25 March 2021 and circular of the
Company dated 25 February 2021.

There is no conversion or subscription rights under any convertible securities, warrants or options or similar rights issued or
granted by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year or subsisted at the end of the year. In addition, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company, or existed during the year.

During the year under review, no Director is considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than those
businesses to which the Directors were appointed as directors to represent the interest of the Company and/or the Group.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company’s
shares which are in the hands of the public represented approximately 25.49% of the Company's total issued share capital as
at the date of this report, which satisfies the requirement of the Listing Rules.

The Board is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance practices. A report on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out on pages 37 to 49 of this annual report.

The Board has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by
the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with all the Company’s Directors, the Company has ascertained that all of its
Directors have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2020.
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On 16 July 2019, the Company and a syndicate of banks (the “Syndicated Banks”) entered into a facility agreement (the
“Syndicated Loan Agreement”), with Hang Seng Bank Limited (“Hang Seng”) as the mandated lead arranger, pursuant to
which the Syndicated Banks have agreed to grant a term loan facility in the amount up to US$150,000,000 (the “Syndicated
Loan”) to the Company for a term of 36 months.

Pursuant to the Syndicated Loan Agreement, it will be an event of default if (1) Mr. Hon Kwok Lung (“Mr. Hon") together with
his direct family members and Ms. Sit Lai Hei (the “Hon Family”) fail to maintain (i) directly or indirectly, at least 60% of the
beneficial shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company; or (i) control over the management and business
of the Company and its subsidiaries (excluding Bendura Bank AG and its subsidiaries and Shun Heng Finance Holding (Hong
Kong) Limited and its subsidiaries); or (2) Mr. Hon (or another member of the Hon Family) is not the chairman of the Board
of the Company. On and at any time after the occurrence of such event which is continuing, Hang Seng as the agent may,
and shall if so directed by the Syndicated Banks whose commitments aggregate 66%/5% or more of the total commitment, by
notice to the Company, (i) cancel the commitments (and reduce them to zero); (i) declare that all or part of the Syndicated
Loan, together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or outstanding be immediately due and payable; (iii)
declare that all or part of the Syndicated Loan be payable on demand; and/or (iv) exercise or direct Hang Seng as the security
agent to exercise any or all of its rights, remedies, powers or discretions under the Syndicated Loan Agreement.

Details are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 16 July 2019.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the auditor of the Company the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 and has also discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters including the review of
the accounting practices and principles adopted by the Group.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Hon Kwok Lung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) in 1999 in compliance with the Listing Rules,
terms of reference of which have been adopted by the Board of the Company and are consistent with the requirements of
the CG Code. The full version of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee currently comprises following members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk (Committee Chairman)
Kwong Chun Wai, Michael

Zhang Bin

Li Ziging

The composition and members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee, under the delegation of the Board, is responsible for, including but not limited to, making
recommendations on the appointment of external auditor, reviewing independence of external auditor and effectiveness of
audit process, monitoring integrity of the Company’s financial information, overseeing financial reporting, risk management
and internal control systems of the Company, reviewing the Group’'s financial and accounting policies and practices, etc. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its responsibilities.

Work Done in 2020

During 2020, two meetings were held and the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Members Meetings Held
Fung Tze Wa (Committee Chairman)* 1/2
Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk (Committee Chairman)* 0/0
Kwong Chun Wai, Michael 2/2
Zhang Bin 2/2
Rudolf Heinrich Escher* 1/2
Li Ziging* 0/0

* resigned on 1 September 2020

#

appointed on 6 November 2020

The key members from the Finance Department of the Company and representatives of the external auditor attended all
meetings to report and answer questions about their works.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee met with the Company’s external auditor, the Board and senior
management. The Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements (including interim and annual results) and other
information to shareholders, the accounting system, the system and procedures of internal controls, works done by internal
audit, independency of the external auditor, effectiveness and objectivity of the audit process and performed other duties
set out in the terms of reference. They assisted the Board in reviewing and ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the accounting and financial reporting functions of the
Group and internal audit, company secretarial and corporate governance functions of the Company. The Audit Committee
also reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the consolidated financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2020 and the year ended 31 December 2020, and policies of internal controls on connected transactions.

It is the practice of the Company that minutes of meetings of the Audit Committee be recorded in sufficient detail of the
matters considered by the Audit Committee, decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the members or dissenting
views expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes of the Audit Committee are sent to the members within a reasonable
time after the date of the respective meeting, for their comments and records respectively. The Company Secretary is
responsible to keep all the minutes of meetings of the Audit Committee in a proper manner.
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The Company has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) on 26 March 2012 in compliance with
the Listing Rules, terms of reference of which have been adopted by the Board of the Company and are consistent with the
requirements of the CG Code. The full updated version of the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises following members:

Executive Directors
Hon Kwok Lung (Committee Chairman)
Shang Jianguang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Kwong Chun Wai, Michael

Zhang Bin

Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk

Li Ziging

The composition and members of the Nomination Committee comply with the requirements under CG Code A.5.1.

The Nomination Committee, under the delegation of the Board, is responsible for, including but not limited to, reviewing the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board, policy of Board diversity, procedures of nominating and appointing
appropriate person to be a director, making recommendations to the Board on the selection of suitable candidates
nominated for directorships, assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors, etc. The Nomination
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its responsibilities, such as seeking independent professional
advice, at the Company’s expense, where necessary.

Work Done in 2020

During 2020, one meeting was held and the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Attendance/

Number of

Members Meeting Held
Hon Kwok Lung (Committee Chairman) 11
Shang Jianguang 1/1
Fung Tze Wa* 171
Kwong Chun Wai, Michael 1/1
Zhang Bin 1/1
Rudolf Heinrich Escher* 11
Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk® 0/0
Li Ziging* 0/0

* resigned on 1 September 2020

#

appointed on 6 November 2020
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During the year, the work of the Nomination Committee included consideration of: review structure, composition and
diversity of the Board, including the appropriate balance of skills, knowledge and experience; assessment of independence
of independent non-executive directors of the Company; review of the retirement of directors by rotation at 2020 Annual
General Meeting; and recommendation to the Board of suitable candidates for appointment to the Board to fill in vacancies.

The Board has adopted the Nomination Policy in order to set out the approach to guide the Nomination Committee in
relation to the selection and recommendation of candidates for directorship during the year.

The Nomination Policy aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the

Purpose

Nomination Criteria

Company’s business.

In assessing, selecting and recommending candidates for directorship to the
Board, the Nomination Committee will give due consideration to the factors
including but not limited to (collectively, the “Factors”):

(a)

(b)

reputation for character and integrity;

accomplishment and experience in the relevant industries in which the
Company'’s business is involved and other professional qualifications;

number of directorship the candidate holds in listed companies,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

diversity in all aspects including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise),
skills, knowledge and length of service;

contribution that the candidates can potentially bring to the Board;

whether cross-directorship or significant links with other Directors
through involvements in other companies or bodies exists, and

plans in place for the orderly succession of the Board.
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Nomination Policy

Nomination Criteria

Nomination Procedures

The above Factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive and
decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate any person,
as it considers appropriate.

Retiring Directors, save for those who have served as independent non-
executive Directors for a period of nine consecutive years, are eligible for
nomination by the Board to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
If an independent non-executive Director serves more than nine years,
his/her further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by the shareholders of the Company. The circular to the
shareholders accompanying that resolution should include the reasons
why the Board believes he/she is still independent and should be eligible
for re-election. For the avoidance of doubt, (a) the nine-year period for
determining the eligibility of an independent non-executive Director for
nomination by the Board to stand for election at a general meeting would
count from his/her date of first appointment as an independent non-
executive Director until the date of the forthcoming annual general meeting
when his/her current term of service will expire at the end of that meeting;
and (b) an independent non-executive Director who has been serving on the
Board for a period of nine consecutive years or more may continue to hold
office until expiry of his/her current term.

In addition to the Factors, the Nomination Committee will assess, select and
recommend candidates for the position of the independent non-executive
director of the Company by giving due consideration to the factors including
but not limited to those set out in Rules 3.10(2) and 3.13 of the Listing Rules
(as amended from time to time).

The Board may from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director or the Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board.

The Nomination Committee will recommend candidates of directorship to
the Board in accordance with the following procedures and process:

(@) the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such
as referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from third-party agency firm and proposals from shareholders of the
Company with due consideration given to the Factors;

(b) the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party reference
checks;

(c) the proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information for the Nomination Committee’s consideration.
The Nomination Committee may request the candidate(s) to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary;
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(d) upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written
resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board
for appointment;

(e) the Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of
remuneration package of such selected candidate;

() the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation
to the Board in relation to the proposed appointment, and where a
non-executive Director is considered, the Remuneration Committee will
make the recommendation to the Board on the proposed remuneration
package;

(9) the Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed
by the members of the Board who are not members of the Nomination
Committee;

(h) the Board will thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment or
a shareholder circular will be issued and sent to shareholders of the
Company in order to provide information of the candidates nominated
by the Board to stand for election at a general meeting and to invite
nominations from shareholders (as the case may be);

(i) ashareholder can serve a notice to the Company within the lodgement
period of its intention to propose a resolution to elect a certain person
as a Director, without the Board’s recommendation or the Nomination
Committee’s consideration and nomination, other than those
candidates set out in the shareholder circular. The particulars of the
candidates so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for information
by a supplementary circular; and

() all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the
consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other similar
filings requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the
appointment as Director, as the case may be) to be filed with the
Companies Registry of Hong Kong and updating the Register of
Directors of the Company. The Director shall consent to the public
disclosure of their personal data on any documents or announcements
in the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their
appointment as a Director.

— The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
appointment of Directors and its recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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The Board has also adopted the Board Diversity Policy in order to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

Vision

Policy Statement

Measurable Objectives

Review

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members to enhance the quality of its performance. The Company upholds that
a high performing board is one that composes directors with the combination of
competencies and diversity of perspectives aligning with the Company’s strategy
and objectives, and which is in the best position to deal with the key issues that
the Company faces.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, independence from or relationship with other members
of the Board, experience (professional or otherwise), skills, knowledge and
length of service. All board appointments will be made on a merit basis but
the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
independence from or relationship with other members of the Board, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board. The Board's composition (including gender, ethnicity, age,
length of service) will be disclosed in the corporate governance report annually.

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions
that may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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In assessing, selecting and recommending suitable candidates to fill in vacancies for directorship to the Board during the
year, the Nomination Committee followed the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee
considered, including but not limited to, the candidate’s social diversity (e.g. gender, race and age diversity), professional
qualifications, regional and industry experience, reputation and integrity, potential contribution bring to the Board, the
factors set out in Rules 3.10(2) and 3.13 of the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time), etc. The Company upholds that
a high performing board composes directors with the combination of competencies and diversity of perspectives aligning
with the Company'’s strategy and objectives, and which is in the best position to deal with the major issues that the Company
faces.

The Company notes increasing diversity at the board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objective and its sustainable development. The Nomination Committee recommended to the Board on the appointment of
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk and Mr. Li Ziging as independent non-executive directors of the Company during the year to
fill vacancies caused by resignations due to other business engagements. Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk has over 24 years of
experience in auditing, professional accounting and worked for several Hong Kong listed companies of various industries and
served senior roles in financial management and secretarial functions. He is currently independent non-executive director of
several Hong Kong listed companies. His experience and knowledge in various professions would certainty help the Board in
terms of, among others, chairing the Audit Committee and giving opinions from a younger perspective.

Mr. Li Ziging is a senior economist. He served as a cadre of the Foreign Exchange Division and Deputy Director of the
Information Department of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange of the People’s Republic of China and as the Vice
President and Party Committee Member of China Everbright Bank. His extensive experience in the banking industry is in line
with the banking and financial businesses of the Company, in which the Company is increasing focused. It is believed that two
new independent non-executive directors can make positive contribution to the development of the Company'’s strategies
and policies through independent and constructive comments.
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The risk management committee of the Company (the “Risk Management Committee”) is currently comprises following
members:

Executive Directors

Sit Lai Hei (Committee Chairman)
Shi Tao

Lam Toi Man

Bi Bo

AUTHORITY AND DUTIES

The Risk Management Committee, under the delegation of the Board, oversees the Group’s risk management system, and
conducts periodic reviews of such system to minimise potential risks that may occur and ultimately ensure good corporate
governance practice. In accordance with the Group's development strategy, we have established a risk management system
covering all business segments to assess and manage various risks in the Group's business activities.

- assist the Board to evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives

- ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management systems; oversee
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management systems of the Group

- ensure that management provides confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems
- oversee the Group’s risk management systems on an ongoing basis, and ensure that a review of the effectiveness of
the Group's risk management systems is conducted at least once annually, which should cover all material controls,

including financial, operational and compliance controls

- identify and consider significant risks to which the Group is exposed, and develop plans and measures to mitigate such
significant risks

- review the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, and the Group's ability to respond to changes in its
business, the external environment and new risks from time to time

- report to the Board on any material adverse findings related to risk management of the Group, and make
recommendations for improvement

Work Done in 2020

During 2020, two meetings were held and the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

Sit Lai Hei (Committee Chairman) 2/2
Shi Tao 2/2
Lam Toi Man 2/2

Bi Bo 2/2
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Risk Assessment

Risk assessment is the process of identifying and evaluating risks and determining how to manage these risks. At every level
within the Group are both internal and external risks that could prevent the accomplishment of established objectives. Ideally,
management should seek to prevent these risks. However, sometimes we cannot prevent the risk from occurring. In such
cases, we decide whether to accept the risk, reduce the risk to acceptable levels, transfer the risk through taking out insurance
or avoid the risk. To have reasonable assurance that the Group will achieve its objectives, we ensure each risk is assessed and
handled properly.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The following risks are the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and the Board will monitor the situation closely
and adopt any necessary risk mitigation measures.

Key Challenges o Numerous challenges for both macro-economic outlook and market conditions,
domestically or globally may result in a decrease in consumer spending in watches
and may lead to a material adverse effect upon the Group’s business and results of

operations
Key Controls o Redefine the strategic mix to deal with the ever-changing economy
o Closely monitor the impact of the recent economic trend
o Explore different revenue streams and value-added services for our customers

Key Challenges For the watch industry
o Rapid changing market trends and competition amongst different players domestically
or globally
o Highly competitive market, and the pricing of and demand for our watches are greatly
affected by the intensity of competition
o Strong competitive edge in terms of financial positions, technology, design, customer

relationship of our competitors
For the financial industry

o Intense competition
Key Controls For the watch industry
U Strengthen our products, distributions and our marketing as a whole

For the financial industry

o Maintain a strong team of compliance, risk management and internal audit so that it can
remain a secure and sustainable institution

Key Challenges o Reshape the traditional distribution model of the segment of watches and timepieces
Key Controls U Invests providently to maintain its competitive competence across all e-commerce
platforms
o Invests in e-commerce and new marketing approaches, such as social media and mobile

marketing in the foreseeable future
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Key Challenges o Fluctuate of the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument due to changes in
market interest rates

o Manage by taking into account market conditions and controlled at a reasonable level

Key Controls o Keep monitoring the trend of interest rate of the global capital markets and adjust the

mix of fixed-rate interest-bearing loans accordingly

. Optimize the maturity structure of deposits and take the initiative to manage sensitive
gaps in interest rates for the overall objective of achieving steady growth both in net
interest income and economic value within a tolerable level of interest rate risk

Key Challenges o Sales are dominated in Renminbi and some of our purchases are made in other
currencies such as Swiss Francs
o Fluctuate in exchange rates of foreign currencies may affect our customers’ purchasing
power and their wiliness to purchase watches
o Affects the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument
Key Controls o Monitors the foreign exchange exposure continuously

Key Challenges o Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in imposition of conditions
on or the suspension of sales or seizure of products, or significant penalties or claims.
In the event that the countries in which we operate increase the stringency of such laws
and regulations, our operating costs may increase and we may not be able to pass these
additional costs onto our customer

Key Controls J Reviews the Group’s compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements
including the internal rules and directives, the Stock Exchange Code, the Listing Rules,
the Companies Ordinance and the Securities and Futures Ordinance during the process
of reviewing the financial statements

o Engage external legal advisors to assist in managing the legal risks

Key Challenges o Insufficient protection with various government authorities of the different jurisdictions
in which we conduct business

Key Controls o Dedicate to work with professionals to protect our intellectual property rights all over
the world

Key Challenges o Potential of loss resulting from impact of external events and/or inadequacies in the
areas of internal processes, manpower and systems

Key Controls J Achieve “industrial strength” process and standards for all activities, and benchmark
practices against peers, other industries and regulatory requirements
o Manage by means of internal control procedures and directives
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For the non-banking and financial businesses

Key Challenges

Key Controls

Large proportion of customers’ credit terms are mainly on credit and the credit period
is generally for a period of one to six months for major customers

Affect the account receivable by the general economic conditions in the geographies in
which the Group operates

For the banking business

Determines based on the combination of the internal and external credit rating,
the average debt recovery, peer review information and comparison with publically
available date

Subject to concentration risk

For the non-banking and financial businesses

Trades only with recognized and creditworthy parties in order to minimize the credit risk
Set limits on the exposure to any counterparty and credit risk
Follow up the delinquent account receivable based on established internal system

For the banking business

Grants collateralized loans generally

Approves and monitors the loans by the relevant managers, the credit committee and
ultimately the board of the directors of Bendura Bank

Implements a framework to provide a holistic view of the credit risks, which assess credit
risks against key criteria

Employs the standardized processes to oversee compliance with the risk requirements
Monitor the financial position of the borrowers regularly

Key Challenges

Key Controls

Fluctuate of the fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument due to the
changes in its market price, other than those unlisted equity investments held for
strategic purposes and those valued at quoted market prices at the end of reporting
period

Monitor the price fluctuation of the listed equity instruments

Establish appropriate exit strategies

Key Challenges

Key Controls

Insufficient financial resources available to meet our obligation as they fall due, or we
only access these financial resources at excessive cost

Entered into a Facility Agreement (US$150,000,000) for 3 years with Hang Seng Bank
Limited for re-financing purpose

Maintain adequate liquidity at all times in all geographical locations and for all
currencies, and hence to be in a position to meet obligations as they fall due

Analyze Liquid assets, liquidity coverage ratio and leverage ratio against the regulatory
requirements and present to the Board and senior management on a regularly basis
Projects cash flows in major currencies and consider the level of group’s liquidity
management policy
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Key Challenges o Fail to meet the changing consumer preferences and market trends, slow-moving
inventory and volume of obsolete will increase, and either sell off such inventory at a
lower price or write off such inventory, in the event of which our performance may be
materially and adversely affected

Key Controls ° Enhance sales efficiency at distribution outlet level
° Improve overall inventory management with more rapid information exchange between
the distribution outlet, the regional sale office and the headquarters to maintain
inventory at an optimal level

Key Challenges o Subject to concentration risk if the bond portfolio is not diversified
Key Controls o Composed of bonds with different maturity, geography, segment and currency for the
bond portfolio of Bendura Bank
o Analyse the risk concentration on assets and liabilities sides
o Present the report on different attributes of the bond portfolio to the Board and senior

management on a monthly basis

Key Challenges o With the COVID-19 raging globally in 2020, economic outlook remains gloomy and
shrouded in uncertainties
o COVID-19 resulted an electronic new century had implied a risk of privacy and security
issue on the usage
Key Controls J Continuing to monitor closely the development of the Epidemic and assess its impact
on the Group's operations
o Owing to the further decline of revenue from physical distribution, the group is even
more aggressively expand the revenue from e-commerce
o The group conducts the business with the risk of privacy and security in mind

o The group also invest to improve the IT
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CITYCHAMP WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP
LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Citychamp
Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (the” Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 149 to 334, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Impairment assessment on goodwill and intangible assets
Refer to notes 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively and the significant accounting policies in notes 4.6, 4.7 and
4.12 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had goodwill and intangible
assets with carrying amounts of HK$1,144,071,000 and HK$54,415,000
respectively arising from the acquisitions of bank, financial and watch
businesses.

Management will perform impairment assessment on the amount of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives at least annually,
and will perform impairment assessment when there is an indication that
an intangible asset with definite useful lives may be impaired. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, management assessed the recoverable
amount of these assets based on higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use. These assets were allocated to cash generating
units ("CGU"), and the recoverable amount of each CGU was determined
by management based on either value-in-use calculations using cash flow
projections or fair value less cost of disposal.

The impairment test involves significant judgements and assumption
by the management under the value-in-use calculation and the
determination of fair value less cost of disposal.

Management concluded that, based on the impairment assessment, no
impairment losses would be recognised for the year.

Our response
Our procedures on the management's impairment assessment on
goodwill and intangible assets included:

(i) Assessing the reasonableness of market data, discount rates and
growth rates applied in determining the recoverable amount;

(i)  Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumption based on
our knowledge of the business and industry; and

(i)  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of these budgets.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in the regard.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number P06162
Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —Z —TF + - A=1+—HILFE

TSR A E R B AR A A

2020 2019
—E_EF —ET—NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TET FHT
Interest income from banking business SRITE 2 R B IA 156,731 220,821
Interest expenses from banking RITEBZH B
business (28,703) (37,359)
Net interest income from banking SBITEB ZFE WA FHE
business 7a 128,028 183,462
Service fees and commission income RITEBZRBER
from banking business e WA 258,001 280,627
Service fees and commission expenses  RITF %2 IRTEE &
from banking business HeERX (61,007) (68,066)
Net service fees and commission RITEBZ2REBERES
income from banking business WA FEE 7b 196,994 212,561
Trading income from banking business RT3 2 2 HUA 7c 21,702 57,230
Service fees and commission income SREBZRBER
from financial business e A 7d 10,721 3,195
Interest income from financial business SRR 2 FBUA 7d 184 165
Sales of goods from non-banking and FERMITRERMERZ
financial businesses EmiHE A 7e 1,405,812 2,249,737
Rental income from non-banking and FEMITRERMER 2
financial businesses A UA 7e 11,108 9,915
Total revenue AL PN 1,774,549 2,716,265
Cost of sales from non-banking and ERITREMES 2
financial businesses HER A (647,405) (1,004,030)
Other income and other net H AU A R E b U w5 sk
gains or losses B85 8 98,333 104,393
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDIHE A (550,428) (817,889)
Administrative expenses THEHR (728,432) (777,114)
Share of loss of joint ventures BlIEE & EEE 25 (494) (1,343)
Share of profit of associates FE (G B = A B A 26 3,180 17,675
Finance costs from non-banking FRITEBZHBER
business 9 (82,956) (95,320)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BREFERAT (BE) 8 10 (133,653) 142,637
Income tax expense FriS i & 11 (25,176) (71,456)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FE),wFl (158,829) 71,181
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2020 2019
- —EhF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
liks3 THET T
Other comprehensive income Ht2EEA
Item that will not be subsequently TERBEEHHEE R
reclassified to profit or loss M EsiEZEE
— Remeasurement of net defined — B EEREENE
benefit obligations ESEEE] 15.2 3,646 2,490
— Change in fair value of financial —RAVEFFAEME
assets at fair value through other HBAZ &@EE
comprehensive income N EEE) 20 47,933 (204,233)
51,579 (201,743)
Items that may be subsequently AN BREF DRSS
reclassified to profit or loss M EE ZIE B
— Exchange differences on —HBE2IRE L
translation to presentation bE 5L ERR
currency 279,862 (91,282)
— Share of exchange differences on —[E(EE S N B E
translation of associates HAERE 26 (490) (108)
— Release of exchange reserve to —PA & — BT
profit or loss upon disposal of A A i B I EE
a subsidiary B =R (405) =
278,967 (91,390)
Other comprehensive income for AEEHME2EBA
the year 330,546 (293,133)
Total comprehensive income for AEEZHEBALE
the year 171,717 (221,952)
(Loss)/profit for the year AT AL EERAEE (B
attributable to: 8) a7
Owners of the Company RRARFER A (169,233) 44,246
Non-controlling interests ISR AE o 10,404 26,935
(158,829) 71,181
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TSR A E R B AR A A

2020 2019
—E-EH —E-hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
liks3 THERT FHET
Total comprehensive income for UTATEEAFESZE
the year attributable to: WA
Owners of the Company VINNETE Y =B 164,456 (243,713)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR 7,261 21,761
171,717 (221,952)
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable ZAATEE AEBEESR
to owners of the Company (BR]) BF 14
HK(3.89) cents HK1.02 cents
— Basic —EX (3.89) &l 1.02 7811l
HK(3.89) cents HK1.02 cents
— Diluted — 8 (3.89) &l 1.0278 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI R

As at 31 December 2020 R=—ZE—ZFF+—-_HA=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —h&E
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B =E F#&T T
Assets EE
Cash and deposits B RIFR 17 5,612,645 4,897,246
Due from clients JE W = P 5RI8 18 2,463,225 2,093,250
Due from banks V U ER1T 3R I8 18 5,466,260 4,901,198
Trading portfolio investments %%ﬂé\&ﬁ 19 80,310 227,903
Financial assets at fair value through BRATFEFAREMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ & REE 20 470,794 422,861
Derivative financial assets TTESRMEE 21 29,224 10,275
Trade receivables JiE Y BR 3K 22 391,747 478,262
Other financial assets at amortised cost 1% $5 5 A 51| BR 2
Hih e g &EE 23 1,449,886 1,307,960
Inventories FE 24 2,255,553 2,257,966
Income tax recoverable A] U [ B 15 At 2,299 7,706
Interests in joint ventures FriE& &bk 25 602 1,096
Interests in associates FRiG B & A Al = 26 113,176 115,486
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BB REE 27 1,270,726 1,148,049
Investment properties REY 28 195,427 182,186
Intangible assets B AE 29 54,415 52,089
Gooduwill EES 30 1,144,071 1,065,051
Deferred tax assets BERRIEE = 39 13,961 11,626
Other assets Hih&EE 31 370,874 416,871
Total assets HWEE 21,385,195 19,597,081
Liabilities =L
Due to banks JESER1TFRIA 2,639 17,968
Due to clients i3 H%)ﬁm 32 13,965,477 11,963,052
Derivative financial liabilities PTES/REE 21 31,334 54,788
Trade payables JE 1 BR X 33 360,624 411,427
Contract liabilities EHaE 34 13,824 18,565
Income tax payables &t PR B 36,799 55,577
Borrowings BE 36 1,564,822 1,740,362
Provisions B 37 368 =
Lease liabilities HEERE 38 57,570 83,975
Deferred tax liabilities EREFIBEE 39 55,377 59,881
Due to a shareholder B —RIRE 2 FIA 46 12,000 12,000
Due to directors FEfEERIB 46 21,233 22,241
Other liabilities HEMBE 40 526,901 496,356
Total liabilities waE 16,648,968 14,936,192
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2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P &E FET T T
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners of AAREE AEGLER
the Company

Share capital [N 41 435,189 435,189
Reserves & 42 3,983,490 3,819,883
4,418,679 4,255,072
Non-controlling interests IEVE R 317,548 405,817
Total equity EEERE 4,736,227 4,660,889
Total liabilities and equity EERESHAEE 21,385,195 19,597,081

The consolidated financial statements on pages 149 to 334 were F149E 3B B2 EAMBREAR S - —F=
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March A=+ HEEE &4 E R FETZE  THA T

2021 and are signed on its behalf by: EEREREZ:
Hon Kwok Lung Shang Jianguang
BEE BmEX
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERSER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HlZ —ZT —TF + —A=+—HIEFE

Equity atributable of the Company
RRTRE \EfER

Fair value
through ~ Revaluation
other  reserve for

Share Goodill comprehensive property, Non-
Share premium Other arising on Statutory Exchange income plant and Retained controlling Total
capital account* resenve*  consolidation® resenve* reservet resenve®  equipment* profits* Total interests equity
BOTE
AR 0% BB
v 5akE 30N Rtk
s BEE  ARER ELsER REER JIERE BT EGER RERA o FERER  ERER
HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TAL TARL TERL TARL TR TRL TARL TAL TRL TRL TR TEL
note 41) note 42 note 42 note 42) (note 42) (note 42) note 42) note 42)

()  (Ew) () (Ee) R (WEw) () (WiEw)

Balance at 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2019

Transactions with owners

Partial disposal of subsidiaries without
loss of control (note 4716)

Transaction cost for the equity
transactions (note 47()

Deened acqisiion of interest
in subsidiaries (note 47(c)

Dividends paid to non-controllng
interests

Net investment from non-controlling
interests

H=B-\Et=AZ1-AR

“3-hE-A-Bzet

RERARR
PALENBRARTAE
1aliE (Ri3E47(0)
BRRBNRARE
41d)
BRhENBATES
(Wt
AR ERRRRE

KesahRE RARE

682,028

3330449 4439791 369700 4809491

= 63928 47483 m3n
- (4,887) - (4.887)
- ()] (1,443 (1,490
- - (31,255) (31,259)

- - (389) (389)

Total transactions with owners

RREARZAR

- 58,994 14,35 73350

Comprehensive income

Profitfor the year

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations

Change in fair value of financial assets
atfair value through other
comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation to
presentation currency

Share of exchange differences on
translation of associates

ELLON
RERER
ELETTON

EfftERRENAR

BAFETAABZENAZ
SBEENTEEY

BES]IEREL,
EiZR
EEBEARELZE

705 (530 10322 (18623) 127,84
63,928 - B _ }
(4887) - - - -
) - - - -
56,994 - - - -
- - - - (204,233
- - - e -
- - - (108) -

442 442 26935 71,181

435 435 (1,866) 2490

= (204.233) - (204.233)
- (87.974) (3,308) (%1,282)

- (108) - (108)

Total comprehensive income
for the year

AERRENALE

- - - (88,082 (204.233)

48602 (243.113) 21,761 (221952)

Appropriation to statutory reserve

BEDEERE

- - 2669 - -

(2,669) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2019

R=%-RE+=A=1-R
&R

682,028

(12711) (15,300) 105,931 (274314) (17,089)

3316382 4255012 405817 4660889
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Equity attributable of the Company

ANAREARLER
Fair value
through  Revaluation
other  reserve for
Share Goodwill comprehensive  property, Non-
Share premium Other ~arising on Statutory ~ Exchange income  plant and Retained controlling Total
capital account* reserve* ~ consolidation* reservet reservet reserve®  equipment* profits* Total interests equity
RATE
FTARE  NE ER
&t GRER 2ERA G
B ERE  RMRE EtoEEr RERR JERRE: B EffERE  REEA it FERER Ri4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000. HKS000. HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000. HK$000. HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T T Thn TEn TR Thn Thn Thn TR
(note 41) (note 42) (note 42) (note 42) (note 42) (note 42) (note 42) (note 42)

(Wea)  (WEeD)  (WEe2) () (E42)  (WEQ) (WiaD)  (Wiia)

Balance at 31 December 2019and ~ M=E-AETZA=-HR
1 January 2020 Z3oFE-R-AzER 435,189 682,028 (12711 (15,300) 105,931 (274,314) (77,049) 3916 3376382 4255072 405817 4,660,889

Transactions with owners BEEARS
Deemed acquisiion of nterest BE 8

#h

in subsidiaries (note 47(a)) - - (849) - - - - - - (849) (2130) (2979)
Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - - (38,762) (38,762)
Disposal of  subsidiary (note 12) HE-THBAF (Ki12) - - - - - - - - - - (54,638) (54,638)
Total transactions with owners RREARAHE - - (849) - - - - - - (849) 95,530) (96,379)
Comprehensive income 2ERA
Profitfor the year KERER o - - - - - - - (169,233) (169,233) 10,404 (158,829)
Other comprehensive income AfE2ERA
Remeasurement of defined benefit BHRE
obligations - - - - - - - - 3919 3919 213 3,646
Change in air value of financial RATEAZHRENAL
assetsatfainvalue thoughother ~— 2HEEATEEY
comprehensive income - - - - - - 47,933 - - 47,933 - 47,933
Exchange differences on translation to
presentation currency - - - - - 282,732 - - - 282,732 (2,870) 219,862
Release of exchange resenve to
profit orloss upon disposal of a
subsidlary - - - - - (405) - - - (405) - (405)
Share of exchange differences on i
translation of associates - - - - - (490) - - - (490) - (490)
Total comprehensive income for ~ AEE2ARALE
the year - - - - - 281,837 47933 - (165,314) 164,456 7261 mni
Popropriaton tostatutory resene - BAZERER - - - - 8 - - - (278) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZB2E1ZA=1-A
288 435,189 682,028 (13,560) (15,300) 106,209 1523 (29,116) 34916 3210790 4,418,679 317,548 4,736,221
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBEERERSEARMBMRARAZ &
HK$3,983,490,000 (2019: HK$3,819,883,000) in the consolidated statement A %1 3,983,490,000/8 T (& — L& :
of financial position. 3,819,883,000/% 7T) °

” The entire balance of fair value through other comprehensive income ~ * BAFEFAEGBE2HBAREZ 2 EBEHT
reserve belongs to non-recycling portion. BIEEEED -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HlZ —ZT —TF + —A=+—HIEFE

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET T T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELEZRERE
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSRLAT (B518) %7 (133,653) 142,637
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation and amortisation P& K 10 161,873 174,866
Provision and impairment losses B RREEE 49,588 34,829
Net surplus on revaluation of investment & & ¥ % & {f 2 B/ FHH
properties 28 (9,723) (4,047)
Share of profit of associates FEAG & A B Al 26 (3,180) (17,675)
Share of loss of joint ventures EiEa & XS 25 494 1,343
Interest income from non-banking FERITER 2 F BWA
business 8 (4,222) (4,257)
Finance costs from non-banking JERITEBZHBER
business 9 82,956 95,320
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMREZ
plant and equipment W =5 8 (531) (159)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —EH B AR 2 W 12 (405) =
Dividend income e B A (10,232) (13,324)
Operating profit before working capital &2 & & B 8) Al 2 48 & i 7
changes 132,965 409,533
Increase/(decrease) in due to clients JENEREFIEE M, CR 1,900,586 (669,484)
Increase in due from clients JEU = P SRIE L N (310,110) (447,716)
(Decrease)/increase in due to banks FERFSRTTRRIA OB ) /1N (16,785) 13,461
Increase in due from banks FEWLER 1T FRIE I AN (548,913) (1,485,374)
Decrease in trade receivables JE U5 BR SRR 84,952 82,474
Decrease in inventories FERD 62,080 19,647
Decrease in cash held on behalf of clients KEFEA 2B LR (6,758) (57,295)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets HEERD, (L) 48,203 (21,671)
Increase in derivative financial assets PTES R EEE N (20,086) (2,443)
(Decrease)/increase in derivative PTESmEaE CRd)
financial liabilities (20,669) 33,922
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FEBRZR CRi ) /3 n (56,754) 86,965
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD (5,335) (12,204)
Decrease/(increase) in trading portfolio R Z#HEAE&RE R (45 10)
investments 103,062 (103,411)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities HhaEEm Ond) 18,231 (52,626)
Cash generated from/(used in) R EmEL (TR 2
operations He 1,364,669 (2,206,222)
Income tax paid B ATER (55,063) (82,739)
Net cash generated from/(used in) IEHEREL A (FFH) 2
operating activities BELFHE 1,309,606 (2,288,961)
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BREEKEEEBRA

2020 2019
—E-EH —NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
liks3 THERT FHET
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELEZRERE
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BB KRS
plant and equipment FriS A 3,014 20,112
Dividends received BEUAE 10,232 13,324
Increase in other financial R SHRCART R 2 At & &l
assets at amortised cost EEEN (154,668) (256,159)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BERE
equipment (186,069) (144,993)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BEERRITERRD ()
deposits 111,763 (111,763)
Increase in restricted bank deposits RS RITF LM = (1,260)
Interest received from non-banking FERITEE 2 EWFS
business 4,222 4,257
Net cash outflow from disposal of a HE—HNBARRE
subsidiary R 12 (10,198) -
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFTHZHEEFE (221,704) (476,482)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHELEZRERE
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Hﬁlﬁﬁ FEIE R 47(a), (c) (2,979) (1,490)
Proceeds from partial disposal of DHEHE L Rm AR E
subsidiaries without loss of control 7 I HE 2 BT S F0E 47(b) = 111,371
Transaction cost for equity transaction R HHR B 47(d) = (4,887)
Interest paid SXREAS! (82,956) (84,024)
Proceeds from borrowings & *Fﬁ?—%?& 765,148 1,479,128
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEESEN
the lease liabilities K& D (41,596) (37,480)
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (939,838) (866,520)
Dividends paid to non-controlling [ E 4% A
interests AR B (16,860) (31,255)
Reduce in investment from FEIE IR IR B R D
non-controlling interests - (389)
Repayment of corporate bonds BREAGES - (756,022)
Advances from a shareholder RE—BRRZERK - 12,000
Repayment to a shareholder BE—ZREHE = (73,000)
Advanced from directors REEE 2K 3,992 22,000
Repayment to directors BREENIE (5,000) -
Net cash used in financing activities BETE L FE (320,089) (230,568)
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2020 2019
- —EhF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHE T FET
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERBESESEYE M,
cash equivalents CR2) B8 767,813 (2,996,011)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HZEER
1 January REZEEY 4,631,702 7,639,989
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSEHTE TR
changes, net 48,080 (12,276)
Cash and cash equivalents at RTt=-ZA=+—BZELR
31 December ReZEY 5,447,595 4,631,702
Analysis of balances of cash and RERREEB/YEHRDIM
cash equivalents
Cash and deposits HERER 17 5,500,306 4,679,996
Bank overdraft RITEX 36 (52,711) (48,294)
5,447,595 4,631,702
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R IR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BZ —Z —TF + - A=1+—HILFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands. Its
registered office address is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, South
Church Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its
principal place of business is Units 1902-04, Level 19, International
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) include:

Manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces;
Property investments; and

Banking and financial businesses.

There was no significant change in the Group’s operations during
the year.

The Group's principal places of the business are in Hong Kong,
Switzerland, United Kingdom, Liechtenstein and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a)

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs - effective 1
January 2020

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new or revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (the “new or revised HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for the
Group's consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020:

Definition of a Business
Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior period. The Group has not early applied any
new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")

(b)

(Continued)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective
The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant

to the Group's consolidated financial statements, have been

issued but are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS
10 and HKAS 28

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS
Standards

2021

2022

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause®

Proceeds before Intended Use?®

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

Insurance Contracts®

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework*

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions'

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 22

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020°

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual

period beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning
on or after a date to be determined

2. EMBEBMB®RSE
TR E?

(b)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and Hong Kong Interpretation
5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current is based on rights that are in existence
at the end of the reporting period, specify that classification
is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain
that rights are in existence if covenants are complied with
at the end of the reporting period. The amendments also
introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that
settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash,
equity instruments, other assets or services.

Amendments to HKAS 16 - Proceeds before Intended
Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management. Instead, the proceeds
from selling such items, and the cost of producing those
items, is recognised in profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 37 — Onerous Contracts — Cost

of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract
comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs
that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g. direct labour and
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly
to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract).
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4, Insurance
Contracts. The standard outlines a ‘General Model’, which
is modified for insurance contracts with direct participation
features, described as the ‘Variable Fee Approach’. The
General Model is simplified if certain criteria are met by
measuring the liability for remaining coverage using the
Premium Allocation Approach.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the
revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
instead of the version issued in 2010. The amendments add
to HKFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within the
scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine
whether at the acquisition date a present obligation exists
as a result of past events. For a levy that would be within
the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event
that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an explicit
statement that an acquirer does not recognise contingent
assets acquired in a business combination.

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction with an
associate or joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, any gains or losses resulting from the loss
of control of a subsidiary that does not contain a business
are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the
remeasurement of retained interest in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture) to fair value
are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors' interests in the new associate or joint
venture.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient
to lessees in accounting for rent concessions arising as a
result of the Covid-19 pandemic, by including an additional
practical expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities to
elect not to account for rent concessions as modifications.
The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of Covid-19 pandemic and
only if all of the following criteria are satisfied:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

(b)  the reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

(c)  there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16 — Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Continued)

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be accounted
for in accordance with this practical expedient, which
means the lessee does not need to assess whether the
rent concession meets the definition of lease modification.
Lessees shall apply other requirements of HKFRS 16 in
accounting for the rent concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications would
have resulted in the Group remeasuring the lease liability
to reflect the revised consideration using a revised discount
rate, with the effect of the change in the lease liability
recorded against the right-of-use asset. By applying the
practical expedient, the Group is not required to determine a
revised discount rate and the effect of the change in the lease
liability is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect financial
reporting when a company replaces the old interest rate
benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate as a result
The
amendments complement those issued in November 2019

of the interest rate benchmark reform (the “Reform”).

and relate to (a) changes to contractual cash flows in which
an entity will not have to derecognise or adjust the carrying
amount of financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest rate
to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark rate;
(b) hedge accounting in which an entity will not have to
discontinue its hedge accounting solely because it makes
changes required by the Reform, if the hedge meets other
hedge accounting criteria; and (c) disclosures in which an
entity will be required to disclose information about new risks
arising from the Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b) New or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS Standards — Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of standards,
including:

o HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.

. HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the 10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6
of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a
financial liability, explaining that only fees paid or
received between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on other’s behalf are included.

° HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative Example
13 to remove the illustration of reimbursement
of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order
to resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise because
of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

° HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the requirement
to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the
fair value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The Group is in the progress of making assessments of the
potential impact of these new or revised HKFRSs upon initial
application.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

3.3

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “"HKFRS") issued
by the HKICPA. The consolidated financial statements also
included the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value.

Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2020, one of the financial covenants
as stipulated in the relevant agreements in respect of bank
borrowings with an outstanding principal of approximately
HK$784,630,000 was not satisfied. Accordingly, the
aforesaid bank borrowings became immediately due and
payable upon request by the lenders. HK$52,000,000
of the abovementioned balance has been fully repaid
subsequent to the reporting date and the relevant banks
have granted a waiver to the Group for the remaining balance
of HK$732,630,000 in respect of the unsatisfied financial
covenant before the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have performed a due and careful assessment on the
Group’s future liquidity and financial performance, and also
considered its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern. The directors of the Company
opined that, taking into account of (i) the relevant banks have
granted waivers to the Group; (ii) the available unutilised
banking facilities available for providing additional working
capital to the Group as and when necessary; and (iii)
expected receipt of proceeds from the proposed disposal of
subsidiaries subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations that will be
due within next twelve months from 31 December 2020.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

3.4 Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$'000”) unless otherwise stated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquire is re-measured at acquisition-
date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure non-controlling
interest that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-
related costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred
in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an asset
or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1 January
2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied HKFRS 3 (2008))
have been accounted for in accordance with the transition
requirements in the standard. Such balances are not
adjusted upon first application of the standard. Subsequent
revisions to estimates of such consideration are treated as
adjustments to the cost of these business combinations and
are recognised as part of goodwill.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition
plus such non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

4.3

4.4

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Structured entities

The collective investment instruments of the Group are
structured entities as defined under HKFRS 12. If the Group
operates such an investment instrument acting as an agent
primarily in the interests of investors, this structured entity is
not consolidated. Investments in such investment instruments
held by the Group are recognised as financial instruments. If
the Group acts as principal primarily in its own interests, the
investment instrument is consolidated.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associates are recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor's
share in the associate’s profits and losses resulting from
these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value
of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets. Accounting policies on impairment of interests in
associates are described in note 4.7 below.

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is
a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over
the relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and
at least one other party. Joint control is assessed under the
same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as
either:

o Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only the
net assets of the joint arrangement; or

J Joint operations: where the Group has both the rights
to assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

o The structure of the joint arrangement;

o The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

o The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

J Any other facts and circumstances (including any other
contractual arrangements).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above
the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the investment in
joint venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the
same way as other non-financial assets.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.6 Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired. The consideration transferred is measured at the
aggregate of fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant
cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets. A cash generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash generating unit (“CGU") to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset
will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to
below its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its
value-in-use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
o intangible assets; and

o interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating
unit (note 4.6), discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
cash generating unit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8 Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

(a)

(b)

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company'’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8

4.9

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the buildings could be measured
separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at
the inception of the lease, and other items of plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress (“CIP”), are
stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and
any identified impairment.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the year in which
they are incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Over the terms of the leases or
estimated useful life ranging
between 3 to 50 years, whichever
is shorter

Right-of-use assets

Buildings Over the terms of the leases or
estimated useful life, ranging
between 10 years and 50 years,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold Over the terms of the leases, or

improvements estimated useful life of 5 years,

whichever is shorter
6% to 20%
6% to 50%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures
and office
equipment

Motor vehicles 9% to 30%

The assets’ estimated useful lives, estimated residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

CIP, which mainly represents renovation work on buildings
and installation of machinery, is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs incurred
during the periods of construction, installation and testing.
CIP is reclassified to the appropriate class of property, plant
and equipment when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are completed.
No depreciation is provided for in respect of CIP until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

4.10 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as
an investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were held under
a finance lease.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.10 Investment properties (Continued)

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is
stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers, with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and the nature of the investment
property. The carrying amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position reflect the
prevailing market conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either change in the fair value or
the sale of an investment property are included in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

4.11 Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months.
The lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets applying
a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group measures
the right-to-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of an investment property, they are
carried at fair value.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Leasing (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS
40 and are carried at fair value.

Lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (i) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liabilities by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liabilities; (i) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-
substance fixed lease payments.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Leasing (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a
lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it
adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect
the payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying
value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the
variable element of future lease payments dependent on
a rate or index is revised, except the discount rate remains
unchanged. In both cases, an equivalent adjustment is
made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the
revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised
in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a
lease with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one
or more additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price for the additional
rights-of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as
a separate lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated
increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension
to the lease term, or one or more additional assets being
leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the discount
rate applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use
asset being adjusted by the same amount.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a
number of tenants. Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.11 Leasing (Continued)

Accounting as a lessor (Continued)

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-leases
are classified as a finance lease or as an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption, then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.

4.12 Intangible assets

(i)  Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with definite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Supplier and distribution networks 10 years
Brand names 10 years
Patents 10 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives shall not be
amortised.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

o adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

. the Group is able to sell the product;

o sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and

o expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with definite useful lives are tested
for impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment
by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (note 4.7).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Intangible assets (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount; however,
the carrying amount should not be increased above
the lower of its recoverable amount and the carrying
amount that would have resulted had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
All reversals are recognised in the profit or loss
immediately.

4.13 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
There are three measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest
are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments
are classified as FVPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit
or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables, contract
assets, financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall
is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets at amortised cost or at
FVOCI, the ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs.
However, when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For the due from clients and due from banks, except
for precious metal, ECL is determined by reference
to the estimation of the exposure at default (“EAD"),
probability of default (“PD") as well as a loss given
default (“LGD"). The 12-months and lifetime PDs
represent the probability of default occurring over
the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of
the instrument respectively. The EAD represents the
expected balance at default, taking into account the
repayment of principal and interest from the reporting
date to the default event together with any expected
drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD represents
expected losses on the EAD given the event of
default, taking into account, among other attributes,
the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is
expected to be realised and the time value of money.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or
past due.

(2) the financial asset is more than 90 days

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

In making this reassessment, the Group considers that
a default event occurs when (i) the debtor is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following
information is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

For loan commitments, the date of initial recognition
for the purpose of assessing ECLs is considered to
be the date that the group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment. In assessing whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition of a loan commitment, the Group
considers changes in the risk of default occurring on
the loan to which the loan commitment relates.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise, except for
the gains and losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other comprehensive
income with no subsequent reclassification to the
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or
loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss does
not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, borrowings and other financial liabilities
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the ECL
provision measured in accordance with principles of
the accounting policy set out in 4.13(ii); and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured,
the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss for the
year.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Financial instruments (Continued)

(viii) Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

4.14 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using weighted average basis, and in the case
of work-in-progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling
expense and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

4.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances,
demand deposits with banks, and short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in values.

4.16 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised
as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course of the
allocation of purchase price to the assets and liabilities
acquired in a business combination. They are initially
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in a comparable provision as
described above and the amount initially recognised less any
accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

4.18 Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Income tax (Continued)
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in

net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

4.19 Revenue recognition
(i) Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Revenue from contract with customers
(Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contract with customers
(Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to

(i)

consideration in exchange for services that the

Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet

unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the

Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only

the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to

transfer services to a customer for which the Group has

received consideration (or an amount of consideration

is due) from the customer.

(a)

(b)

Service fees and commission income

Service fees and commission income is generally
recognised when the corresponding service is
provided.

Service fees and commission income are
recognised at a point in time when the relevant
services such as broking services, provided
to the customers and there is no unfulfilling
performance obligation after services rendering.
Except for a few services, such as custody
account services, of which revenue is recognised
over time so as to depict the pattern of delivery
of services.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid
by the Group which result in the creation or
acquisition of a financial asset are deferred and
recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate. When a loan commitment is not
expected to result in the draw-down of a loan,
loan commitment fees are recognised.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a
point in time as when the control of the goods
has been transferred to the customer and there
is no unfulfilling performance obligation after the
acceptance of the goods.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

(i)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Interest income

Interest income arising from the use of entity
assets by others is recognised in profit or loss
based on the duration and the effective interest
rate. Interest income includes the amortisation
of any discount or premium or other differences
between the initial carrying amount of an interest
bearing instrument and its amount at maturity
calculated on an effective interest rate basis.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of financial assets
and liabilities and of allocating the interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial instrument. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, call and similar
options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and
interests paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Interest on the impaired financial assets is
recognised using the rate of interest used
to discount future cash flows (“unwinding of
discount”) for the purpose of measuring the
related impairment loss.

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on straight-line method over the term
of the relevant lease.

Dividend income
Dividend is recognised when the right to receive
the dividend is established.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans and defined benefit pension
plans.

(i) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution.

The contributions recognised in respect of defined
contribution plans are expensed as they fall
due. Liabilities and assets may be recognised if
underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they
are normally of a short-term nature.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees in
Hong Kong who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government (the “Scheme”). These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The Scheme is responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or other post-retirement benefits
beyond the employer contributions. Contributions
under the Scheme are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
PRC.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Retirement benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Defined benefit pension plans

Defined benefit pension plans define an amount of
pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position in respect of defined pension plans
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period less the fair value
of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflow using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating
to terms of the related pension obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related services.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.21 Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant of
any share-based compensation are measured at their fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference to the
share options awarded. Their value is appraised at the grant
date and excludes the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions.

Upon exercise of share options, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve and the proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
up to the nominal value of the share issued are reallocated
to share capital with any excess being recorded as share
premium. When the share options are lapsed, forfeited or
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

4.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is
deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

4.23 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are
recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.23 Foreign currency (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Gooduwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.24 Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issuance of share over the par value. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from the
share premium (net of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent that they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of taxes) is deducted from
equity attributable to owners of the Company until the shares
are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued any consideration received net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable
to owners of the Company.

4.25 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of
those components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major lines of business.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:
(a) manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces;
(b) property investments and (c) banking and financial
businesses.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers, if any, are carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in
its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.25 Segment reporting (Continued)
Segment assets include all assets but interests in associates,
interests in joint ventures, and certain trading portfolio
investments. In addition, corporate assets which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment, which primarily
applies to the Group's headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment and are not allocated to a segment. These include
borrowings and due to directors, a shareholder and related
parties.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to reportable
segments.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. Such estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, rarely equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

Impairment assessment of goodwill

The Group tests on an annual basis whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 4.6. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less
costs of disposal (“FVLCD"), whichever is higher. The value-in-use
calculations require the use of judgement and estimates of the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs, the timeframe
for the cash flows forecast and the suitable discount rates in
order to calculate the present value. In the process of estimating
expected future cash flows management makes assumptions about
future revenues and profits. These assumptions relate to future
events and circumstances. The actual results may vary and may
cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of goodwill
within the next financial year. Determining the appropriate discount
rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment for market risk
and for asset specific risk factors. Calculation of FVLCD may involve
the selection of valuation model, adoption of key assumption, and
input data, which are subject to management judgement. Details in
impairment assessment are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories, the Group would evaluate ageing analysis
of inventories and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
respective estimated net realisable value. The assessment of the
provision involves management judgement and estimates. Where
the actual outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of
inventories and provision charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets with definite useful lives using
straight-line method over their respective estimated useful lives,
starting from the date on which the assets are put into productive
use, in accordance with accounting policy stated in notes 4.9 and
4.12. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of the
period that the Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of these assets.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables
The Group's management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables on a forward-looking basis. The
provision matrix is determined based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade and other
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics and is adjusted
for forward-looking estimates. Other receivables is considered
12-months expected credit losses. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information such as actual or expected significant
changes in the operating results of customers, actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business and customers’ financial
position. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed by the Group’s management.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by
evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to
impairment of non-financial assets. Where an impairment trigger
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined.
The recoverable amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculation or fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD"). The
calculations of value-in-use require the use of judgement and
estimates of the future cash flows expected to arise from the
CGUs, the timeframe for the cash flows forecast and the suitable
discount rates in order to calculate the present value. In the process
of estimating expected future cash flows management makes
assumptions about future revenues and profits. These assumptions
relate to future events and circumstances. The actual results may
vary and may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
goodwill within the next financial year. Determining the appropriate
discount rate involves estimating the appropriate adjustment
for market risk and for asset specific risk factors. Calculation of
FVLCD involves the selection of valuation model, adoption of key
assumption, and input data, which are subject to management
judgement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, Switzerland,

United Kingdom, Liechtenstein and the PRC. Significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of the provision for income
taxes and the timing of the payments of related taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Warranty provision

Warrant provision is made for expenditure associated with future
variable services and repair cost related to warranty claims. The
management makes an assessment of the future costs related to
this work by using the proportion of actual tasks related to warranty
work as the basis for the calculation. The assessment of provision
involves management judgement and estimates. When the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the carrying value of warrant
provision and provision charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

Estimation of defined benefit obligations

The Group operates three defined benefit plans. Pension costs for
defined benefit plans are assessed using the projected unit credit
method in accordance with HKAS 19, Employee Benefits. Under
this method, the cost of providing pensions is charged to the profit
or loss in accordance with the advice of the actuaries who carry out
a full valuation of the plans. The pension obligation is measured
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates determined by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period based on government agency or high
quality corporate bonds with currency and term similar to the
estimated term of benefit obligations. All actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in full, in the year in which they occur, in other
comprehensive income.

Management appointed actuaries to carry out a full valuation of
these pension plans to determine the pension obligations that
are required to be disclosed and accounted for in the accounts in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimation of defined benefit obligations (Continued)
The actuaries use assumptions and estimates in determining the
fair value of the defined benefit plans and evaluate and update
these assumptions on an annual basis. Judgement is required to
determine the principal actuarial assumptions to determine the
present value of defined benefit obligations and service costs.
Changes to the principal actuarial assumptions can significantly
affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in
future periods.

Valuation adjustments on credit positions

Various factors can influence the expected credit loss allowances
for credit positions. Management considers factors such as external
rating and days past due to determine the HKFRS 9 staging
allocation. Management further estimates the exposure at default,
probability of default as well as loss given default to calculate the
expected credit losses allowance.

Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for imminent threats if in the
opinion of the responsible experts the probability that losses will
occur is greater than the probability that they will not occur and
if their amount can be reliably estimated. In judging whether the
creation of a provision and its amount are reasonable, the best-
possible estimates and assumptions as at the end of reporting
periods are applied. If necessary, these will be adjusted to reflect
new knowledge and circumstances at a later date. New knowledge
may have a significant effect to profit or loss.

As part of the normal business activities of banking business, the
Group is exposed to a wide range of legal risks. These include
in particular risks relating to litigation. The Group recognises
provisions for such litigation risks if the Group’s management and
its legal advisors are of the opinion that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount. The amount of the provisions and their
timing are by their nature subject to uncertainty. However, these
uncertainties are evaluated as being low since it was possible to
reliably estimate the individual amounts and the majority of the
recognised provisions will probably become due within one year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Research and development costs

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4.12,
costs associated with research activities are expensed in profit or
loss as they are incurred, while costs that are directly attributable
to development activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet all the requirements as set out in note 4.12.
This requires the management to make judgements to distinguish
the research phase and development phase of the projects
being undertaken. Research is original and planned investigation
undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding. Development is the application
of research, findings or other knowledge to a plan or design
for the production of new or substantially improved materials
devices, products, processes, systems or services before the
start of commercial production or use. Determining the amounts
to be expensed in profit or loss or to be capitalised required
management to make judgement, and assumptions regarding the
expected progress and outcome of the research and development
activities the future expected cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied, and also the expected period of,
probable future economic benefits. Because of the nature of the
Group'’s research and development activities the criteria for the
recognition of such costs as an asset are generally not met until late
in the development stage of the projects. Hence research costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

Right-of-use assets

The Group uses its incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when
they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease.

The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Going concern assumption

As stated in note 3.3 contain information about the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
as of 31 December 2020.

The directors of the Company have given careful consideration to
the future liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to continue as a going concern for at
least the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and to meet its financial obligations, as and when they fall due.
Taking into account of the factors as mentioned in note 3.3, the
directors of the Company opined that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations that will be due within next twelve months from 31
December 2020.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustment would have to be made to write down the carrying
value of the Group's assets to their net realisable amounts, and to
provide for further liabilities that might arise. The effect of these
potential adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Fair value measurement
A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s financial

statements require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair
value. The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are
(the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

- Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2: observable inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1; and

- Level 3: unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the
lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect on the
fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items between
levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures the following items at fair value:

— Due from banks — precious metals (note 18)

— Trading portfolio investments (note 19)

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (note 20)

— Derivative financial assets (note 21)

— Derivative financial liabilities (note 21)

- Investment properties (note 28)

— Due to clients — precious metals (note 32)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value

measurement of the items above, please refer to the respective
notes.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker is identified as executive
directors. The executive directors have identified the Group's
product and service lines as operating segments as follows:

(@)  manufacturing and distribution of watches and timepieces;
(b)  property investments; and

(c)  banking and financial businesses.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic decisions
are made on the basis of adjusted segment operating results.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

2020 BE-FHF
Banking
Watches and Property and financial
timepieces  investments businesses Unallocated Total
E&HR BITR
KatEm NERE SRER KA fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TER TER
Segment revenue: AEBRA
Net interest income from banking BT EH 2 FISMAFE
business - - 128,028 - 128,028
Net service fees and commission BIEB RBERRES
income from banking business WAFE - - 196,994 - 196,994
Trading income from banking business #1752 X 54 A - = 21,702 = 21,702
Service fees and commission income ~ £BEHZ RBE
from financial business RESKA - - 10,721 - 10,721
Interest income from financial business £ B 1% 2 il 8 A - - 184 - 184
Sales of goods from non-banking and ~ FE4R1T & B ETE
financial businesses Em#ERA 1,405,812 - - - 1,405,812
Rental income from non-bankingand ~ FESR1T R & BEE R
financial businesses ZBERA - 11,108 - - 11,108
Total revenue A A 1,405,812 11,108 357,629 - 1,774,549
Segment results PEEE (51,611) 16,067 22,531 - (13,013)
Unallocated corporate income and ~ RABAFRAR
expenses, net i b - - - (40,370) (40,370)
Share of loss of joint ventures BELEER - - = (494) (494)
Share of profit of associates W 1 A NGibeb ] - - - 3,180 3,180
Finance costs HBER (23,863) - (543) (58,550) (82,956)
(Loss)/profit before income tax [‘fPﬁ SHAT(BE) /87 (75,474) 16,067 21,988 (96,234) (133,653)
Income tax expense ERRY (18,904) (689) (5,026) (557) (25,176)
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (58) /67 (94,378) 15,378 16,962 (96,791) (158,829)
Segment assets PEEE 4,775,170 196,708 15,560,071 - 20,531,949
Unallocated corporate assets: APRAREE:
Interests in joint ventures FhaEtEER - - - 602 602
Interests in associates FifBENaER = - - 113,176 113,176
Trading portfolio investments RHPERE - - - 29,054 29,054
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFAEEZEKA
other comprehensive income JEREE - - - 464,843 464,843
Cash and deposits BeREH - = = 151,882 151,882
Other unallocated corporate assets AR EAREE - = = 93,689 93,689
Consolidated total assets GRBEE 4,775,170 196,708 15,560,071 853,246 21,385,195
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER M
2020 (Continued) —EEE(H)
Banking
Watches and Property  and financial
timepieces  investments businesses Unallocated Total
#HER BITR
RatEm NERE SRER AOE @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
Segment liabilities PEAR 1,109,730 30,627 14,283,267 - 1542362
Unallocated corporate liabilities: ANRAREE:
Borrowings EE - - - 1,125,028 1,125,028
Amount due to a shareholder BN —2IRE 2 708 - - = 12,000 12,000
Lease liabilities HEERE - - - 19,336 19,336
Other unallocated corporate liabilities  Efti A AE AT B F - = = 68,980 68,980
Consolidated total liabilities GRlakE 1,109,730 30,627 14,283,267 1,225,344 16,648,968
Other segment information HitnBER
Interest income and other interest FEWAREMFIEHA
income 3,365 214 630 13 4,222
Expected credit losses on trade ERERRAEEBE
receivables (16,960) - - - (16,960)
Expected credit losses on LBERBEESE
other assets (826) - - - (826)
Provision of expected credit losses on  fEYTER1T R & PFE TR H
due from banks and customers EEBREE - - (278) - (278)
Provision for litigation risks, net FEREETE - - (1,907) - (1,907)
Provision for inventories GFERE (13,088) = = = (13,088)
Reversal of provision for inventories B &£ 12,819 - - - 12,819
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (121,057) - (21,611) (19,205) (161,873)
Additions to non-current assets REFTHEE 61,864 - 128,993 87 190,944
Net surplus on revaluation of RENZERZ
investment properties BHTE - 9,723 - - 9,723
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2019 —E-hEF
Banking and
Watches and Property financial
timepieces investments businesses Unallocated Total
BHER RITR
et E MERE CRER RAR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET THL FHL THL
Segment revenue: AEBA
Net interest income from banking ST EB2FISMAFE
business - - 183,462 - 183,462
Net service fees and commission RTEB REERRE
income from banking business WAFE - - 212,561 - 212,561
Trading income from banking RITEBZR WA
business - - 57,230 - 57,230
Service fees and commission income & REH 2 REE
from financial business PN - - 3,195 - 3,195
Interest income from financial SREBZFSHA
business - - 165 - 165
Sales of goods from non-bankingand ~ FEB{TRERER
financial businesses EREERA 2,249,737 - - - 2,249,737
Rental income from non-bankingand ~ FESR1T R & B
financial businesses ZHEWA = 9,915 = = 9915
Total revenue AWA 2,249,737 9,915 456,613 = 2,716,265
Segment results PEXE 106,163 8,792 198,256 - 313,211
Unallocated corporate income and ~ RABAFHRA
expenses, net RXFE - - - (91,586) (91,586)
Share of loss of joint ventures EEEEREEE - - = (1,343) (1,343
Share of profit of associates ANl - - - 17,675 17,675
Finance costs BEER (29,760) - (1,045) (64,515) (95,320)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREEHAER/ (58) 76,403 8,792 197,211 (139,769) 142,637
Income tax expense RS (45,680) (818) (24,330) (628) (71,456)
Profit/(loss) for the year AEERT/ (BE) 30723 7,974 172,881 (140,397) 71,181
Segment assets PEEE 4,991,807 182,932 13,631,441 - 18,806,180
Unallocated corporate assets: APRAREE
Interests in joint ventures Fihe et EER = = = 1,096 1,096
Interests in associates FibEE ARlER - = = 115,486 115,486
Trading portfolio investments RHMREE - = - 37,190 37,190
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RATEFF AZZARA
other comprehensive income LERBEE - - - 417,256 417,256
Cash and deposits BeRER - - - 58,998 58,998
Other unallocated corporate assets ~ Efti kAR AREE = = = 160,875 160,875
Consolidated total assets GEHEE 4,991,807 182,932 13,631,441 790,901 19,597,081
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. FTEER W
2019 (Continued) —E-hE#H)
Banking and
Watches and Property financial
timepieces investments businesses Unallocated Total
BHER HITR
T MERE TRER AR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL TET TAT TAT
Segment liabilities PEER 1,145,167 28,140 12,303,747 - 13,477,054
Unallocated corporate liabilities: AARARAE:
Borrowings EE = = = 1,329,115 1,329,115
Amount due to a shareholder R —BRE 2 FE - - = 12,000 12,000
Lease liabilties BERR - - - 37,001 37,001
Other unallocated corporate AR A
liabilties ARIBRE - - - 81,022 81,022
Consolidated total liabilities GRuak 1,145,167 28,140 12,303,747 1,459,138 14,936,192
Other segment information HtnBER
Interest income and other interest FEWAR
income At SHA 2,987 549 202 519 4,257
Expected credit losses on trade KBRS
receivables FEER (7,340) = = = (7,340)
Expected credit losses on other HipEERS
assets 513 (2,167) - - - 2,167)
Reversal of expected credit losses on & BB RAT R Z P 71IE
due from banks and customers EHEEEE - - 1,812 - 1,812
Reversal of provision for litigation BEFARR
risks, net BRER - - 394 - 394
Provision for inventories GFERE (24,263) - - (3,265) (27,528)
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH (136,503) - (19,719) (18,644) (174,866)
Additions to non-current assets NEFRBEE 128,948 = 47 525 = 176,473
Net surplus on revaluation of REMES
investment properties BT - 4,047 - - 4,047

Unallocated corporate income and expenses mainly comprised
dividend income from trading portfolio investments and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, gain
or loss on fair value changes in trading portfolio investments,
impairment of yacht and other corporate income and expenses
of the Group's headquarter which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment. Other
corporate expenses mainly included employee costs and directors’
remuneration for administrative purpose.

ADBEARPRARIHEZBRERER S
HeaREMRAHEFAREMEERAZ
TRMEEZKBWA  RZEBRERT
BEFH 2 WAk EiE  ERERENMITE
ERBREAEEDBER LS A EE
HERE M A R A K S o Bfb A S
T2EEARTHRENNEEKRARES
H M



SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group's revenues from external customers and its non-current
assets (other than financial assets and deferred tax assets) are
divided into the following geographical areas:

TEEHR 2020 Annual Report

_7_

P EER &)

REBERBINAEP ZWARIEREEE
(2 REEREEFIREERIN) IIA T
mED -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REPREFRA FREBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF —ECEH —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT BT FB7 BT
Hong Kong B8 35,076 105,007 225,976 232,366
PRC s 1,162,732 1,735,436 1,418,524 1,377,436
Switzerland Wt 7,412 28,311 464,890 445,173
United Kingdom T 48,968 78,959 15,184 19,361
Liechtenstein I s 346,724 453,253 652,561 488,356
Others Efh 173,637 315,299 1,282 1,449
1,774,549 2,716,265 2,778,417 2,564,141

The geographical location of revenues from watches and
timepieces and property investments segment are based on the
location of customers, and the geographical location of revenues
from banking and financial businesses segment are based on the
location of operations of the Cash Generating Units (“CGUs"). For
goodwill and intangible assets, the geographical location is based
on the areas of operation of CGUs. The geographical location of
other non-current assets is based on the physical location of the
assets.

The Group has a large number of customers and there is no
significant revenue that is more than 10% of the Group's revenue
derived from specific external customers for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

BEE MR EmA R ERE D BRIKRA
WE AR P IEME A% - MiR1TRE R
FB o BEH AN @ AR G EE B ([3R
DELEEM]) REMEI R - B K E
TWEENRCELEMUKEMEMRE -
H it ER B & B R LA EE B IR P
I o

AEEEFRS BE-T-_FER-
—hE+= A=t —BLEE - Mﬁﬁﬂ
R NE S AR BB 10%
ZEAKA -
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7. REVENUE

The Group is principally engaging in manufacturing and
distribution of watches and timepieces, property investments and
banking and financial businesses.

For banking and financial businesses, revenue mainly comprises
net interest income, net service fees and commission income and
trading income (notes 7(a), 7(b), 7(c) and 7(d)). For non-banking and
financial businesses, revenue mainly represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold, after allowance for returns and trade discounts
and rental income received and receivables. (note 7(e)).

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

(a) Net interest income from banking business

WA

AEB T ENFERNRAERRE RS
i MEREARRTREBES -

MBTREMEBZM S  WAEZEBIER
BIWAFEEE  RBERASWMATFEIAR
RHWA (HiE7(@) ~ 7(b) * 7(c) & 7(d)) °
MIERITREBMEBMS - WAEEHEN
BRERERZESTMEHERBEZFEUAR
B R EKRE S A (FizE7E)) °

FARZBAWT

(a) MITEBZRBWANFHE

2020 2019
=B-2F | —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T T
Interest income from banking business THRBBRESE ZRITEL
arising from: ZREWA :
Interest income — due from banks F B WA — FE YR 17 30 E 91,259 151,973
Interest income — due from clients A EUWA —ERE I8 25,899 26,840
Interest income from trading portfolio RPEEREZFBEWA
investments - 387
Interest income from mortgage loans RIS E R 2 M B A 19,240 15,824
Interest income from money market papers & ¥ M5 EE 2 FEHA 551 878
Interest income from financial assets SRMEE 2T BWA 18,963 24,955
Negative interest income/(expense) on due ENEERIEZAFE
to clients WA (FX) 819 (36)
156,731 220,821
Interest expenses from banking business ~ THIZEFTEE 2 RITHHK
arising from: ZRERX :
Interest expense on due to banks FEERITIRIE Z A B (24,437) (33,268)
Interest expense on due to clients ENEEPREZAERY (3,163) (3,551)
Interest expense for issued debt instruments B E/TER LA ZF 8% - (352)
Negative interest income on due from banks EUIRTT M E P HIE 2
and clients B F BB A (1,103) (188)
(28,703) (37,359)
Net interest income from banking business #R{T%%#% 27 B WA FH 128,028 183,462




7.

REVENUE (Continued)

(c)

(b) Net service fees and commission income from (b) MITEBZREERMASWA
banking business FREE
2020 2019
—ECZEHF —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Service fee and commission income from  FH|RERES ZBITER
banking business arising from: ZHRBEERAESWA :
Commission income from loans BERFEESA 4,215 6,935
Brokerage fees PR 54,412 30,654
Custody account fees AERFE 24,714 26,276
Commission on investment advice and asset & ZZ N EEE B HE
management 92,597 99,256
Commission income from service fees RiEE M WA 39,554 59,006
Commission income from fiduciary fees EEEASEA 413 455
Commission income from retrocession #oRAS KA 4,923 5,758
Other commission income H e WA 37,173 52,287
258,001 280,627
Service fees and commission expenses from — #R1TH 7 2 IRISE &
banking business HBe (61,007) (68,066)
Net service fees and commission income RITERZRBEER
from banking business BB AFEHE 196,994 212,561
Trading income from banking business () MITEBZXRZIWA
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Debt instruments B IAE 28 (113)
Securities Hela: 30 81
Forex and precious metals SNE K B & B 40,915 56,527
Funds HE (19,271) 735
Trading income from banking business RITEB2ZXZWA 21,702 57,230

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report
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7. REVENUE (Continued)

(d) Revenue from financial business

TSR A E R B AR A A

7.

A ()

(d) SEEHZBA

2020 2019

—ECFF | —ZFNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T T

Service fees and commission income R & RAe A 10,721 3,195
Interest income A B U A 184 165
Revenue from financial business SREKZBA 10,905 3,360

(e) Revenue from non-banking and financial

() FMITREBMEB ZWA

businesses

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Sales of goods BEmiHE 1,405,812 2,249,737
Rental income HE WA 11,108 9,915

Revenue from non-banking business and TR SEES
financial businesses Z WA 1,416,920 2,259,652




8.
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OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET GAINS OR 8. HtWAREMKHENEERFE
LOSSES
2020 2019
—EC-RF | ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHBT
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—fEHTEB ARz WS 405 =
Gain on fair value changes in trading RHpBERENATE
portfolio investments, net HE) TR 36,162 20,368
Net surplus on revaluation of investment KEYMFEERZ
properties BERFHR 9,723 4,047
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BFEMERE
equipment Z W 531 159
Bank and other interest income from non- FEMITEB2RITR
banking business H b F 8 U A 4,222 4,257
Dividend income from trading portfolio R ZHEERENRIBA
investments 1,417 1,061

Dividend income from financial assets at

RATFEFAEMEEBA

fair value through other comprehensive Z e REEZREWA

income 8,815 12,263
Sales of scrap materials FERHHE 22 152
Other operating income H A 8 & A 14,880 19,222
Government subsidies (note (a)) BT < (Mi3E @) 21,474 20,936
(Provision of)/reversal of provision for AR R 3

litigation risks (Bf) Bl (1,907) 394
(Provision of)/reversal of expected credit EUERTT R B FRIETEHEEE

losses for due from banks and clients 1B (BfH) /#E (278) 1,812
Provision of expected credit losses for other & ## $H K A FI|BR 2 H A & Bh & 2=

financial assets at amortised cost BEE B R B R E (29,348) (291)
Exchange gain, net HINE Uk 255 58 27,643 12,462
Other sundry income, net H b FEIE WA F R 4,572 7,551

98,333 104,393

(a)

Note:

received for subsidising the Group's business.

Government subsidies mainly comprised of unconditional subsidies

B e

@ BMPEIZBEEREGEEHBEA
SEEHZMPE
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9.

10. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

BREEKEEEBRA

FINANCE COSTS FROM NON-BANKING 9. FRTXRBZUBER
BUSINESS
2020 2019
=B-2F | —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T
Interest charged on corporate bonds REIBEHNEFX = 18,605
Interest charged on bank borrowings, bank  $R1T{EE « R{TAE X L HM
overdrafts and other borrowings %%E’]ﬂ 8% 79,456 69,784
Margin loan interests REEERFL 109 2,298
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 3,391 4,633
82,956 95,320

(Loss)/profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/

10. BRATBHLAT (B518) EF

BRPTSBiAT (B18) s A e Hkk GEA)

(crediting): TEI B IRIREEL
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Cost of inventories recognised as expense, ERRBAXNTFERSE
including: BFE ¢ 647,405 1,004,030
— Reversal of provision for inventories — B FEEE (12,819) -
— Provision for inventories —GFEEE 13,088 27,528
Depreciation and amortisation I8 K 5 161,873 174,866
— Depreciation for owned assets (note (a)) —BREENE (WiE@) 102,518 117,716
— Depreciation for right-of-use assets —ERAREENE
(note (a)) (MF5E (@) 57,571 55,434
— Amortisation of intangible assets (note (b)) — R & E# 5 (b)) 1,784 1,716
Short term lease expenses EHEERX 18,014 16,892
Auditor’s remuneration = ERT N & 4,800 4,800
Gross rental income e WA BxE (11,108) (9,915)
Less: direct operating expenses W BEKERX 2,080 2,189
Net rental income e U AFEE (9,028) (7,726)
Research and development expenses ot R pE R X
(note (b)) (P 5% (b)) 24,526 39,001
Expected credit losses on other assets HEmEERREESR 826 2,167
Expected credit losses on trade receivables & W B 51 78 B B E548 16,960 7,340
Advertising = 140,653 212,320




10.

11.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Depreciation expense of HK$15,047,000 (2019: HK$26,206,000)
has been included in cost of sales from non-banking and financial
businesses, HK$58,746,000 (2019: HK$61,029,000) in selling and
distribution expenses and HK$86,296,000 (2019: HK$85,915,000) in
administrative expenses.

(b)  Amortisation expenses and research and development expenses had
been included in the administrative expenses.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, Hong Kong
profit tax has been provided for certain subsidiaries within the
Group and is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits (2019: 16.5%). The subsidiaries established in the PRC are
subject to income taxes at tax rates ranging between 15% and
25% (2019: 15% and 25%). Overseas tax is calculated at the rates
applicable in the respective jurisdictions.

10.

11.

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

BRATEBAT (B518), 8 R (@)
f g

(@) IEXH 15,047,000 7T (ZE— L4
26,206,000 7T) B 5T AFERTT R & @
RS2 HHEMKA « 58,746,000 7T (=&
— N4 : 61,029,000787C) sH ASHE KD
348 3 LA 2 86,296,000 T (—E— A,
4 : 85,915,000/ L) st ATTIRE A ©

(o) HEHFAXARMERBERICDETALT
BEM

Frig®iR <

BT -_ZFk=_Z—NLF+=A
=+—HLFE AEEEAETHEBR
AIFHER B A S B RME - WIR{AFERM
HEAN16.5% (ZF— NF : 16.5%) 5t & -
R B M BAREZN T 15% 2
25% (ZF— N5 1 15% B 25%) Z FiSHt
TR o BINRIBIZAER R AR R B T

N
KtE -
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

BREEKEEEBRA

11.

The Group is also subject to PRC withholding tax at the rate of 5%
or 10% (2019: 5% or 10%) in respect of its PRC sourced income
earned, including rental income from properties in the PRC,
dividend income derived from PRC incorporated company.

EHEX @

AR E B IR pt A B SR 2 I AR B K

5% 10% (—ZZ— N5 :

5% 3% 10%) &132

REIFEMN - EMRBREREFEYE L
HEWARELS B+ BEMKILA R 2K

BUA o

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Current tax for the year FRENEAFE
Hong Kong BB 577 669
PRC s 24,883 45,149
Liechtenstein L& 6,767 25,027
Switzerland It 1,527 1,122
Deferred tax for the year (note 39) FANIRERIE (M 5E39) (8,578) (511)
Total income tax expense P57 B < 48 2R 25,176 71,456

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting (loss)/
profit at applicable tax rates:

BERBREFAREZAEHAX RS (B

18) Rz HEk

2020 2019

—EC-EF — L

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TAT

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEHL AT (B518) = (133,653) 142,637
Tax on (loss)/profit before income tax, BRETERIAT (B518) /5 2 Fi 18

calculated at the rates applicable to the tax ~ (HRIRIBEET 1% 5 A =

jurisdictions concerned HRZTRETE (23,071) 36,473

Tax effect of non-taxable income BEARTIMA Z TR E (11,087) (8,733)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PEHFHFZ 2 TR E 8,893 7,094

Effect of change in tax rate (note) FRRgE 2 222 (i) (7,960) =

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTRIBERBZ MG E 58,401 36,622

Total income tax expense FIT 1S 75t B < 4R 2R 25,176 71,456

Note: The tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries of the Group in
Switzerland has changed from 19.8% to 15% with effective from 1

January 2020.

BT« 7R SR B P 2 BB 2 A) 2 i AR B o

19.8% &% /315%
—BREER -

BE-ZF_ZF5—H



12. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 12.

On 4 May 2020, the Group redeemed 3,840 shares of
Metasequoria Investment Fund SPC — Global Opportunities Fund
SP for USD5,907,000 (equivalents to HK$45,794,000). The Group
recognised a gain on disposal of approximately HK$405,000.
Details of the Group’s gain on disposal of Metasaequoia Investment
Fund SPC - Global Opportunities Fund SP for the year ended 31
December 2020 were set out as follows:
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HE—RKRBAAE

R-ZE_ZTFFHAWAB - A& B EE K
PEEES-REKSES 23,840/
B K {8 A5,907,000% T (B &E R
45,794,000/ 7T) - AEBEER LS W
#7405,0008 T - BAASBEREE=Z
—EFE+ A=+ HBIEFEREKEZE
EES -REESES 2 WS B0
™

HK$'000
FET
Net assets disposed of: HESEFRE :
Trading portfolio investments RHEERE 60,879
Cash and deposits RE RFR 55,992
Other assets Ht&E 19,126
Other liabilities R (21,638)
114,359
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR = (54,638)
59,721
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal P 1R AR R I EE R 405
60,126
Less: proceeds from disposal W HERS IR (45,794)
Fair value of trading portfolio investments retained RERZGHEEHRE 2 AFE (13,927)
Gain on disposal HE 2 s 405
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRSIMEFE
Cash consideration received BB S RE 45,794
Less: cash and deposits disposed of B T E 2R E RIEFR (55,992)
Net cash outflow for the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE-ZT-_ZFTF+-_A=+—H1E
FEZASRLFE (10,198)
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

EETREEMBE_T -2 +_A

=+t —HLEFERAERS (ZF—NIF:
) o

e
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14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. B8R (FR) BF
The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share ARArEA ANELHERERKES (F18)
attributable to owners of the Company are based on the following S BRITIRBAT BIRAE
data:
2020 2019
—EC-FF | ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T
(Loss)/earnings (&58) BF
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of AESREARNRESE (BB
the Company for the purpose of BAEKIR Z AR BIER A
calculating basic and diluted FEAE (B51R) 7
(loss)/earnings per share (169,233) 44,246
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hF
Number Number
of shares of shares
R4 #E Mein &5 B
‘000 ‘000
TR T 1%
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of shares for the st E &R EAR KL #5 (BE)
purpose of calculating basic and diluted B PR IR 2 e T 39 AR 21
(loss)/earnings per share 4,351,889 4,351,889
The diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same as the basic (loss)/ HRAEEREE T _ZEFR_T— A
earnings per share, as the Group has no dilutive potential shares for FrZA=t+—HItFEMEETEER
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. 7 EREE (B18) B EGRER

(E18) / BAER -
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 15. EERAFEXZ(BIEEEMHS)

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
151 EERARX

15.1 Employee benefit expense

2020 2019

—EC-RF | ZFNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Wages and salaries IE&ENHS 544,917 668,256
Pension costs LY NCAII PN 69,580 91,002
614,497 759,258

Employee costs, including directors’ emoluments, of
HK$54,964,000 (2019: HK$92,791,000) has been included
in cost of sales from non-banking and financial businesses,
HK$160,654,000 (2019: HK$255,167,000) in selling
and distribution expenses and HK$398,879,000 (2019:
HK$411,300,000) in administrative expenses.

EEKA (BREESME) 54,964,000
BT (ZZF— 1L : 92,791,0007% 7T)
ERFAFERITREMER 2 HEK
7K~ 160,654,000/ 70 (ZF — NL.F -
255,167,000757T) BaT AHE KD HE
FALA K 398,879,000 7T (- B— 114
411,300,000/ 70) EFTAITEREA °

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans 15.2 EEBRKESEFE
2020 2019
—g=®% | —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Net defined benefit obligations ERRE A B EF 113,354 90,908

Net defined benefit liability has been included in “other
liabilities” (see note 40) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The defined benefit pension plans are primarily arising from
Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik and its subsidiaries (together the
“Eterna Group”), Montres Corum Sarl and its subsidiaries
(together the "Corum Group”), Bendura Bank AG and
its subsidiaries (the “Bendura Group”), and also Ernest
Borel Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Ernest Borel
Group”). The Group makes contributions to the defined
benefit pension plans that provide post-retirement benefits
for employees upon retirement. Under the schemes, the
employees in Switzerland and Liechtenstein are entitled to
retirement benefits based on the plan assets accumulated
on attainment of the retirement age and a fixed annual rate.
Since there is potential down-side risk for the employer to
pay additional contributions in case the plan has a deficit,
plans in Switzerland and Liechtenstein are classified as
defined benefit pension plans.

EREMNEERERDFARE Y
AR TEAMEE] (RHE40) A
T o

FERRNES BT S| E 2K E Eterna
AG Uhrenfabrik & & [{ B 2 &) (4t
WA FESE])  Montres Corum
SariIHIW@E AR (B IEEE
H])  Z#iRTRMHDAERA A RE
B AR ([E & E ) A R AOR B
ERBIR AR REM B A F (MMKR
BEE]) - AEBMERRNRESE
FIErSIfE R - BEBRNERKE
RERNEET - RTBETE  Imt &
AT EREENZHENREF -
TIRBER RN R R EEF R
EFtZFrEIEEBE c AR — A&
BIHIRART - BEAZTEEIMER
BEETBERRAR BT RIIZ
BEEFEDEAERRRSRER
FTEl -
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets
and the present value of the defined benefit obligation on
the Eterna Group were carried out at 31 December 2020
and 2019 by Patrick Bonadei and Victoria Steib, a member
of the Swiss Associate of Actuaries in Switzerland, using the
projected unit credit method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets
and the defined benefit obligations on the Corum Group
were carried out at 31 December 2020 and 2019 by Nicolas
Colozier, a member of the Swiss Associate of Actuaries in
Switzerland, using the projected unit credit method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and
the defined benefit obligations on the Bendura Group were
carried out at 31 December 2020 and 2019 by AXA Pension
Solutions AG, a member of Swiss Associate of Actuaries in
Switzerland, using the projected unit credit method.

The latest independent actuarial valuations of plan assets and
the defined benefit obligations on the Ernest Borel Group
were carried out at 31 December 2020 and 2019 by Swiss
Life Pension Services AG, a member of the Swiss Associate
of Actuaries in Switzerland, using the projected unit credit
method.

(@)  The amount included in the consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the Group's obligation in

15. EERAMX (BREESME)

(%)
15.2

EBEENRSBEFGE (E)
AEEEEGTEEE 2 SHTENIEE
HEREEBINREEZRETH fﬁ
= Swiss Associate of Actuaries 2 & 8
Patrick Bonadei X Victoria Steib 72 —
TCEFRE-NFFA=1—
R{ERATERIBER AR AT ©

EaSEEEEC =N BLBEE
HEMEEGSANEEIERLT SWlss
Associate of ActuarlesZ = 5 Nicolas
Colozier R —ZE—ZF R —F—NF
T A=+—R{EAEREBEMARS
JEHETT ©

EEBEFHEEE KT BLIEE
51BN E 5848 FI & (£ )5 i i £ Swiss
Associate of Actuaries 2 @ 8 AXA
Pension Solutions AGIR =T = TF [
—E-NFt+=-A=+—HB{ERBEA
BALARTG AT ©

KR EE B EE BN EE
1ETE&E§E?ET‘J,EE\TEEEEf%:tSwiss
Associate of Actuaries Z & B Swiss
Life Pension Services AGIR —ZE - &
FRZE-NF+-A=+—HFA
TERI BRI ABR T VEH#ETT ©

(@) FIABRAMBMRARZAS
Bl EEREAMEEEAT

respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows: EEZERBOT :
2020 2019
—E_EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Present value of defined benefit EREEAMNEERE
obligations 563,407 509,891
Fair value of plan assets SrEEEZ AT E (450,053) (418,983)
Net liability arising from defined benefit HEMNETELEZ
obligations BEFHE 113,354 90,908
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

15. EERAMX (BREESHSE)

(Continued) (&)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued) 15.2 EEERAKESTBAEE (&)
(b) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit b) B=2—_ZT— Ti&_f N

obligations for both the years ended 31 December F+ZA=+—HILMEF
2020 and 2019 are as follows: EEEBEAMNGEEEREY

BT

2020 2019

—B-E2H | —_T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

At 1 January Rn—HA—H 509,891 478,397

Current service costs 35 B AR A5 Ak AN 36,069 30,321
Past service costs 38 1 AR 75 B AR (1,381) (4,140)

Interest cost 8 K AX 1,199 4,077

Actuarial (gains)/loss BE (W) BB (7,830) 17,254
Benefits paid Emﬁa A (35,680) (36,110)

Contribution by plan participants FT &2 HEE MR 14,100 14,132

Exchange realignment DEE i 3 B 47,039 5,960

At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 563,407 509,891
() Movements in the fair value of the plan assets for both © BEZT_ZEEFR-T-NF
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as +=ZA=+—8H mﬁmliﬁ

follows: STEIBEEATFEEFHNT ¢

2020 2019

=BDEH | —ZNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FHETT

At 1 January R—HA—H 418,983 395,257

Interest income M EHA 637 118

Return on plan assets FTEIEEZ Bk (4,228) 21,086

Contributions by the employers & F 18,328 17,917

Contributions by plan participants FHEI2 8 E R 14,112 14,124
Benefit paid EANEER (35,680) (36,110)

Exchange realignment PE 5 3 & 37,901 6,591

At 31 December RT-—A=+—H 450,053 418,983
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 15. EERAFEXZ(BEEEMHS)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued) (&)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)
(d)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in respect of these defined
benefit plans are as follows:

15.2 EFRMKE BRI GHE

(d)

)
MZETBEENTENGE R

AR AR 2 £F T

2020 2019
—ECEHF —ET-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T T
Service cost: 0N
Current service costs 35 B AR A5 Ak AN 36,069 30,321
Past services costs BIERRFS A AN (1,381) (4,140)
Net interest expense B R SOF 562 3,959
Components of defined benefit costs 0 1 2 5 48 AERR
recognised in profit or loss EREAKAZ
AR 35,250 30,140
Remeasurement on the net defined EIFTEEREMNEE
benefit obligations: FRER
Return on plan assets E%\JEFZME (4,228) 21,086
Actuarial gains/(losses) wBEWz  (EE) 7,830 (17,254)
Deferred tax arising on remeasurement of E%ﬁ p‘|' ERBMEE
the net defined benefit liability FEE IR ETIA 44 (1,342)
Components of defined benefit costs RE A 2 E A R
recognised in other comprehensive TE 7R aaﬂﬁ$2£ﬁﬁ)€
income, net EB 3 FEE 3,646 2,490

The defined benefit cost of HK$35,250,000
(2019: HK$30,140,000) has been included in the
administrative expenses. The remeasurement of the
net defined benefit obligation is included in other
comprehensive income.

FE #48 M X 7K 35,250,000 78
7t (ZF — A% : 30,140,000
BT ERtATTHEM - &M
FFEEEENETFER A
HZmEEA -



15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)

(e)

The major categories of the fair value of the plan assets
at the end of reporting period are as follows:

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

15. E)ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi (BRESEHS)

15.2 EFRAEERI B (40)
) MBEHRFAEEEATE
ZEZBHWT

2020 2019

—ECRF | ZFNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET T T

Equity instruments AT A 109,208 108,556
Debt instruments BT A 165,336 141,967
Properties LJES 116,842 97,030
Commodities instruments BmmIA 3,048 3,187
Assets from reinsurance ENRBEE 7,942 8,508
Hedge funds HihE e 14,109 24,783
Cash e 33,021 33,453
Other H A, 547 1,499
450,053 418,983

The fair values of the above equity and debt
instruments are determined based on quoted market
prices in active markets whereas the fair value of
properties, commodities instruments, assets from
reinsurance and hedge funds are not based on quoted
market prices in active markets.

The principal assumption used for the purpose of the
actuarial valuations was as follows:

Pl AREB TR Z A FE
BB, . M5 REERE
Mm% EmIA - EXRE
BERSPES 2 A FEILIF
RRRMS M5 HREETE -

H FARBEFEENZIEER

B UNNE
2020 2019
—E2=FF —F-NF

Discount rate(s)

Expected rate(s) of salary increase

BRI X
2R IR

0.10%-0.20%
0.1%-1.0%

0.15%-0.25%
0.5%-1.0%
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15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

ontinued)

15.2 Defined benefit pension plans (Continued)

(9)

Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit pension plans

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined benefit obligations are discount rate
and expected salary rate of increase. The sensitivity
analyses below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

o If the discount rate is 50 basis points higher/
(lower), the defined benefit obligation
would decrease by HK$43,803,000 (2019:
HK$31,850,000)/increase by HK$51,121,000
(2019: HK$58,363,000).

o If the expected salary rate of increase/
(decreases) by 50 basis points, the defined
benefit obligations would increase by
HK$8,267,000 (2019: HK$17,474,000)/decrease
by HK$7,731,000 (2019: HK$2,543,000).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligations as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as
some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis, the present value of the defined benefit
obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is the same as that applied in calculating the
defined benefit liability recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions
used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior
years.

15. EERAMAX (BEESEME)

(%)

15.2 EEENRER/RGFE (&)

(9)

TR R NS B FIE 8 2 B
ED
ErcHEeNEEtzsEzE28
ERERBRERERT &
EIFLE R o N ZBURE DT
Tﬂﬁ FrE M BERFDT
By WMEARELBBR
’“/\ﬁ—f BEEBMETE °

o fHBRIRE EFH (TFR)
S0ME & 2 - E R A
f& #Hisz »43,803,000
31,850,000,%575 / ig
Hn51,121,000% 7T (=
T — 1 4F : 58,363,000

HBIT) e
o fisl T8 HA 37 & 182 08 b &
# 40, G 4) 50 & &

2 TREEANEEEE
708,267,000 7T (—
T — L4 : 17,474,000
BIt) /7,731,000
BLE(ZE—N&F:
2,543,000 7T) ©

bt BURKE 5 AT FT BE AL K
REBRMEEZEREL
J?Iﬁ'ﬁ%?fﬁ““ BE 152 1tk A

RERA BT KA REE
ﬁtljfﬁ

AN B B BURE DT 2
5 RBEHRERBMEE
ZHEEREREMART
ERTE - BNERER G M FSAOR
RPERERBNEEZ
AHEMERERR -

BEFERABEHEED
2 7 ERRR G ERE
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 16. EEHEREREEENE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
16.1 Directors’ emoluments 161 EEM <
Details of emoluments of the directors of the Company in BHREEREARNAIRENBARER
connection with the management of affairs of the Company ZARBEEME 2 FIEHTIAT -
and its subsidiaries are set out below:
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
Directors’  and benefits to pension
fees in kind scheme Total
A= 1:1 BiHhE
EEHe REYEA sHEIHRR #at
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$000
TET THERT THERT TET
2020 —ECEF
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung CEEE e - 2,025 18 2,043
Mr. Shang Jianguang =Pt - 4,571 96 4,667
Mr. Shi Tao* AETE - 1,612 18 1,630
Mr. Lam Toi Man MWRIEE - 1,364 18 1,382
Mr. Bi Bo 2 TE - 1,389 18 1,407
Ms. Sit Lai Hei 24 A - 1,364 18 1,382
Mr. Hon Hau Wong BEERAE - 1,364 18 1,382
Mr. Teguh Halim Teguh Halim %t 4 - 4,240 148 4,388
Independent non-executive B FHTEE
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa** R EE S 190 - - 190
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, BMEEE L 151 = = 151
Michael
Mr. Zhang Bin SR, 5T 4 151 - - 151
Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher*** Rudolf Heinrich Escher 191 - - 191
ﬁi***
Mr. Li Ziging” FFEEE" 31 - - 31
Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk* H#E({F L 4* 31 - - 31
745 17,929 352 19,026
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

16.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

16. EEMERSREEEME

161 EEME (B

Salaries,
allowances  Contributions
Directors’  and benefits to pension
fees in kind scheme Total
5 2R BARE
E50e REVEF AR HBEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHBT FET THET FHET
2019 —E-NF
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung EEEELE = 2,084 18 2,102
Mr. Shang Jianguang PR EAE - 14,077 96 14,173
Mr. Shi Tao* AETE - 1,810 18 1,828
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR A - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Bi Bo EREHE - 1,456 18 1,474
Ms. Sit Lai Hei EZ 4 Y - 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Hon Hau Wong BEERE = 1,430 18 1,448
Mr. Teguh Halim Teguh Halim Ll - 4,342 143 4,485
Independent non-executive B FHITES
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa HTELE 200 - - 200
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael Bb{& & &+ 150 = = 150
Mr. Zhang Bin SR 5T A 150 - - 150
Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher  Rudolf Heinrich Escher 200 - - 200
piotes
700 28,059 347 29,106
Notes: BisE
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed HE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILFE "

to waive any remunerations during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: nil).

*

*k

Save as disclosed in the above table, the Group also provided
a quarter to the executive director, Mr. Shi Tao at HK$10,000
monthly rental (2019: HK$10,000). The carrying amount of
the Group's investment property which was rented to the
executive director as quarter as at 31 December 2019 was
HK$27,400,000. The lease arrangement has been terminated
on 31 October 2020.

Mr. Fung Tze Wa has resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
1 September 2020.

Mr. Rudolf Heinrich Escher has resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
1 September 2020.

Mr. Li Ziging has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
6 November 2020.

Mr. Kam, Eddie Shing Cheuk has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 6 November 2020.

VEEEREXFRBERETAMNE 2R
(=T NEF: E\) -

*

*%k

BRERFMBEZREN  REENA
KITESERBAERE—ME
< Af/410,00087T (Z2—A
4 :10,00087T) c-R=F—NF
+=—A=+—B BFHTES
EREZAERMEBEMEZRR
{8 427,400,000 7T ° % &
FER - ZE_ZTF+A=1+—H
BRIk

HJFELREDBHEARRAZ B
FATES BT _ZEFNA
—HRBAER -

Rudolf Heinrich Escher %c 4 & &
EARRRZEILFNITESE - B
ZETFNA—HBEN-

FFHELEDRZEREARALZ
BYFRTES B_FT_FF
T—RARNBERER-

HEEELEEZERRREZ
BYUFRNTES B_F_FF
T—RARNBERER-
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 16. EEMERSREEEMNES @)

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

16.2 Five highest paid individuals 162 AEREMEAL

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year included two (2019: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are reflected in the analysis presented in note
16.1. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three
(2019: three) non-director, highest paid individuals of the
Group for the year are as follows:

FN - AEEREREFHATEE
ME(ZZE—NF:-MB)EF
EM B REANHTEE16.1FT51 5
M- FAREBHBT =R (ZF—N
F: =R)FEEESFALTHESF
B :

2020 2019

—E_EF —T—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FH T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He R REYWET 13,958 12,013
Contribution to pension scheme RKRE T IR 938 862
14,896 12,875

The emoluments of non-director highest paid individuals
were within following bands:

HEERSHFALZHFENTFUT
R -

2020 2019

—EEF —ET-hF

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

A A

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 /& 7T & 4,000,000 & 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 % 7T £ 4,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 % 7T £ 5,000,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 /& 7T & 6,000,000 /& 7T 1 -
3 3

No emolument was paid by the Group to the directors
or the three (2019: three) highest paid employee(s) as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2019: nil).

rEEYVERESFH =2 (ZF—N
FZR)REFEEXNMEER
AIABR DA 52 BB 2 2R - =X
ERBBME(CZ—NF: &) -
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

16.3 Emoluments to members of senior management

The emoluments to members of senior management
(excluding the remunerations to directors which have been
disclosed in note 16.1 above) were within the following
bands:

16. EEMERSREEEME

16.3

SREEEXEMS
EREEEREME (TREER
EXHE16IRBZESHS) N
FLATARE :

2020 2019

—E_EF —E-NF

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

A A

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /% 7T & 2,000,000 % 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T & 2,500,000 /% 7T 1 -
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 /& 7T & 4,500,000 /% 7T - 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 /& 7T £ 5,000,000 /% 7T 1 -

3 2

17. CASH AND DEPOSITS 17. RERFXK

2020 2019

—E_EF —ZE-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&ET FHT

Cash and bank balances (note (a), (b) and (c)) & K&iRTT4EER (MizE@) ~ (b) K () 303,644 329,377
Cash held on behalf of clients (note (d)) REFPEA 2B (MFEd) 110,985 104,227
Sight deposits with central banks (note (e)) PR R 1T 2 R HITFE R (B 5L (e) 5,198,016 4,463,642
5,612,645 4,897,246

Cash and deposits as per above FXERE RIFEK 5,612,645 4,897,246
Less: Cash held on behalf of clients (note (d)) & @ RKEFHA RS (M7t (d) (110,985) (104,227)
Pledged bank deposits (note (c)) BEHRITER (KIE Q) - (111,763)
Restricted bank deposits (note (c)) SRHERITFER(FE ) (1,354) (1,260)
5,500,306 4,679,996

Notes: MI&E -
(@)  Except for pledged bank deposits, cash at bank earns interest at the @ BREEFRTER  RITRSEEAE
floating rates based on the daily bank deposits rates. RITFE R EGFE 2 IFEFIRTR -

(b) Included in cash and bank balances of the Group are the amount (b) AEBHRESRBITEHRBTEAH

of approximately HK$119,402,000 (2019: HK$231,326,000)
denominated in RMB which are placed with the banks in the PRC.
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. Under the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB into foreign currencies through
the banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

#49119,402,000%8 0 (=& — L&
231,326,000 70) A A REBEFRF
B2 RITZHEE - ARBETSERLE
BHMEE - RIEFEBARIINEERE K
IR - EERMNESEBRE  NEEA
FEREREEITINEREE ZRITHEAR
B 5 iR INES o



17. CASH AND DEPOSITS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

(e)

As at 31 December 2019, included in cash and bank balance of the
Group of HK$111,763,000 are pledged bank deposits pledged as
securities for the Group's banking facilities, the pledge has been
released during the year ended 31 December 2020. There is no
pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2020. The pledged bank
deposits carried interests at 3.6% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2019. As at 31 December 2020, included in cash and bank
balance of the Group of HK$1,354,000 (2019: HK$1,260,000) are
restricted bank deposits.

In respect of the Group’s financial business of securities dealing, the
Group maintains segregated trusts accounts with authorised financial
institutions to hold client’s monies. The Group classifies clients’
monies under cash and deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position and has recognised the corresponding balances
due to cash and margin clients separately under trade payables
(note 33) on the grounds that the Group is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies and does not have a currently
enforceable right to offset those payables with the deposits placed.

These balances with central banks represent sight deposits placed by
the Bendura Group and they can be withdrawn immediately without
any restrictions.

As at 31 December 2020, cash and deposits of HK$5,338,687,000
(2019: HK$4,596,950,000) are attributable to banking and financial
businesses.

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

17. BEREFER®E)

(c)

(%)

R-EBE—h&E+-A=+—0 K~&£H
e RIBITHEER B E111,763,0007% T
BIREASEERTRENEERETRE
o MEAEREBEE-_ZT-_ZTF+_A
=+t HILFERR RZT_TF+=
A=+—8 BECERBEITER -8
E-E-HNE+-_A=+-—HIEE"
ZEBEWMRITERIRFEFE3.6%:T
B -RZZEZZFF+-_A=+—H K
SEMIRS RRITEHRT 1,354,000 7T
(20194 : 1,260,0007% 7T) A = [R Hl 4R
T1E -

RAKREEFEEZEREBM S AK
BRERESREERRBLETERP
AFEREP IR - AEEREA MBI
RAERABZEPFEADBRAS REFRK
WARIEH AT P 5RIBZ AR 8 K P
REFSHRE R 2 BB MERLEMNE
FATEERENTHEER 2R E kMR
B2 BEAER (EE33) AAKER
By I 48 R 58 B BA 1T 2 R M B B EL AT A TR
2 RRIAR A R A AR AR

ZEPRBITHERIEEHEBMFRZ
JhETE R - A BN A B ER if AR (R PR A -

R-_E_ZTF+_A=+—H BH&K
15 5%5,338,687,000/8 7t (=T — L4 :
4,596,950,0007% 7T) Jh 2R B #R1T R & @
ES 0
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18. DUE FROM BANKS AND CLIENTS 18. BWSRITREFFIE

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHT

Due from clients — mortgage loans BUWEFERIE-—IRIBER 1,476,436 1,257,514

Due from clients — other R P RIE — E Aty 994,955 844,704
Valuation adjustments for default risk E R R GERE (WD)

(note (b)) (8,166) (8,968)
Total due from clients EWEFRIBEALE 2,463,225 2,093,250
Due from banks on a daily basis EUWSRTT H % IB 5,229,597 4,720,429
Due from banks other claims JEUERITEL M A R 238,021 182,006
Valuation adjustments for default risk E R R GERE (M b)

(note (b)) (1,358) (1,237)
Total due from banks FE SR 1T FRIE A 58 5,466,260 4,901,198

Notes: Mzt -
(@)  Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for due from banks and @ EURITRE P RIEAREEZ H R
clients are as follow: T £

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
EIRE F2RER BEIRE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FH&T T FHEIT
As at 1 January 2019 R=Z—h&F—HF—H 4,970,049 - 5,147 4,975,196
Net financial assets originated ~ JR B © B & E/F & 1,934,540 - - 1,934,540
Amounts written-off EME S - - (1,455) (1,455)
Exchange realignment bE 5 3B 96,334 - 38 96,372

As at 31 December 2019 and RZZE—NF+=A

1 January 2020 =+—BK
—E_THF

—A—H 7,000,923 - 3,730 7,004,653
Net financial assets originated ~ JR B & BV & E/F{E 285,896 - - 285,896
Amounts written-off [ €=kl - - (1,797) 1,797)
Exchange realignment I 5, 38 2 650,028 - 229 650,257

31 December 2020 RZZE_TF+_A
=r—8 7,936,847 - 2,162 7,939,009
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18. DUE FROM BANKS AND CLIENTS (Continued) 18. BEWRITREF RHE (%)
Notes: (Continued) ieE - (&)
(b)  Movements in the expected credit losses in respect of due from (b) ERERTEEPREBEZEHEEEEE
banks and clients are as follows: BAE ¢
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
1R F2MER FEIEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHIT T
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—HA—H
Z B 6,775 - 5,147 11,922
Newly formed valuation MBEAN AR GEFR
adjustments for default risks (357) - (1,455) (1,812)
Exchange realignment HE 55, 58 B 57 - 38 95
Balance at 31 December 2019 —T-NF+=A
and 1 January 2020 _+ BR=Z=F
F—R—HZ#&#% 6,475 - 3,730 10,205
Newly formed valuation SR RERGEFAR
adjustments for default risks 278 - - 278
Amounts written-off i€ feat- - - (1,797) (1,797)
Exchange realignment HE 55, 5 B 609 - 229 838
Balance at 31 December 2020 WN_Z—_ZF+_ A
=+—Bz#&&# 7,362 - 2,162 9,524
(0) Impaired amounts due from banks and clients (c) EUER1T R B F R E 2 E
2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&xT FH&T
Impaired amounts due from banks and clients, FENIRTT BB PR E IR A8
gross 9,524 10,205
Estimated realisation proceeds from collateral il aT AR B IR AT S SR = =
Impaired amounts due from banks and clients, net  JEUERTT & & P Rl (A 5018 F 58 9,524 10,205
(d)  Non-performing loans d TREX
No interest income impact from non-performing loans was BE_T_TER_ZF-NE+_H

recognised for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

EZFIBWAZE

=+—HIEFE  BERERTRENE
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19. TRADING PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS 19. XEHEERE
2020 2019
—ECFF | —ZFNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Equity instruments RATHE
Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong at EMERES LM
market value IRART A 649 69,042
Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong R M {EREBHEIN L2
at market value AR T B 4,522 78,307
Total equity instrument AT B4a%E 5,171 147,349
Debt instruments BEIA
Unlisted debt instruments of financial CREBZIELEMERTL
institutions 12,938 27,612
Total debt instruments BT E®AE 12,938 27,612
Investment fund units REESEN
Unlisted investment fund units FELEMBREES BN 55,843 46,758
Total investment fund units REESEVHAEE 55,843 46,758
Investment in other financial products Htte@mERRKRE 6,358 6,184
Total trading portfolio investments RBEEREHE 80,310 227,903

The investments under trade portfolio investments are held for
trading purposes.

Fair value of the listed equity instruments have been determined by
reference to their quoted market prices at the reporting date in an
active market. Fair value of the listed trading portfolio investments
is Level 1 recurring fair value measurement.

Fair value of unlisted debt instruments have been determined
using significant inputs, which are market observable, directly or
indirectly. The fair value of the unlisted debt investments is Level 2
recurring fair value measurement.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 is Level 3 recurring fair value measurement. The details
of assessment are set out in note 50.9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RHBEREDNFAEEERR -

ETRATAY AFEDESERRRE
B 7R B HT SR (B T ABEE - L7
R HEAREZ ATV EAE —REREA
FEIE -

S LRI E M AT E A HE
MEHTSRENEABAREET - 5
T ERRAN AT EEE - RERED
FEEE -

KRB EFR-_FT-—NF+_A=+—
B ELEMBREESHATEBE =FK
BHAFETE  HMEFE R A MR
&HIFE50.9
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TRADING PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS (Continued)  19. XZEERE ()
Other financial products are referring to the insurance policy Hih e MEREAEERBNRE - RE
entered by the Group. The fair value of investments in insurance FEN AT ERRRARE LR SRR
policies are determined based on the account value as stated in ENEREEETE - HteRERN A TE
cash surrender value statements issued by insurers. Fair value of RE_BBEERFEE -
other financial products is Level 2 recurring fair value measurement.
There is no transfer under the fair value hierarchy classification for BE_Z_ZEFR-_FT-NLEF+A
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. =+—RLFE AFERMNELEE
i o
The fair value gain during the year was amounted to REF 2 N FEWRER36,162,00078 7T
HK$36,162,000 (2019: HK$20,368,000), which has been (ZZF—N% :20,368,0007T) ' ERE
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive BT EF+HA=F+—HIFEZLE
income as “other ordinary income and other net gains or losses” EREBATAERREMAE AR
(note 8) for the year ended 31 December 2020. Hh e sk s 18 F 28 | (FiIsE8) o
No listed equity instruments have been pledged to secure the RZZE_TFEF+_A=+—H B\ELET
margin loan payable as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December BATHE BIFERRENRIESER -
2019, listed equity instruments with an aggregated carrying RZZE-—NAFE+ZA=+—H  #KEHE
amount of HK$109,815,000 have been pledged to secure the £5109,815,000/8 02 FmRA T AEE K
margin loan payable (note 36). RIERREMRESER (H:E36) °
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. ?E’_A‘$f§%‘|‘)\ﬁﬂﬂ%@ﬂ&)\2
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME THEE
2020 2019
—BRoRE | ZTNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 THET FHET
Listed equity instruments in Hong Kong REBEMZKRATA (@)
(note (a)) (P 5E (@) 333,207 282,080
Listed equity instruments outside Hong Kong ~ REBEIN ETZRATL  (b)
(note (b)) B (3 (b)) 131,636 135,176
Unlisted equity investments IE R AR E 5,951 5,605
470,794 422,861

The Group designated its listed equity instruments in or outside
Hong Kong and unlisted equity investments at FVOCI as below, as
those investments are held for strategic purposes.

AEBIZ TG ABERBFBRASERIN
ZEMERARTARIEETBRARERE R
BAFEFARMEEZERA  RARZE
BE TR RIERE -
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (c

(a)

ontinued)

As at 31 December 2020, the listed equity investments in
Hong Kong represented 14.76% (2019: 14.76%) equity
interest in Min Xin Holdings Limited (“Min Xin Shares”). As
at 31 December 2020, the Group held 88,150,000 (2019:
88,150,000) Min Xin Shares. A dividend income totalling
HK$8,815,000 (2019: HK$8,815,000) was recognised by
the Group in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Particulars of the Group’s investments in Min Xin Shares are as

20.

ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂ&lz

RZE_FTF+=—_A=+—H "
E/%J:FDZHXZK&ﬁTEE(\F@EK
BRARZ14.76% (= *nfﬁr
14.76%) & #E ([EEFEKRHB]) °
T_FTF+=ZA=+—80" ZK‘EI
#7588,150,000% (== — h. 4 :
88,150,000 %) B{E M 1n - AN B R
HEZZ-_TF+=-A=+—HLt
FEZHRAEZERAKRNBZEER
B (SRR (5 /A% B U A A ££ 8,815,000
B (ZZF — L% : 8,815,000%8
JT) °

REBERBEERMOIREFFBWT :

follows:

Percentage
of ownership
Number of interest
Country of Particulars of issued shares held  attributable
Name incorporation shares held by the Group to the Group
REEEMS
AEEME HEEEER
=t Bl = e RITROFE IR0 2B B2
Min Xin Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Share 88,150,000 14.76%

BEEEERA A BB =R

The listed equity investment at fair value of HK$131,636,000
(2019: HK$135,176,000) represented the investment in
Citychamp Dartong Company Limited (referred to “Dartong”
and its shares referred to as the “Dartong Shares”). During
the year, no dividend income (2019: RMB1 per 10 shares
totalling HK$3,448,000) is recognised by the Group in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Mr. Shang Jianguang, Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Hon Hau
Wong, the executive directors of the Company are also
the executive directors of Dartong. Dartong is owned as to
approximately 33.95% (2019: 33.95%) by Fujian Fengrong
Investment Company Limited (“Fengrong”). Ms. Sit Lai Hei
and Ms. Lu Xiaojun are the daughters-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok
Lung and the beneficial owners of Fengrong. Mr. Hon Hau
Wong, an executive Director of the Company, is the spouse
of Ms. Lu Xiaojun.

BEAFEIIEZ ETRARKRE
131,636,000 7T (ZF — 1L F -
135,176,000 78 7T ) 38 52 7 35k A 37 A%
MAERAR (KB ERHER
[RBBRD]) 2/E - FA - AEE
RBE_Z_ZF+=-A=1+— EI
LEFEERGEEEKARMNIER

EERBRERA (ZF—NF: 110
XA R 1704 ££3,448,000/87T) °

RABRITESEER L E - R
BT REZIELETTANRAZH
TES - RBHEELBEEFR
ANE (2R ])FEL33.95% (=F
— L% : 33.95%) o BEARRE x4 B
BEZITHABEELEZ RER
RUERZEDEAA c RABMIT
EERZELEEAEEEL L 2R
18-
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. ?E?SF{EE—rAﬁﬁ%EWAZ
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued) THMEE )
(b)  (Continued) by (#&)
Particulars of the Group's investments in Dartong Shares are REBRRBRDEIREFBWT :
as follows:
Percentage
of ownership
Number of interest
Country of Particulars of issued shares held  attributable
Name incorporation shares held by the Group to the Group
rEBEEMN
AEE TR BEEERS
=18 & 11 B 2 B 3% BB BRITROFE RH & E Bt
Citychamp Dartong PRC Ordinary A Share 30,389,058 2.04%
Company Limited
B ABERD AR A A Y ARE B AR
During the year, the increase in fair value of financial assets FA - RATVEFAHEMEERE
at fair value through other comprehensive income of WAz mEERFEEM
HK$47,933,000 (2019: decrease of HK$204,233,000) has 47,933,000 7T (ZF—N5F : B
been dealt with in other comprehensive income and FVOCI 204,233,000 % 7T ) B E Al 2 E 4
reserve. There is no transfer of cumulative gain or loss within A B AR DA AE A 2 E WA
equity during the year. HNEIE - N Eam OB EER
Rt ER -
21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. fT4SMIA
2020 2019
—BRoRE | —TNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
F 3 FHERT TR
Derivative financial assets FTEEMEE
Forward and option contracts RHREIES R (a) 29,224 10,275
Derivative financial liabilities fTELmAE
Forward and option contracts RERHRESLD (a) (31,334) (54,788)
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 21. fTEEMIAE®
(Continued)
Notes: B 5L
(a) Forward and option contracts arising in banking business (a) RERTEKZERBRBESSD
The Group's subsidiaries under the banking business segment act as REBRITEB DT 2 HEARER
an intermediary to offer derivative products including interest rate RFNMEEFRHETETAER B
and currency forwards and swap to its customers. These derivative FEAREERARIEE - ZETET
positions are managed through entering back-to-back deals with BRRENEREINAANTIILEHER
external parties to ensure the remaining exposures are within ZETEIRARRA T RN A X
acceptable risk levels. BIKTFRA e
The following tables and notes provide an analysis of the nominal TREMFRBEZBIEFEZTET
amounts of derivatives and the corresponding fair values as at the EmERBEAFERESN - TET
year ended date. The nominal amounts of the derivatives indicate the BEVHEBRIRREB AT LIRS
volume of transactions outstanding as at the reporting date; they do EMAEZFERESRE -
not represent amounts at risk.
31 December 2020
—B2-BFt-A=t—H
Nominal
amount Assets Liabilities
HE BE =L
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FTHET
Non-hedging instruments JEEIHR T A
— Currency derivatives —EBGTET A 4,575,322 29,224 (31,334)
— Option — EARE 194 —* —*
4,575,516 29,224 (31,334)
31 December 2019
—E-NAFE+=ZA=+—H
Nominal
amount Assets Liabilities
HE BE afE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Non-hedging instruments JEROHRT A
— Currency derivatives —EWTET A 4,531,412 10,275 (54,788)

* Represents the amount less than HK$1,000.

* 7R 1,000%87T °



21.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(a)

Forward and option contracts arising in banking business (Continued)

Nominal amount analysed by remaining maturity

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

21. TEEWMTI A

()

RERTEB2EZHRBESH (B)

BRATERE ST 2 EE

2020 2019

—E-EHF —ZE-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT T

Within 3 months 3EARA 3,760,096 3,761,590
Between 3 months and 1 year 3EAE14F 23,728 26,701
Between 1 year and 5 years 1FEESF 791,692 743,121
4,575,516 4,531,412

The remaining term to maturity of derivatives does not represent the
Group’s intended holding period. Change in the fair value of forward
and option contracts arising in banking business has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income under
“Trading income from banking business”.

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES

PTAET ARSI HEBK T HRETNKRAE
BZESEH - RERTEBZERR
SN A FEZED RIR[RITER
ZRZ WA IR S ZERAR AR ©

22. FEWERRK

2020 2019
—EEF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&ET FHET
Trade receivables arising from watches and ~ $EiR KA EMEBEEZ
timepieces business: (note (a)) MR (FYEE(a))
Trade receivables & UK BR 3R 458,698 533,280
Less: Provision for impairment loss B R E R B R (76,607) (58,347)
382,091 474,933
Trade receivables arising from financial TRl ESEE 2 EWARK
business: (note (b)) (P 3% (b))
— Margin clients —RESEP 402 254
— Cash clients —-BexPF 4,631 2,182
— Clearing house —REER 4,623 893
9,656 3,329
Trade receivables, net & UK BR RS RR 391,747 478,262
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers of watches and
timepieces business are mainly on credit, except for certain
customers, where payment in advance is required. The credit period
is generally for a period of one to six months (2019: one to six months)
for major customers. The credit term for customers is determined
by the management according to industry practice together with
consideration of their creditability. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a wide range of
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables arising from
watches and timepieces business are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly.

Movements in the expected credit losses of trade receivables arising
from watches and timepieces business are as follows:

22. FEWBRR (&

MieE -

(

a)

BETEPABRENNIN - AEEER
f‘*ﬁa’%&%ﬁ%uu%i‘%gﬁuTizﬁa{%

REBREENN - TERXP —RAHE
—E2XEA(ZFE—hF: —EXEA)

ZIEEH - BPZEEHHERERE

TREPIAEREPZEEETE - ER
L EREARERYBEF SR ARETD
AP HUESEEREERR - &

W BRI AR -

SBER I B RS AR TS EE A 2 FEMRBR FORL
EERDERBERIE  RIELEE
S AU A B9 & %8 2 AJ RE MEARE AU 51
i FELER T R EER S BRI
PR AR SK

IR R R EmRBELEZ BRI
EHEEEREHNT

2020 2019

—BoERE —TNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET THET

At 1 January R—H—H 58,347 50,976
Written-off of provision for impairment loss SR E B R = (93)
Expected credit losses for the year FAEBREEER 16,960 7,340
Exchange realignment [ 5 58 % 1,300 124
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 76,607 58,347

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. As
at 31 December 2020, there is no trade receivables pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. As at 31 December
2019, trade receivables of HK$13,484,000 have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 (note 36).

$Ellﬁﬁ?¢%%%§%ﬁﬁfiﬂﬁﬁ

THRZE-_THE+-_A=+—H %
HFEMZEE KB T LEAREEER
BITRME R-T—hWEFE+=—A=+—
H - 13,484,000 T2 FEWER K E T 1K
B UEAEEREE-Z—LFt+=
A=+t—RLFEERRTEHE (ME
36)



22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables arising from watches and
timepieces business as at the reporting date, based on invoice dates,
and net of provisions, is as follows:

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

22. EWERF (&)

B eE - (48)

(a)

(&)

SR R AT TS E A Z FEURR (30
BrEE) RBREASENRERE A ZRR
DT ¢

2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHBT

1 to 3 months 1Z231EA 267,893 343,863
4 to 6 months 4ZE 68 A 29,796 44,032
Over 6 months HBiE6fE A 84,402 87,038
382,091 474,933

The directors of the Company consider that as trade receivables
arising from watches and timepieces business are expected to be
recovered within one year, their fair values are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception at the reporting date.

The settlement term of trade receivables arising from the financial
business of securities dealing is two business days after trade date
("T+2").

Margin loans due from margin clients are current and repayable
on demand. Margin clients are required to pledge securities as
collateral to the Group in order to obtain credit facilities for securities
trading. As at 31 December 2020, the total market value of securities
pledged as collateral in respect of the receivables from margin
clients are approximately HK$840,000 (2019: HK$1,701,000). Margin
loans are interest bearings at fixed rate of 8.25% (2019: 8.25%)
per annum. Subject to certain conditions, the Group is allowed to
repledge collateral from margin clients. There was no repledge of
collateral from margin clients as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. No
aging analysis is disclosed for trade receivables from margin clients.
In the opinion of the directors, aging analysis is not meaningful in
view of the business nature of securities dealing.

ARBAEERA NHER - ANERK
KA ETEE mF T E £ 2 AR IR
R—FRRE - BB BHHRE RN

Rz B HARE  REATFEEALRT
BEIEERAZER -

BHEE 2D T E & ERER R
ZHREHRARSBEMMEE XA
([T+21) °

RURREFESEFZRESERBNHE
BRERFHEE ~RESEFAREES
EHGRTAEE  FARSEFRSHZ
EERME R-B-_BFE+-_A=+—
B BEKRESEFEREBIIEAR
K3 2 75 5 Th (8 4258 49 4 840,000
B (ZZF— NLF : 1,701,000/ 7T) °
RESERVIEETEFFE8.25% (=F
— L : 8.25%) 7T 2 o TE & T AER
T AEBEFBERRIEEREF 2EM
meR_TE_TFR-_T-NFE+=A
=+—0 BEBEAREERFZMA
EHG - ARESRA ERNEFRE
BEZEBME  RESMTEER W
WEFEBERAREESRFIRRZRRD
#r e
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. EWERFR (&
Notes: (Continued) W&E : (88)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)

Trade receivable from cash clients related to a wide range of
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. Based on
the past experience, current assessment and the available forward-
looking information, the management believes that no additional
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable.

Trade receivables from clearing house, i.e. Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Limited, is current which represents pending trades arising
from the financial business of securities dealing and are normally due
on “T+2" day in accordance with the requirements of Hong Kong
Exchange and Clearing Limited.

The Group has policy for impairment allowance which requires
management'’s judgement and estimation as mentioned in note
4.13. The directors are in opinion that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of trade receivables arising from the financial
business of securities dealing as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

HABXPERZ AR TP RAR
AT B R AR o IR BIELER - B
AR AT AT R - ERERE
BARZ S ARERIVRERE - oM
REEEEIWEEANEE) B HEMRIER
AESkE -

ﬂ%%z%ilﬁﬁ (BNBEERREEGRAR)
AN HIEBAFBEBEZSRER
FEZH&X% B—RIZBREERS

REERBBRARZRERT+2] BE
e

WK FE 413 ATl - AR B B AT R IR (A 1
BRABE %’éiﬁﬁf’&ﬂj%&iﬁ&ﬁi
FtoBRERR N-E_TER-T N
F+-A=+—8" ﬁ&’ﬁ'ﬁt EFBEEZ
S AR SR T E A P AR R T R AR R (B 18
e

23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 23. BBEHARSIRZHMERMERE
COST
2020 2019
—E_ZF —ET—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Listed debt instruments, at amortised cost EmEBST R - R HEK AT R 1,449,886 1,307,960
Issued by: HIATALT#T
Governments and public sector S SPNNE 1] 84,447 82,373
Financial institutions T RIS 1,053,351 778,199
Corporations i 312,088 447,388
1,449,886 1,307,960
The listed debt investments represented the investments in FHEBIREEEEHEMN SRS R B
listed debt instruments mainly issued by financial institutions and FROZEMEBIAERKRE -

corporations in Europe.



23. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED

COST (Continued) (%8)
(@)  Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for other financial (@) FREBHERAIR HheRMEEL
assets at amortised cost are as follow: BIREELHRAT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
EI1RER FE2MRER EIMER st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT TERT TERT
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—hF—A—H 1,035,320 - - 1,035,320
Net financial assets originated R E & F& EFE 256,449 - - 256,449
Exchange realignment bE 5 17,040 - - 17,040
As at 31 December 2019and HR=ZT—NLF+=FH
1 January 2020 =+—HRZZE-EE
—H—H 1,308,809 - - 1,308,809
Net financial assets originated R B & &L E &3 8 50,389 - - 50,389
Transfers: B
— Transfer to stage 2 e (2,737) 2,737 = -
— Transfer to stage 3 —EBEREEIRE (31,177) = 31,177 -
Exchange realignment [& 5% 120,734 114 1,939 122,787
31 December 2020 RZZEZTF+=A
==E 1,446,018 2,851 33,116 1,481,985
(b)  Movements in the expected credit losses in respect of other (b) REEAARIRZEMERMEE L
financial assets at amortised cost are as follows: TEHEEEEEHHIT ¢
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BIRER F2RER BIMER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TERT FTET FTER
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—-hF—H—H
2 548 - - 548
Newly formed valuation AL E A ER G E
adjustments for default risks % 291 - - 291
Exchange realignment B 5t G 10 - - 10
Balance at 31 December 2019 M-Z—HhFE+_-A
and 1 January 2020 =+—BRZZ-FTF
—A—Bz&s% 849 - = 849
Newly formed valuation Fiip b))
adjustments for default risks HEFAE (38) 45 29,341 29,348
Transfers: B
— Transfer to stage 2 —EBEEEIRE 8) 8 = =
— Transfer to stage 3 —EBEEEIRE 91) = 91 -
Exchange realignment bEH AR 68 3 1,831 1,902
Balance at 31 December 2020 M-Z-ZF+ -4
=+ H2&H# 780 56 31,263 32,099

23. ZBERTIIRZEMEMEE
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24. INVENTORIES 24. 78
2020 2019
—ECFF | —ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET T
Raw materials R 358,304 480,804
Work-in-progress fEE m 75,528 460,376
Finished goods and merchandises YR i I 7 1,821,721 1,316,786
2,255,553 2,257,966
25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 25. GG ECXRER
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
At 1 January R—HA—H 1,096 2,439
Share of total comprehensive income of EiEEEREZ 2B ALLRE
joint ventures (494) (1,343)
At 31 December K+=-—A=+—H 602 1,096

Particulars of the joint ventures, which are accounted for using
equity method in the consolidated financial statements, are as

BT

GANBRRRAMSEARZAB0Y

follows:
Principal activities and
Particulars of  Place of Percentage of  principal place of
Name issued capital  incorporation interest held  operation
1T FEER
=% RAFE EMRLbE FitE2 EEXBRIZEFXBE
2020 and 2019
—ECEER
—E-hF
Corum Investment Management US$100  Cayman Islands 40%  Investment holding in
Limited (“Corum Investment”) 100%7mT HESHS Hong Kong
REBREER
Corum Capital Partners Limited US$10,000  Cayman Islands 40%  Investment holding in
(“Corum Capital”) 10,000%7Tt RE#HS Hong Kong

REBREER



25. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Despite the Group’s holding of 40% equity interest in Corum
Investment and Corum Capital respectively, the directors have
confirmed that neither the Group nor other shareholders of
the joint ventures has unilateral control over the operating and
financing decision of the joint ventures in accordance with the joint
venture agreement. These joint arrangements are classified as joint
ventures and have been accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using equity method.

26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

25. fTEEEL¥EER B

BE RS E S B A Corum Investment
K Corum Capital Z 40% X A # 25 - 1R 1Z
GBS ESHRAUEASRNESED
EZEMBRRATSEFEEGAEEEZL
ERMEREK - ZEaELH WO ERE
EhEARGEVBERREAEREA
BE o

26. it E DN RIES

2020 2019

—EC-RF | ZFNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET T T

At 1 January R—H— 115,486 102,919

Share of total comprehensive income of JEIEEE AR 2 2 EW AL 2,690 17,567
associates

Dividend income from an associates BN R 2 BB A (5,000) (5,000)

At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 113,176 115,486

Particulars of the principal associate, which is a limited liability
company, at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Particulars of  Place of

WB-FE+-A=1—0 TEHE
A(BERAT) Z#EMT -

N
N

Percentage of  Principal activities and

Name issued capital  incorporation interest held  place of operation
FEER
=% BITRAFE SEMRILBE FihBE D FEXRBREIBELRME
Fair Future Industrial Limited HK$600,000  Hong Kong 25%  Manufacturing of
("Fair Future") 600,000/87C &AB (2019: 25%) watches and related
EREXBRAR ([EHx]) —FE-NEF: accessories in the PRC

25%) AR BIBLEEE KR AR
[GAES
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 26.

The summarised financial information of the Group’s material
associate extracted from its management accounts for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

FriG B E D R (8)

UTABZE_Z_ZFR_FT—NLF+=
A=+—BHIFEAEBERB LS FZ
PEERSE (BEEEERR)

2020 2019
—EC-FF | ZFNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET T T
Fair Future 7k
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Current assets B EE 581,866 660,061
Non-current assets EMEBEE 163,699 171,216
Current liabilities mBEE (429,906) (499,593)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (14,517) (18,353)
Net assets BEEFE 301,142 313,331
Less: Non-controlling interests B IR R (654) (764)
Net assets attributable to owners of the BEATREEARBEEETFE
associate 300,488 312,567
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in AEBRERZEZZHER !
Fair Future:
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBEHEGE LA 25% 25%
Group's share of net assets of the associate A& E E(G kS N 7 2 B EFE 75,286 78,333
Goodwill on acquisition IWhE 2 2 37,987 37,987
Effect of unrealised profits arising from the ~ RE R —[EBERARIRH 2 ARE
transactions with an associate I8 H & (379) (1,088)
Other reconciliation items H ¥ ARIA R 132 104
Carrying amount of the investment AR E 113,026 115,336




26.

—7
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 26. FrihEtE QRS (8)
2020 2019
—EB-EHF — N4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
For the year ended 31 December BZE+t-A=+—HLFE
Revenue A 796,706 1,205,977
Profit for the year ANF [ A 9,771 70,862
Other comprehensive income H 2 EKRA (1,960) (431)
Total comprehensive income 2R A LR%E 7,811 70,431
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ~ —[EEiE R alEB ABEAFE
an associate i 7] 9,880 70,450
Total comprehensive income for the year —BERFIER ARERFE
attributable to owners of an associate MU A BZE 7,921 70,019
Reconciliation to the Group’s share of AEBEEMEBEEBEZHE:
results of Fair Future:
Proportion of the Group's ownership RN B A 25% 25%
Group’s share of profits of the associate AN 55 B A Bk A B 2 0 A 2,470 17,612
Effects of unrealised profits arising from the REHE—HBERARRHZAE
transactions with an associate IR N 5 2 710 63
Share of profit of the associate for the year &b F B & R B A 3,180 17,675
Group's share of other comprehensive income 7R B &G 5 & A A) 2 B 2 H
of the associate WA (490) (108)
Share of total comprehensive income of the (LB & N Fl 2 2 AW A LR
associate 2,690 17,567
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27. % - BMERRHE

Furniture,
fixtures
Rightofuse ~ Landand  Leasehold  Plantand  and office Motor
assets  buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles CIP Total
fE - £ER
EREEE fhRET DERE HRRES  BOERR nE  EEIE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tt tAr  TAr  TAn  TAn  Ten  TEn  THR
At 1 January 2019 RZF-NE-A-A
Cost KA 509,117 430,351 85,196 193,058 580,813 48,213 N575 1888323
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - @747 (1736 (1417 (423589 (3644 - (133%)
Net carrying amount REFE 509,117 342,880 33,460 78941 157,224 1,11 41575 1174968
Year ended 31 December ~ BZ=S-7%+2A
2019 ST-RLEE
Opening net book amount ENRERR 509,117 342,880 33,460 78,941 157,224 1,771 0575 1,174,968
Additions AE 21,230 17,748 28,182 9,798 45,129 2426 41,710 166,223
Lease modification EE% 10,101 - - - - - - 10,101
Transfer i - 36,433 - - = - (36,433) -
Depreciation k-] (55,434) (6,523) 26,162) (15,989) (66,130) (2912) - (173150
Disposal & - (101) - (66) (18971) (817) - (19,955)
Exchange realignment B ge (7.921) 2927 (19) (6,949) 4,941 (103) G149 (1013
Closing carrying amount EXEEFE 7093 393364 35,261 3735 12219 10,365 46038 1,148,049
At 31 December 2019and ~ W=F-AF+=A=1-A
1 January 2020 R=%-%5-f-8
Cost 7 532,52 440,798 101,878 200823 594,44 46,768 46,038 1,963,076
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (55,434) (47 434) (66,617)  (137,088)  (472,051) (36,403) - (815027)
Net carrying amount REFE 477,093 393,364 35,261 63,735 122193 10,365 46,038 1,148,049
Yearended 31 December ~ BZ=Z-Z&F+-f
2020 ST-RLEER
Opening netbookamount ~ FHIREZ(E 471,008 393,364 35,261 63735 122,193 10,365 46,038 1,148,049
Additions hE 4,875 6,676 20,750 78 22,492 549 135,524 190,944
Lease modification HEEK 9,071 - - - - - - 9,071
Transfer a5 - 123815 - - - - (123815) -
Depreciation il (57,5M) (8,479) (25912) (10,895) (54,613) (2,619) - (160,089)
Disposal e - - - (538) (1,668) (217) - (2,483)
Exchange realignment Ex#Z 23,955 44,254 1,551 3,659 7,859 4 3,515 85,234
Closing carrying amount EXRAE 457,423 559,630 31,650 56,039 96,263 8,459 61,262 1,270,726
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-%F
t=Azt-§
Cost BA 573471 672,243 129172 212,569 646,963 46,167 61,262 2,341,853
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (116,054) (112613  (97.522)  (156,530)  (550,700) (37,708) - (1011127)
Net carrying amount REFE 457,423 559,630 31,650 56,039 96,263 8,459 61,262 1,210,726




27. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, land and buildings in Switzerland
with an aggregated carrying value of HK$108,017,000 (2019:
HK$95,180,000) have been pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 36).

At 31 December 2020, right-of-use assets in PRC with an
aggregated carrying value of HK$202,101,000 (2019: Nil) have
been pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 36).
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27. ¥ - BERRKE@®

REZZE-TF+-_A=+—H A&EE
HHR (7 7 B 4 BR E1 42180 108,017,000 7 7T
(ZZ— 115 : 95,180,000/87T) 2 T &%
EFAERIRITRE (IFE36) °

RZZZZTF+_A=+—H  AKBEE
R 7 70 P B BR E 4818 202,101,000 7 7T
(ZZ—NF 8B 2 FAEEENERR
TEE (fFsE36) ©

Land and Motor
Right-of-use assets buildings vehicles Total
EREEE T RIEF b Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2019 RN_ZE—NE—H—H 509,117 - 509,117
Additions NE 19,087 2,143 21,230
Lease modification HEEH 10,101 = 10,101
Depreciation e (54,947) (487) (55,434)
Exchange realignment bE b B (7,935) 14 (7,921)
As at 31 December 2019 and R=ZZE—NF+=A
1 January 2020 =t+t—BRZZE=F
F—H—H 475,423 1,670 477,093
Additions ANE 4,875 = 4,875
Lease modification HEEH 9,071 = 9,071
Depreciation e (57,057) (514) (57,571)
Exchange realignment PE H A 23,902 53 23,955
As at 31 December 2020 RZZTZZTF+=A
=+—H 456,214 1,209 457,423
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28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

28. REWE
7 42 (B B o BREAR 4 550 S 48 1 7 LA A

BHAOBE 2 MERER  HRATFERN
FTE XN BRABRSKREDE -

RERB P BANRK 25 < REEZ B

statement of financial position can be summarised as follows: LU

2020 2019
—B-%F | ZTNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THETT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 182,186 179,133

Net surplus on revaluation of investment BREMEEMZ BT
properties 9,723 4,047
Exchange realignment BEE 34 3 2 3,518 (994)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+=Z A=+—HZEEE 195,427 182,186

The carrying amounts of the Group’s investment properties situated

AEBUREERPBREAGHBOFEZ

in Hong Kong and the PRC held under medium-term leases are REMEZREESTAOT
analysed as follows:

2020 2019
BB | —ZThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THETT
Hong Kong BB 27,400 27,400
PRC H 168,027 154,786
195,427 182,186

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has not obtained the relevant
title certificates for investment properties with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$45,615,000 (2019: HK$44,650,000). The
Group’s legal advisors have confirmed that the Group is the rightful
and equitable owner of these investment properties. The directors
are now in process of obtaining the title certificates from the
relevant government authorities.

R_ZE-_TF+_A=+—8 £AEBEL
Rt BRTE 421H 45,615,000 7T (Z 2 — A1
F : 44,650,000 70) Z & & W EEUSAE
FXEEER AEELZEMERR A
EEAZEREME A FERERBA °
EEHIEMAREBUT LRI IS EEER -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 28. WEYIF (=)
Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2020 by BREMER_FT_FTF+_H=1—H
Asset Appraisal Limited (“Asset Appraisal”) and Chung, Chan F 8 7 B 3 TR AT 4 (LA R SE B ERTE
& Associate, independent professionally qualified valuers, at BB R AR (W:‘ﬂgJ)&Chung, Chan
HK$195,427,000 (2019: HK$182,186,000) in aggregate. Asset & Associate E{f A4 £ 195,427,000 7T
Appraisal is a member of Hong Kong Institutes of Surveyors and (ZZ— N5 : 182,186,000 7T) © H
Chung, Chan & Associates is a member of Royal Institution of ERBBAERMEZEKE - Chung, Chan
Chartered Surveyors. Both have appropriate qualifications and & Associate Al /3 5 Bl 2 5 45 51 B £ Ah 2
relevant experiences in the location and category of properties BKE - MEANEHENEZLE RS
being valued. HAHEAGBEEERIEELR -
Fair value hierarchy AFEHH
The fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring fair REWMEZATHERF=BREEAFE
value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair B - FORFERAFEEHRZLHRHT
value balance is provided below. W o
2020 2019
il —ZE—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THETT
Opening balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) FH¥#&5#% (=B EERFE) 182,186 179,133
Net surplus on revaluation of investment HesEMERcRENE
properties charge to profit or loss Blihz BHRFHE 9,723 4,047
Exchange realignment BEE 54 3 B 3,518 (994)
Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) FRGEHR (E=EBLEFHERFE) 195,427 182,186
Change in unrealised gain for the year RT—A=+—BmMFEEE
included in profit or loss for assets held at SAEMEBREZFE
31 December ARER W ) 9,723 4,047
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were REBEE_Z_ZFR_T-NEF+_A
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of =t+—HIEEE - k*ﬁikk —“EzBEI
Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels BER  NEEBRAZS=EXEE=EE
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which B o ZK%ZBZ%Z%EC%HEZ#&%E@K

they occur. BRE N TFERRIKT 2 Bz B -
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28. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

For the fair value measurement for investment properties in the
PRC under income approach, the fair value was determined by
taking into account the net rental incomes of the properties derived
from the existing tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the tenancies, which are then capitalised into
the values at appropriate capitalisation rates.

Significant unobservable inputs
Capitalisation rate

Range
2.65% to 6.10%
(2019: 2.0% to 7.10%)

HK$5.56 to HK$105.6
(2019: HK$5.56 to
HK$110)

Market unit rent per square metre

A lower in the capitalisation rate and a higher in the market unit rent
used would result in an increase in the fair value measurement of
the investment properties, and vice versa.

For the fair value measurement for investment property in Hong
Kong and certain investment properties in the PRC under direct
comparison method, it is assumed that each of the properties is
capable of being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable sales evidence
as available in the relevant markets.

One of the key inputs used under direct comparison method in
valuing the investment property in Hong Kong was the price per
square feet and taking into account location and other individual
factors. The price per square feet used is approximately HK$17,692
(2019: HK$17,692). An increase in the price per square feet would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the investment
property, and vice versa.

One of the key inputs used under direct comparison method in
valuing the investment property in PRC was the price per square
meter and taking into account location and other individual factors.
The price per square meter used is approximately range from
HK$6,742 to HK$67,425 (2019: from HK$6,804 to HK$57,837). An
increase in the price per square meter would result in an increase
in the fair value measurement of the investment property, and vice
versa.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior year. The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from their
actual use.

28.

REWE(E)

DFEKR (@)

iR AR 2 P BIREME R FER
E RHEDHAZSDERRBEHEE
EzHSWAFRE YEEINHEERRT
BRUWANES  ERREE B BB
AEARGHHEE -

BEARAEHEGAE giE
EwN sz 2.65% % 6.10%
(ZE—NF:20%%

7.10%)

B misHEE 5.56BTLE105.6/8 7T
(BEHFK) (ZZ—NF 5568
JTE1108TT)

ERABREEA LR RRSEMLTSES
SEPGTEREMEZATFEEN R2Z

FRBERLBATEREREMENE
THREREMEQIFEMS - HERRERA
MEMRERMRZXEHE  X2EFMT
SRS Z AT B ERE o

FHEEBRAWEE  HELBOLETE
BHABEL —ASTHRER - Bi R
B R A EREE - AT HRER
HR17,692%B T (ZF—N5F : 17,69278
) - SFARBE LA GEHBRENE
ATFEI BN - RZIVA -

AR EIREYER ERLEEBURE T
T ABEZ —BEFHRER  Bitk
NEREMERNEZE - FTASFETKE
B THR6,7428TLE 67,4258 T (ZF
— L& : 6,804 T2 57,8378 70) o B
FORER EASERIREMELTEFE
BN RZINR e

RE—EFER 2 HETALESD - A
TEDRE ERYE S RERBERR S
HEHE  REARRAERARLET
=
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29. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 29. BEWEE
Supplier
and
distribution Brand Trading
networks names Patents rights Total
e
Ro#EFEE mESE SR RS A5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THET THET THETT TETT

At 1 January 2019 R=Z—NF
—H—H
Cost B 7R 20,927 271,867 32,203 7,246 332,243
Accumulated amortisation Z&T#E8E NOREEE
and impairment losses (16,992) (229,738) (32,203) - (278,933)
Net carrying amount 0RO E 3,935 42,129 - 7,246 53,310
Year ended 31 December BEZE=-ZF—hFE+=
2019 B=+—HIEEE
Opening carrying amount  F #JBREI (& 3,935 42,129 = 7,246 53,310
Amortisation BiE (1,644) (72) = = (1,716)
Exchange realignment b H A (45) 540 - - 495
Closing carrying amount FRIREE 2,246 42,597 = 7,246 52,089
At 31 December 2019 R=F—NF
+=HA=t+—H
Cost B 20,670 276,662 32,581 7,246 337,159
Accumulated amortisation 25t # &R E
and impairment losses &8 (18,424) (234,065) (32,581) - (285,070)
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,246 42,597 = 7,246 52,089
Year ended 31 December BE=—Z =T F
2020 +=—A=+—8
IEFE
Opening carrying amount 18R E & 2,246 42,597 = 7,246 52,089
Amortisation 2 5 (1,712) (72) - - (1,784)
Exchange realignment DEE 3¢, 3 B8 299 3,811 - - 4,110
Closing carrying amount £ REREE 833 46,336 - 7,246 54,415
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE_ZF
tT=A=+-—AH
Cost BN 21,909 295,965 35,516 7,246 360,636
Accumulated amortisation 2 &t 85 M EE
and impairment losses B8 (21,076) (249,629) (35,516) - (306,221)

Net carrying amount 0RO E 833 46,336 - 7,246 54,415
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29. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, intangible assets of HK$47,169,000
(2019: HK$44,843,000) are attributable to watches and timepieces
business while intangible assets of HK$7,246,000 (2019:
HK$7,246,000) are attributable to financial business.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to
HK$110,730,000 (2019: HK$101,452,000) are attributable to the
CGU of Corum Group. The intangible assets of Corum Group had
been fully impaired in previous years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to
HK$101,216,000 (2019: HK$$98,214,000) and intangible assets
with definite useful lives amounted to HK$757,000 (2019:
HK$734,000) are attributable to the CGU of The Dreyfuss Group
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Dreyfuss Group”). The intangible
assets of Dreyfuss Group had been fully impaired in previous years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to
HK$2,850,000 (2019: HK$2,850,000) and HK$4,396,000 (2019:
HK$4,396,000) are attributable to the CGU of Shun Heng Securities
Limited (“Shun Heng”) and Hong Kong Metasequoia Capital
Management Limited (“Metasequoia Capital”) respectively. Details
of the impairment assessment of the CGU of Shun Heng and
Metasequoia Capital are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives amounted to
HK$46,265,000 (2019: HK$42,000,000) are attributable to the
CGU of Ernest Borel Group. The recoverable amount of the CGU
are determined by the directors based on fair value less costs of
disposal. Details of the impairment assessment of the CGU of
Ernest Borel Group are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

29. BMIELEE (&)

RZBE-_EEFE+-_A=+—0 &F
A EE47,169,0008 L (=T — N &F:
44,843,000/ 7T) 5@ B EEk KA E
MER MEFEET,246,00087T (=F
— L& 1 7,246,000 7T) Al SFER RS
77% o

BEEERAFAFHZEREE
110,730,000 T (=& — h &F :
101,452,000%7C) GERIREELEBNE
wBEE BEESKENEFEERTFER
HURE ©

EEERAUERAFHZERLEE
101,216,000 7T (ZF — N % -
98,214,000/ 70) R A A A R Al £ F 4
Z B\ EET57,0008 T (ZE—HF:
734,000 7T) B BN IR & E L E L The
Dreyfuss Group Limited K& & ff & 2 &
([FrREEE]) FrREENETEE
REFE 2BURE o

BEERFRAF A2 &K & E 2,850,000
Bt (ZZF— 4 : 2,850,000/ T) &
4,396,000/ 7t (= Z — AL4F : 4,396,000
BIL) D BIFRBREBESEABMIEFIS
ERAR([EF)) REBKEEEERER
RARl([KZEE]) - REELEMNET
KK B EZBEFTHFBEHNGE TS
HmFMIFE30 -

BB ERER T2 EFEE 46,265,000
BT (ZZ— % £ 42,000,000/87T) 528
RRESEAEMKERER -ZBSEE
BNl ESBELEESERBATEREE
RAERE - e EEEMKEEREEZR
B EF B AR E M IS REME30 -
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30. GOODWILL 30. &
The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset recognised in the ¥BEHEEZRERERBER AR AER
consolidated statement of financial position, arising from business REEZERCEHESHENAT :
combinations, is as follows:
2020 2019
—EC-RF | ZFNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHIT
At 1 January W—B—H
Gross carrying amount REBE 1,210,135 1,213,345
Accumulated impairment losses 2R EEE (145,084) (141,793)
Net carrying amount BRmEFE 1,065,051 1,071,552
Year ended 31 December BE+t-A=1t—-HLEE
Opening carrying amount FREE 1,065,051 1,071,552
Exchange realignment PE 5 A & 79,020 (6,501)
Closing carrying amount FEARREE 1,144,071 1,065,051
At 31 December R+=A=+—H
Gross carrying amount REBE 1,296,629 1,210,135
Accumulated impairment losses ZREDREEE (152,558) (145,084)
Net carrying amount BRmEFE 1,144,071 1,065,051
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30. GOODWILL (Continued) 30.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
the CGUs under watch and timepieces segment and banking and
financial businesses segment. The CGUs were identified as follows:

SETTRERR - BB K EE R RET
DHRURRITREBEGIBCHTESL
B - REELBMDREANR

2020 2019
—EC-FF | ZFNF
Segment HK$'000 HK$'000
28 FHET THETT
Jia Cheng Investment Limited and its Watches and timepieces 649,530 611,694
subsidiaries
ERREAR AR RENBE AR §E R & B ST E
Corum Group Watches and timepieces 54,471 49,907
Em&HE §E 8k K B ST E m
Dreyfuss Group Watches and timepieces 98,087 95,176
a5 §E 8k S B ST E m
Bendura Group Banking business 269,549 246,961
=i EE RITHRTS
Shun Heng Financial business 801 801
Ed BRI
Metasquoia Capital Financial business 2,279 2,279
IKEBE S
Ernest Borel Watches and timepieces 221,912 203,317
OB B 5= B §E 5k X B 5
Gross carrying amount 1,296,629 1,210,135
FRm (e

The Group's management has engaged Asset Appraisal to perform
valuations for the purpose to assess the recoverable amount of
the goodwill arising from the acquisitions. The keys assumptions
as adopted in the valuations, including the expected profit
margins and the managements’ expectations for the future market
performance.

AEBERECRBHBHEETMHE A
AHEWRBELRE 2 AR E S - 4E
BNz T2RJIEEEMERENRE
BEHBRMISRANFEN -



30. GOODWILL (Continued)

Jia Cheng Investment Limited and its subsidiaries

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a
value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the directors covering a five-
year period, followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flow
at zero growth rate (2019: zero) which do not exceed the long-
term growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates, and
a discount rate of 17.05% per annum (2019: 21%). The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.
The directors believe that any reasonably possible changes in the
key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable of the CGU as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. No
impairment loss was recognised for this CGU since the acquisition
of Jia Cheng Investment Limited and its subsidiaries.

Corum Group

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Corum Group in the
watch and timepieces segment had been fully impaired in previous
years.

Dreyfuss Group

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Dreyfuss Group in the
watch and timepieces segment had been fully impaired in previous
years.

Bendura Group
The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a

value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the directors covering a five-
year period, followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flow
at zero growth rate (2019: zero) which do not exceed the long-
term growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates, and
a discount rate of 14.77% (2019: 14.49%) per annum. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.
The directors believe that any reasonably possible changes in the
key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable of the CGU as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. No
impairment loss was recognised for this CGU since the acquisition
of Bendura Group.
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30. GOODWILL (Continued)

Shun Heng

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs are determined by
the directors based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
determination of fair value less costs of disposal is based on
the recent similar transactions in the market. The fair value
less cost of disposal of these CGUs are level 3 recurring fair
value measurement. The key significant unobservable inputs to
determine the fair value less cost of disposal are the discount
specific to uncertainty on expected profitability of those CGUs.
The higher in the discount would result in a lower the fair value
less cost of disposal of the CGUs, and vice versa. The directors
of the Company concluded that, based on the assessment result,
no impairment loss on goodwill has been recognised for the year.
(2019: Nil)

Metasequoia Capital

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a
value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the directors covering a five-
year period, followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flow
at zero growth rate (2019: Zero) which do not exceed the long-
term growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates, and
a discount rate of 21.2% (2019: 22%) per annum. The discount
rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the CGU.
The directors believe that any reasonably possible changes in the
key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable of the CGU as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. No
impairment loss was recognised for the year (2019: Nil).

Ernest Borel

The recoverable amount of the CGU are determined by
the directors based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
determination of fair value less costs of disposal is based on the
market price of Ernest Borel’s share. The fair value less cost of
disposal of the CGU is level 1 fair value measurement. The directors
of the Company concluded that, based on the assessment result,
no impairment loss on goodwill has been recognised for the year.
(2019: Nil)

Goodwill arising from business combinations prior to

2001

Goodwill arising from business combinations prior to 2001
had been eliminated against the consolidated reserves. As at
31 December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill in the
consolidated reserves was HK$15,300,000 (2019: HK$15,300,000).
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31. OTHER ASSETS 31. HtEE
2020 2019
—EC-RF | ZFNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx T
Other receivables Hh B UK 182,385 172,260
Dividend receivable from an associate FEUY — A B A EI R R

(note 46.1) (BfsE46.1) 10,000 5,000

Amounts due from an associate (note 46.1)  FEUZ — R B2 A 7] 208
(BtEE46.1) 18,315 18,315
Amounts due from related companies JE W & 2 R R IE (P EE 46.1)

(note 46.1) 1,065 1,065
Prepayments TEfRIE 95,002 118,395
Deposits i 23,770 67,107
Management and performance fees W ER R EHNE

receivables 11,636 10,182
Other interest receivables Hh & U B 28,240 24,387
Settlement and clearing account R REERP 461 160

370,874 416,871

Other receivables represented cash advance to staff, VAT
receivable, other advances and deposits in the securities accounts.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of the Group’s other assets
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense after one year
is HK$7,144,000 (2019: HK$8,100,000). The remaining other assets
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one
year.

Movements in expected credit losses for the other assets are as
follows:

HitRUGREMETAN B T 23R & - 1BER
FEN IR « HtB AR EFHFEREFR

R-ZE-_ZTF+-_F=+—H AEFH
b EETEFHE R —F &K E R ER A
S ZEHAT 44,0008 (ZBE—HE:
8,100,00087T) ° 84 N EAth & ETEFTA —
FRUREIKERBAX

HitvBEHRMEEERESHMOT :

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZE-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT THT

At 1 January R—H—H 7,111 5,313
Expected credit losses for the year FREHEEER 826 2,167
Exchange realignment PE H A% 440 (369)
At 31 December R+=—A=1+—~H 8,377 7,111
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32. DUE TO CLIENTS

32. ENEFRE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT T
Due to clients — precious metals EBNEFRE-ESE 130,119 56,762
Other amounts due to clients, mainly bank H fth & < &= P 508
deposits (E2RRITER) 13,835,358 11,906,290
13,965,477 11,963,052
33. TRADE PAYABLES 33. BHR
2020 2019
—B-%F | ZTNHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Trade payables arising from watches and BHRASAEMEBELEZ
timepiece business (note a) JESTBR R (MizEa) 245,246 304,944
Trade payables arising from financial business & Bl 3% 752 4 2 JE [ AR X
(note b): (FizEb) :
— Cash clients —-HEEP 107,208 101,812
— Margin clients —REBEEF 8,170 1,269
— Clearing house —HEER - 3,402
115,378 106,483
Trade payables FESTBR K 360,624 411,427
(@) The credit terms of trade payables arising watches and () BENEGEIEmMEBESE ZEMNER

R =B AR B B[R] 4 7 th 7
Z R & o $BER K B AT EE m T
ZENBERBTEE -

timepieces business vary according to the terms agreed
with different suppliers. Trade payables to watches and
timepieces business are non-interest bearing.



33.

34.

TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

(@)  (Continued)

Ageing analysis of trade payables arising from watches and
timepieces business as at the reporting dates, based on the

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

. BNRR

@ (&)

ﬁﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁé?ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁFEZFéﬁ
PIRBER B HNEE B Z iRk

invoice dates, is as follows: ﬁgzu‘r :
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NEF
~ HKs'000 HK$'000
FET FET
1 to 3 months 12318 A 190,025 278,983
4 to 6 months 4% 6{E A 2,200 6,977
Over 6 months HBiE6EA 53,021 18,984
245,246 304,944

(b)  The settlement term of trade payables arising from securities
dealing of the financial business is “T+2". Trade payables
arising from securities dealing of financial business during
the "T+2" period are current whereas those which are
outstanding after the”T+2" period are repayable on
demand.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities mainly represented the advance
consideration received from customers. As at 31 December
2020, the aggregated amount of transaction price allocated to
performance obligations under the Group's existing contract is
HK$13,824,000 (2019: HK$18,565,000).The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future when or as the work is completed,
which is expected to occur in the next 12 month.

34.

b) BHFEECMEBEEZENER
z%%;tﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁrnzj RIT+2] 55
BHEEESRERELEZEN
UA%EDHE Ml T+2 | ARSI 1% -
r‘ﬁk B ENRRAIBERERE

}&o

BHEE

BHEEETZEAERFWERZ BAHAE -
R-_ZE_TF+_A=+—8 HE=E
REABREANTERAEEZRZER
4% 513,824,0008 L (ZF — NLF -
18,565,000/ 7T) ° A 2R + A5 B A sk
PR TIRFERTEH A - BIFEE R AR
RA2ME A #HFT -

264



265

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited EMEHKIAE REER A

34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 34. EHEE W
Movement of contract liabilities EBREEED

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHT
Balance as at 1 January R—A— Bz 18,565 30,918

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ~ FEFRNIER Wz FE A L& B D
recognising revenue during the year (18,419) (30,792)

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of ABURIERF A L B EE
receipts in advance 13,084 18,588
Exchange realignment PE 3 & 594 (149)
Balance as at 31 December R+—B=+—B2&% 13,824 18,565
35. CORPORATE BONDS 35. AAEIfEHF

2019
—NF
HK$'000
T T
At 1 January R—H—H 760,244
Amortisation of transaction costs RSB 2,729
Repayment of the bonds BEES (756,022)
Exchange realignment PE 3 3 & (6,951)
At 31 December R+t-—A=+—8” -

On 24 July 2014, the Group issued CHF denominated corporate
bonds of principal amount of CHF100,000,000 bears interest at
3.625% per annum. The interests of the corporate bonds are paid in
arrears on 24 July every year. The corporate bonds are listed in SIX
Swiss Exchange in Switzerland and guaranteed by the Company.
The corporate bonds expired on 24 July 2019. The Group fully
repaid the corporate bond upon its maturity during the year ended
31 December 2019.

R-ZBE—NELA-+WNBE ~A&EE
BT T A RRES NE&EA
100,000,000 ¥+ 7K BB » &2 4 F 2 3.625%
AR -ZERABELFNERETF LA
Zt+MHBS BN c ZEARESFRInL
RBATEMRAARBER - ZEFQ
RIEFR =T —NAFLA=-+tImAZIH-
HEZZT-—NF+ZA=+—HILFE "
REBERBEET R ARES -
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36. BORROWINGS 36. BE

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Bank overdrafts (note 36.1) R1TB > (MizE36.1) 52,711 48,294
Bank borrowings (note 36.1) RI7EE (Mi5E36.1) 1,512,111 1,676,685
Margin loan payable (note 36.2) ERHRZE 2 ER (M 36.2) - 15,383
1,564,822 1,740,362

36.1 Bank overdrafts and bank borrowings 361 RITEZRBITHE

Including in the bank borrowings that the syndicated loans
with outstanding principal amount is HK$732,630,000 (2019:
HK$817,702,000) as at 31 December 2020. On 16 July 2019,
the Group entered into a facility agreement with a syndicated
of banks (“Syndicated Banks”), in which Syndicated Banks
agreed to grant a term loan facility in the amount up to
US$150,000,000 to the Group for a term of 36 months.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of the Group's bank
overdrafts and bank borrowings repayable within one year or
on demand is HK$1,554,724,000 (2019: HK$1,724,979,000).

RZBE_ZTF+-_A=+—8"
BOEERENAEELAS A
732,630,000 L (=& — (& :
817,702,000 7T) BIERE E 5K - I

E—NFELA+TB AEEHE
SRESRTT ([SREERTIT]) 5T @b & 179
% RERTRAEMNAEERLE
HARHE =% 150,000,000 3= 7T * A HA
36 & A °

R—ZE_TF+-_A=+—H &

EEBER—FANEERIZRERKE
BZRTEIRRITEESREA
1,554,724,0008 T (Z T — N%F :
1,724,979,0007% 7T) ©
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36. BORROWINGS (Continued)

36.1 Bank overdrafts and bank borrowings (Continued)
Based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on
demand clause. Borrowings are repayable as follows:

36.

R-4€)

361 RITEZIRBITEE (B

RESNREF

S

HEEsA

2 BAE RImEBREMGFRZ
2 FERARTIHAEN

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Borrowings payable: EREE :
Within one year or on demand R —F AR ERK 1,477,347 1,724,979
In the second year RE—F 5,696 -
In the third to fifth year RE=E=FHhE 81,779 =
87,475 -
1,564,822 1,724,979
The abovementioned borrowings are charged at floating Fat B ERE B FE M ENF0%
rates ranging from 0% to 5.94% (2019: 1.00% to 5.94%) per £594% (ZZE—NF : 1.00% =

annum.

At the reporting dates, the Group's borrowings were secured
by:

(i) corporate guarantees provided by certain subsidiaries
within the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019;

(i) entire equity interest of certain subsidiaries within the
Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019;

(iii)  subordination deeds signed by the Directors of the
Group as at 31 December 2020;

(iv) guarantee provided by the government of certain
country as at 31 December 2020;

(v)  personal guarantee provided by an non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary of the Group and certain
independent third parties as at 31 December 2020;

5.94%) st B °

RBEBH  AEEZEEATS
FIRMEEM

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AEBETHBARANR-E
—EFER_FT—NF+=A
=+—HAEREZARER

AEEETHEAAR-S
—EER-_F-NE+_A
=t A2 EHRE

FEBEEN B TF+—
A=+—BR%FZRERE:

ETHERBAR_T_FF
T A=+ —BRREHZE
&

AEE—HH B AR 2 IEE
BESEETELE=FR
—E-FTF+-_A=+—H
BTt 2 EA LR
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36. EE (®)
361 RITEZIRBITEE (B

36. BORROWINGS (Continued)

36.1 Bank overdrafts and bank borrowings (Continued)

(vi) certain assets of the non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary of the Group and certain independent third
parties as at 31 December 2020;

(vii) a legal charge over the Group's property, plant
and equipment with the carrying amount of
HK$310,118,000 (2019: HK$95,180,000) as at 31
December 2020;

(vii) certain of the Group’s trade receivables with the
carrying amounts of HK$13,484,000 as at 31
December 2019; and

(ix) pledged bank deposits of HK$111,763,000 as at 31
December 2019.

Certain of bank overdrafts and bank borrowings contain
clause which give the banks the right at their sole discretion
to demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective
of whether the Group has complied with the covenants and
met the scheduled repayment obligations. Borrowings due
for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and are expected to be settled within one
year. The carrying amounts of the bank overdrafts and bank
borrowings are approximate to their fair value.

As at 31 December 2020, one of the financial covenants
as stipulated in the relevant agreements in respect of
borrowings with outstanding principal of approximately
HK$784,630,000 was not satisfied. Accordingly, from
accounting perspective, the aforesaid borrowings would
be regarded as immediately due and payable should the
lenders exercise their rights under the agreements as at 31
December 2020. HK$52,000,000 of the abovementioned
balance has been fully repaid subsequent to the reporting
date and the relevant banks have granted a waiver to the
Group for the remaining balance of HK$732,630,000 in
respect of the unsatisfied financial covenant before the date
of authorisation of the financial statements.

vi) AERE—RHHERRZIFE
hf*&é¥ﬁi%_ﬁﬁ
—E-TEF+_H=+—H
ZETEE:

vi)y AEBRZ=ZZFE=_ZF+=
A=+ -—BE®EEA
310,118,000 7t (=& — AL
¢ © 95,180,000 7T) 2 ¥

BB R EEE A ERT

wii) REBR -_ZE—-hAE+=
A=+t—RAz2EHEE:AE
13,484,000/8 T 2 & T FE UL
R &

ix R-E—NF+_A=+—
H 111,763,000 7T 2 & &4 #f
SRITTERR °

HETHRTEIRBRITEERELT
#8717 7] 2SR AR B R BN B (E 1 2
1%@’]\ 2GS M mAS

BIZARFEEEENE
E F FREBEMZEEIHSD

BEREREME - BFEHR—
FRE - RITEZ RRTEESR
AEEERAFEBEE

\I]]]

<f7f$¢+ A=+—8 %
BEEREBABRETR —BEMENE
%ﬁ ERERNAEBEAENA
784,630,000 7T ° it - &5 A
E RZFE=ZTF+=—_A=+—H
T ERARIB R RITERER - ZE
B RAI AR AR B B o b a4
52,000,000 7T B A &= B #i1E %
HEE BERARTERMBHRERE
TR B AR ZEK M IELEEIERN
#8 T 45 #2732,630,000 7% 7T [A] A8 &
EETEHE -
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36. BORROWINGS (Continued)

36.2 Margin loan payable

There is no margin loan payable as at 31 December 2020.
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the interest rate of
the margin loan payable is 4.84% per annum and repayable
on demand. At 31 December 2019, margin loan payable was
secured by the Group’s trading portfolio investments with the
carrying amount of HK$109,815,000. The carrying amount of
the margin loan payable is approximate to its fair value. As at
31 December 2019, margin loan payable of HK$15,383,000
are attributable to financial business.

37. PROVISIONS

36. EE ®)

362 ERREBESER
R—_E-_ZTF+=-_A=+—H"
MEEMNREBLER -BHE_Z
—hE+_A=+—RHLFE" &
NRBEESERZFEFERA4.84%
WEBEREE - R_T—hE+—
A=+—8 EHRIJESERUR
& B R & A 109,815,000 7T 2
RHWERERER - EBHRELE
HEEMEEEAFEREE R=F
—NWFE+—_A=1+—8  BEMNRE
£ B 7% 15,383,000;8 T /55K B £ &b
Ey

7. 8%

2020 2019
—Bo2HF == JF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THETT

Provision for litigation and tax risks 7 AR R B 7% L B B 4
At 1 January Rn—HA—H - 476
Utilised in accordance with designated purpose 15 #1487 F i &) F (1,654) =
Newly formed and charged to profit or loss #7337 K 5 s Kl 2k &5 15 A #1 Bk 1,907 =
Released and credited to profit or loss BRI R mT A0 A S B 18 = (394)
Exchange realignment BEE i 3 B 115 (82)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 368 —

Maturity of the provisions BEZHE

Within one year —FR 368 -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, provision for
litigation risks of HK$1,907,000 (2019: reversal of provision of
HK$394,000) has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

As part of the normal business activities of banking business, the
Group is exposed to a wide range of legal risks. These include
in particular risks relating to litigation. The Group recognises
provisions for such litigation risks if the Group’s management and
its legal advisors are of the opinion that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount. The amount of the provisions and their
timing are by their nature subject to uncertainty. However, these
uncertainties are evaluated as being low since it was possible to
reliably estimate the individual amounts and the majority of the
recognised provisions will probably become due within one year.

BEZZ-ZTF+_A=+—HILFE
o 74 2 B 8 #% 1,907,0008 7T (ZF — 11
F - B O EH394,0008 ) ERNGEE R
EIU AR A R o

ERRITEFAEXRFAD &0 A&
EmERSRERER - ZFRRE1EEF
ABRZSERR  MAKEEREME
FEBEMRRBREENE 2 ERATALR
B S RaE I SEfbEr - IR B ZFA
[\ B e R R - BB R R E B ERIE A
HEZ I EERERR - A - HREER
S AEHERNSENAZ B ARG
BER —FREE - BUL LA ZF I EE
HERBIE -
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38. LEASE LIABILITIES 38. HEAE
The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial FRNFAZEHHERARTAEERERE
position in respect of the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and FREEMNSBEUARESHNT :
the movements during the year is as follows:
Land and Motor
buildings vehicles Total
T RIEF RE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—H—H 90,627 _ 90,627
Additions NE 18,019 2,143 20,162
Interest expenses FEFREY 4,549 84 4,633
Lease modification HEENR 10,099 - 10,099
Lease payments HERNK (41,822) (291) (42,113)
Exchange realignment P& 5 J 2 564 3 567
As at 31 December 2019 and R=F—-NF+=—A=+—H
1 January 2020 MZZ_TF—H—H 82,036 1,939 83,975
Additions NE 4,875 - 4,875
Interest expenses 2B 7 3,327 64 3,391
Lease modification HEBK 8,926 - 8,926
Lease payments HER® (44,451) (536) (44,987)
Exchange realignment PE i 3 ER 1,341 49 1,390
As at 31 December 2020 N—FE—F&#+—-F=+—H 56,054 1,516 57,570
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38. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

TSR A E R B AR A A

38. HEEE®
FREAENROFBRROT -

2020 2019
—ECFF | —ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Minimum lease payment due SR & RE MR
— Within one year ——FR 35,755 42,987
— In the second to fifth years, inclusive —EZEERF 18,793 40,190
(BRREBEERN)
— After fifth years —hENUE 17,850 16,584
72,398 99,761
Less: future interest expenses s ARIRF B (14,828) (15,786)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 57,570 83,975
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: AREENKBESFTOT :
2020 2019
—B-%F | ZTNHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Current liabilities mBAE 34,291 40,337
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE 23,279 43,638
57,570 83,975
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Short term leases expenses CHHERS 18,014 16,892
Aggregate undiscounted commitments for 55 HATH & AR AL IR A 25
short term leases 9,134 3,901
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39. DEFERRED TAX 39. ELERIR
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under BERIAR B EERARNEB X ER
the liability method using the applicable tax rates prevailing in the R ZBITERARE R GRS ZR 2T
jurisdictions in which the Group operates. Ele
Details of the Group’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised REBZ ERRECHEBELE, (BE) &
and movements are as follows: HEEFEHIIWT
Temporary
Revaluation  Revaluation difference
of of property, arising  Decelerated Other
intangible ~ plant and from bond tax  temporary
assets  equipment  Taxlosses  repurchase depreciation  differences Total
BEES
Eff  Efthx Efe  AEHA Ef
BVEE KERRE  WEBR  ENER wE  ERER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TERL TR TR TERL
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-A (11,397) (33,176) 4,506 166 2,104 (13,139) (50,932)
Credited/(charged) to profit orloss ~ MEFIKE BT A/
(note 11) (08%) (1) - 319 (242) (166) 128 412 511
Charge to other comprehensive  FAEL M ZEMA IR
income - - - - - 1,342 1,342
Exchange realignment EHAE (118) 363 47 - @ 536 824
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-NE+2R
1 January 2020 =t-Hk
“ECRE-[-A (11,515) (32,434) 4,31 - 2,228 (10,845) (48,255)
Credited/(charged) to profitor loss & HIZUE A HA/
(note 11) (k) (RzE11) - 386 (243) - (986) 1,461 618
Effect of change in Switzerland tax R\ & IS E BHRE AR
rate credited to profit or loss b ES EPAZ
(note 11) (RtsE11) - - - - - 7960 7960
Charge to other comprehensive  FOEA 2 ARk
income - - - - - 44 44
Exchange realignment A% 883 (2,661) 45 - (95) 45 (1,783)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZFETN
=i (10632 (34709 4113 : W7 (138 (441
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39. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset. The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

39. EEBIE (®)

RN MIGINRRT 25, - & TRER
BEEMBED THEE - AT ARRYTHE
WEZBIETIRE R DT -

2020 2019
—ECFF | ZFNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET T T

Deferred tax assets REFIEE B 13,961 11,626
Deferred tax liabilities EETHIEEE (55,377) (59,881)
(41,416) (48,255)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$493,223,000 (2019:
HK$371,528,000), subject to the agreement of Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses in United Kingdom of HK$177,563,000 (2019:
HK$171,887,000), subject to the agreement of tax bureau in United
Kingdom, that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. No
deferred tax assets (2019: nil) have been recognised in respect of
these estimated unused tax losses as these were incurred by the
companies that have been loss-making for some time.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has estimated unused
tax losses in Switzerland of HK$1,332,094,000 (2019:
HK$1,211,787,000), subject to the agreement of tax bureau in
Switzerland, that are available for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets of HK$4,113,000 (2019: HK$4,311,000) have been
recognised in respect of these estimated unused tax losses to the
extent of deferred tax liabilities recognised in respect of revaluation
of identifiable assets as a result of the acquisitions. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of the estimated
unused tax losses as these were incurred by the subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time. These estimated unused tax
losses will be available for offsetting against future taxable profit for
a maximum period of five years from the reporting date.

R—ZBE-_ZEFE+-_A=+—H8 " K
SEREBELEGTADARES
$8493,223,0008 0 (ZZF — N F :
371,528,000/ 7T) - BFEFE B -
AR AR R{ER SN E LB AT 2 BB FE
R T Al o

R—ZBE-_ZEFE+-_A=+—H K
SERERELEGSADAREES
177,563,000 0 (=ZF — N F :
171,887,000 7T)  BFEERENED H
&% NERPAEREEEBEARZA
B IERBIRF - WEMZEGETABAH
BEEERRELHBEE (ZE—NF:
/) TEREEEEREEBR —BRERH
NEISEIB 2 AT °

R-ZBE-_EEFE+_-_A=+—H ' K
SERmTEABARDRAHRES
$1,332,094,0008 L (= — L F :
1,211,787,000870) * B AFEIEEHREH
e TREREELEEBEATZAR
FERBLER c AWEBEEH A BANEEZ
ERRBELEHBEEBERR Btz E(E5T
ABAREBERRAZELEHBEEER
4,113,000/ 7t (== — /L4 : 4,311,000
PEIT) o WL Z FAET RE AT IEEE
ERELCHIBEE - YR EHEEEE
AR —BREEASSEE ZMB AR - %
EhETARBARIEEEN AERERRA
MRS ARBRT AT 2 BRERBREF



39. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, deferred taxation has not been
provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to the profits earned by
the PRC subsidiaries amounted to HK$1,873,215,000 (2019:
HK$2,152,047,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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39. EEBIE (®)

FRN AR BLERRERIR AR ET
IAEIEEMARRER

R-B-TFE+—F=+—0 KE60%
2% 3 42 Ik AR B8 BB 2 ] BT R B A P A
2 EIE %A 1,873,215,000 8 T (ZE— N
£ 1 2,152,047,00078 7T ) 1 HH 3R AT 71 78 5%
& R A7 5 B A S 1% I 5 O I A = 58
ZERE TR EERAETENAR
5 SR o

40. OTHER LIABILITIES 40. HiW B &
2020 2019
—EC-RF | ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx T
Accruals a4 81,518 105,794
Warranty provision REBE 1,383 5,485
Net defined benefit obligations ERREN B R 113,354 90,908
Accrued interests and commission FEETF B RAE 11,332 15,994
Other tax payable EL A & 1~ A R 30,644 23,457
Interest payable JRE A 7.2 6,269 47
Commission payable Rt {R& 34,308 42,562
Other payables H A & 1R 248,093 212,109
526,901 496,356

Other payables represented accrued management and
performance fees, accrued services fee, accrued salaries and
bonus, accrued audit fee and accrued other operating expenses.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of the Group's other liabilities
expected to be due after more than one year is HK$115,480,000
(2019: HK$97,136,000). The remaining other liabilities are
expected to be due within one year.

HAE A RO E R R BB
RSB - WA LA R WA B R
PR E 0 2 ER S -

RZE-_FEEFE+-_A=+—H & &
EEHERA —FRrIHzEMAEGESD
%85 115,480,0008 7C (ZZE— A& :
97,136,000/ 7T) ° 2 N E b & F T8 HA 15
R—FREH -
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41. SHARE CAPITAL

TSR A E R B AR A A

41. BZ&

during the year are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The share premium account mainly includes shares issued at a
premium.

The share options reserve represents the cumulative expenses
recognised on the granting of share options to the employees over
the vesting period.

Other reserve represents (i) the cumulative expenses recognised on
the granting of share options to an independent third party and (ii)
the effect of transactions with non-controlling interests as disclosed
in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements and (iii) the
effect of the redemption of convertible bond.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries in prior years remain eliminated against the
consolidated reserves.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain of the Group's
subsidiaries established in the PRC are required to transfer part
of their profits after tax to the statutory reserve before profit
distributions are made. The amounts of the transfers are subject to
the approval of the boards of the directors of these subsidiaries,
in accordance with their joint venture agreements and/or articles
of association. The statutory reserve is non-distributable and has
restricted use.

2020 2019
—ECEF —F-NF
Number of Number of
shares shares
BRoHAE R & B
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR F#ET T & T T
Authorised: JERE
Ordinary shares of R—A—BRE+=A
HK$0.10 each at =+—H
1 January and 31 BRMAEEO0.105 T
December 2 EEAR 6,000,000 600,000 6,000,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 January and R—A—B Rk
31 December +TZA=1+—H 4,351,889 435,189 4,351,889 435,189
42. RESERVES 42, [
Group REH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein NEBMNEE Y BESERSEEHNG

AERBBES 27 -

Bt (B 2 B RaERT 2 KD -

REBR M ERBENEBHREAES R
RBERMEPER RS

Hih BRI —BBYFE =R ERE
B AP R SR 2 R TR ¢ (ii) B FEFE AR e
wmETR 52 2 (RirE Rz
47 B ) M (i ER AR EH 2 & -

REEFERBHBARMELZETH
BN RA R -

BRABEER  AREETRPEKLZ
BB A BME LS N 2 IRAT - AR E &S
B 0 18 )5 M) 4 8 2 05 T b » TR BGRERZR
MZEMNBRARCERTEREAZE LW
ZR/FARERBRNE EEREET
Aok - BREAMERS
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42. RESERVES (Continued) 42. f#E
Group (Continued) AEE(H)
Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences RARMIE 4.23 AFTE AN 2 2 ETBUR - JMNE
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign EEEIEREGINEET IS MRMEEZ
operations in accordance with the accounting policy adopted in FTEIEHZ5 -
note 4.23.
Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve represents BRAFER AR ME2EE A FEHEEERNT
gains or losses on remeasuring the financial assets classified as BHRRBAFEFAREMEERAZ S
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. BEECSREEZ WasEiE -
Revaluation reserve for property, plant and equipment is the M BEMREELEERBYE B
revaluation gain arising from the transfer of property, plant and FEhREEREREMEREEZ BRI
equipment to investment properties. o
Company AT
The reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 RRBR B _ZEFER—"T-NF+_H
are as follows: =+—BZREEET
Fair value
through
other
Share  comprehensive
premium income Other Retained
account reserve reserve profits Total
BATEH A
At
Rtvafk 2EUARE HthffE REEH Ay

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAL THATL THARL

At 1 January 2019 R=Z-n%-F-H 682,028 95,802 22,693 - 800,523
Profit and total comprehensive income REERFRZARA
for the year &% - (182,185) - 142,330 (39,855)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIZ-NETZA=T-BR
_;—7¢ A—H 682,028 (86,383) 22,693 142,330 760,668
Profit and total comprehensive income KEERFHREEMA
for the year k] = 44,212 = 242,584 286,796
At 31 December 2020 RZBZBE+-F=1-H 682,028 (42171) 22,693 384,914 1,047,464
Under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as REFRESHSARESE2E (—NR—F
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the FIMEED  IEERE RIERT) AR BIRG
share premium account of the Company are distributable to the mf;%Zﬁ%T#“JE%ﬁ AIARER - M
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following ZREZDIRKE BEE - AARIEREE
the date on which a dividend is proposed to be distributed, the NEEENEEESBEFRIHER -

Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.
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43. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS/

43. REBNZH EIE

COMMITMENTS
43.1 At 31 December 2019 and 2020, total future minimum lease 431 RZZE-NEFR-_ZT-_FTF+=A
receipts by the Group under non-cancellable operating =t—HB RESAUFHILEH
leases are as follows: 2 - NEE YRR EHEE IR
BEMT
2020 2019
—ECFF | ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —FR 3,242 3,657
In the first to second year E—FEF_F 1,209 1,343
In the second to third year E_FEEE=F 1,209 1,221
In the third to forth year E=FFZEMNF 1,209 1,221
In the forth to fifth year ENFEEERNF - 1,221
6,869 8,663
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating AEBRBELEHOLHEEET
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for initial terms M BEZNETENBEP—FZE
ranging from one to five years. None of the leases include HFERNE - ZEBHTBESANE
contingent rentals. % o
43.2 The Group is required to pay an annual fee in respect of 432 XEBHE—NWN_FEZ_TW_F

the leasehold land in the PRC from 1992 up to 2042 with a
20% increment for every five years. During the year ended
31 December 2020, an annual fee of HK$559,000 (2019:
HK$567,000) was charged as an expense in profit or loss of
the Group.

b BEpHEr —wmEE LT
FE FESRAFEM20% - &HE
—E-_FE+-_A=+—HItF
g - £%8559,000/8 L (=T — N
F 1 567,000 70) B A AN B F
HEBANERAS L -



44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the reporting date, the Group had the following outstanding

commitments:
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_7_

44, EREIE
RBER » AEBMKRBTZAEDT -

2020 2019
=B-2HF | —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TETT
Contracted, but not provided for BRI N{ERBE
— Capital contribution to a property project —A—AMXAEBTE
(note (a)) (Pt &£ (a)) - 212,652
— Investment in an associate — Citychamp — B E N B 2B —
Allied International Limited (note (b)) BMAEBBRAERAT
(P& (b)) 270,000 270,000
270,000 482,652
Notes: PsE
(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, EBOHR Luxuries @ BEZT-NFT_A=t—HLFE"
International Ltd ("EBOHR"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the ARA2EWBERAMRERED ORI B
Company, entered into an agreement with several independent BRAFN(MKEAEm]) SR B RIA R 2
third parties for the property project in the PRC. Pursuant to the BT BN L =TT L ek iRkt S
agreement, EBOHR agreed to contribute the capital amount up to ﬁlﬁnﬁ%¥155 H &% 212,652,000
HK$212,652,000 into the property project. EBOHR has withdrawn AL -BE_Z_ZFF+t_A=1+—8
from the project during the year ended 31 December 2020. EFE  KRBREREZIER -
(b)  On 28 September 2016, Union United Investment Limited (“Union (b) R-E—RNENA=-+N\B XAFZ

United"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with Citychamp Dartong (Hong Kong) Limited (“CD(HK)")
and Fengrong Investment (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“FI(HK)"),
in relation to the formation of the joint venture company (“JV
Company”) in the British Virgin Island. JV Company shall be owned
as to 40% by FI(HK), 30% by CD(HK) and 30% by Union United.
JV Company is engaged in potential overseas equity investment.
Pursuant to the agreement, Union United agreed to contribute the
maximum capital commitment of HK$270,000,000 to JV Company.
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 28 September 2016.

2EWBRARBMBERRAR ([

M) EBHAB(FB BRAA(E
BWAE (BB RLBREE (BB E
AR ([LBIEE (FH)]) I Lk
NABBAREBELZESHKIEE QA
(TEERAR]) - ERIE (BH) - TH
Kl (BB REMEDHEEE AR

40% ~ 30% N 30% #E# o & E A RN E
BIE R INR AR E 555 o IRIEX I
KRR E R E & A REL e & A RE
270,000,000 7T ° R HF IBHR A A A
BHA-—T—ANFAA-TN\BZAH -

278



279

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited

45. OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

TSR A E R B AR A A

45. EERERIER

2020 2019

—ECFF | —ZFNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Irrevocable commitments ] W (2] 34,122 20,983
Contract volume BHE 4,575,516 4,531,412
Fiduciary transactions with third-party banks B35 = 5 iR1T 257t 5 407,207 2,582,678
5,016,845 7,135,073

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

46.1 Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions carried

out with related parties:

(i) Transactions with an associate, Fair Future and its

46. AEALRS

46.1 Bire BIIE R
EHN

TR

(i)

E-EBREQAT KRARH

subsidiaries MEARZRS
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T T
Sales of goods EmiHE 94 798
Purchases of goods BEEm 13,287 37,122
Rental expenses paid ENESRX 354 354
Inspection fee paid EffEER 55 47
Interest expenses T BB 2 1,095 1,048




46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

46.1

— = —

=
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46. BBEATRH (B

(Continued) 46.1 (&)
(i) Transactions between Shun Heng and the related iy EFHEXIEEBEALZR
parties of the Group 2
2020 2019
—EC-RF | ZFNF
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALER REMHE THET FHET
Directors of the company and their Services fees and commission
close family members income 10 8
RRREEREERBE AR75 B R AR & WA
Interest income 4 4
MEMKA
Related company Services fees and commission
FAE N T income 92 265
AR75 B R AR & WA
Interest income 8 5
B A

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, a director of the Company is

also the director and beneficial owner of the related

company.

RAREEEFREL LTS
BRRZEENERBEEA °
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BREEKEEEBRA

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

46.1

(Continued)
Outstanding related party balances included in

(iii)

BEALRS H)

46.1 (#8)
(iii)

FFABWERR - HthEE -

trade receivables, other assets, trade payables ENRRREMEEZARE
and other liabilities HEAEALEE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —ET-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx T
Dividend receivable from an FEU — [ HEE A RIAR B

associate” 10,000 5,000

Due from an associate (note (a))* e U — B & A B K08

(KL (a))* 18,315 18,315
Trade receivables from associates JFE Wi Bt 2 R R BR K 4,108 3,855
Due from related companies JE Uk B 4 N B 3k IE (P EE (b)) #

(note (b))* 1,065 1,065
Due to a shareholder (note (d)) Rt — B IRER 2 5RIB (KL (d)) 12,000 12,000
Trade payables to associates &SRS & A AR AR 58,616 50,595
Due to directors (note (c)) B EEZFIE () 21,233 22,241

& Included in other assets * FFAEMEE
Notes: P 5

The balance was unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The maximum outstanding balance of
amounts due from associates during the year was
HK$18,315,000 (2019: HK$18,315,000).

The amounts were due from companies of which Mr.
Shang Jianguang, Ms. Sit Lai Hei and Mr. Hon Hau
Wong, directors of the Company are also the directors
of the related companies. The balance was unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The maximum
amount outstanding during the year was HK$1,065,000
(2019: HK$1,065,000).

EREHRAEEERR 28
RBERENREE -RER -
= E I RN RN
A) FX I8 45 £4 518,315,000
BT (ZFE — h F

18,315,000/ 7T) °

ZERBEBRERA

1B AR Té??@-ﬁ@t
S ERE LT REE
BEENMAZSIHEED
RlvEE - RSB AE
B B RBRERE
B -NERN  RaAEMNE
%8 51,065,000 7T (=&
— L4 : 1,065,000/87C) ©



46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

46.1 (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Outstanding related party balances included in
trade receivables, other assets, trade payables
and other liabilities (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

As at 31 December 2020, amounts due to Mr. Shang
Jianguang and Mr. Teguh Halim, directors of the
Company, of HK$17,000,000 (2019: HK$22,000,000)
were unsecured, interest bearing 5% (2019: 5%) per
annum and repayable within one year. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, interest expense of
HK$946,000 (2019: HK$241,000) was payable to the
directors. The remaining balance of HK$4,233,000 were
unsecure, interest free and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2020, amount due to a shareholder
of aggregate principal amount of HK$12,000,000
(2019: HK$12,000,000) was unsecured, interest bearing
at 5% per annum and repayable within one year.

Financial guarantee provided to Fair Future

As 31 December 2020, the Group has provided a
corporate guarantee in respect of a banking facility of
up to HK$55,000,000 (2019: HK$30,000,000) granted
to Fair Future (note 49.1). The corporate guarantee is

ending on the expiry of the term of the revolving loan

facility.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance

with the terms mutually agreed between the Group

and the related companies controlled by the directors.

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

46. BBEATRH (B

46.1 (%)

(i) FTABWIRN - HMEE -
EARRREMEEZRE
TRAE A L&k (&)

BeE - (8)

(@ RZTEZT+=—A=+-—
H BRARRIEE=EE
¥ % & K Teguh Halim 5&
A 3% 18 17,000,000 7T
(ZZ— A% : 22,000,000
BT AERKE R FEF
R5% (ZZE— NG :5%)
FFERAR—FREE-
HE_ZT_TF+_A
=+—HILEFE ERE
= X 4 F 8 5 £ 946,000
BT (ZT — h&F
241,000 7T) ° #r N AR
4,233,000 7 7T A K -
BB RBR—FRNERE -

d MZZTE=_ZTF+=HA
=t+—B XEHBHEA
12,000,000 & (= &
— 7L : 12,000,000 7T)
WEN—BRRZHEA
K RFERE 5% AR
RER—FREE -

(iv) MEEEREMHGEER

RZEZZEF+_A=1+—
B AEERETERX—E
£ % 55,000,000/ 7T (=&
— L : 30,000,000/ 7T) Z
RITEVE IR A AR (M
49.1) » REIERARBIRER
b & HABR i jm B 4% LE o

ERR BT AEEEESR
2 2 BE R R EETEZ
{ERRAETT ©
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

46.2 Key management personnel compensation:

Included in staff costs are key management personnel
compensation and comprises the following categories:

46. BEAXTXRF &)

462 TZ2EBABZMS

TEEEAEZMEFT AR THRA
A - BIEATEER

2020 2019

—ECFF | ZFNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Short-term employee benefits R B & A 18,674 28,759
Post-employment benefits BB 12 18 A 352 347
19,026 29,106

The key management represents all directors of the
Company. Further details of directors’ emoluments
are included in note 16.1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

47. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

(a)

Deeded acquisition of additional interest in
Bendura Group

In May 2020, Bendura Bank AG (“Bendura Bank”)
repurchased 400 equity shares at cash consideration
CHF326,000 (equivalent to HK$2,610,000). Following the
repurchase, the Company’s effective equity interest in
Bendura Group increased by 0.17%. The Group recognised
a decrease in non-controlling interest of HK$1,730,000 and a
decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$880,000.

In June 2020, Bendura Bank repurchased 100 equity
shares at cash consideration CHF45,000 (equivalent to
HK$369,000). Following the repurchase, the Company's
effective equity interest in Bendura Group increased by
0.04%. The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling
interest of HK$400,000 and a increase in equity attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$31,000. The effect of
changes in the ownership interest of Bendura Group on the
equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year
is summarised as below:

TEEBABAARRRAES -
EHEZESEME 2 E— S HBHRES
B IEIRERMFE16.1 ©

47. RFEREHR RS

(a)

BARWEENEE 2 BIMES

R-ZTE-_ZFTFERH A BHHETR
HERAR ((EHRT]) LB S
R (E326,000% =% BB (#HE R
2,610,000 7T ) B8 [E 400 A% # &=
B% - FEE R AARIREHE
B ERREEIN017% A% E
T 78 FE 4% P& 4 25 Rk 42 1,730,000 78
TRARARHR ARG R D
880,000/ JT °

RZZT_ZTFXA FiRTMN
184 X (8 45,0005 + 5% BF (F8 5 A
369,000 7T ) & Bl 100 iR #E = X o
BOSTRE  ARBREHERZ
B BR A% HE 1N 0.04% © 7K & B #E R
JE 428 A% #E 25 5 4> 400,000 78 7T K2 A
N EIFER A B RIS 031,000 %5
TR BhEEBEEREY
BEHANRRE ARGEERS 2 F
BT
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47. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 47. HEIERERZ 2R (&)
INTERESTS (Continued)
(a) Deeded acquisition of additional interest in (a) RAEWESHEE ZEIMES
Bendura Group (Continued) (%8)
2020
—_ =' —_ qE
HK$'000
FET

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests B 42 1 ik iz 2 BRI (B

acquired 2,130
Consideration paid for acquisition of WS IEERESE X2 KRB
non-controlling interests (2,979)
Excess of consideration paid recognised REREAER L EXMNREZ
within equity B =R (849)
(b) Partial disposal of interests in Ernest Borel (b) o HEMKE 2R
In January and March 2019, the Group has disposed of RZZE-NEF-—AK=R " ~5E
aggregate 64,006,515 shares of Ernest Borel, representing IAERR1.7478 7T & HKOK & & 3%
approximately 18.42% equity interests of Ernest Borel at 64,006,515 B i 17 + 4918 4R B% Bk
HK$1.74 per share, the total consideration received for W 218.42% » & 5 Bl #E 25 JE X
such disposal is HK$111,371,000. Upon the Completion of Z 8RB /111,371,000 7T ©
the disposal, the Group effective interest in Ernest Borel BERKIE  REERKREZER
decreased from 82.5% to 64.08%. The transaction has been T % B 82.5% 8 2 £ 64.08% ° &
accounted for an equity transaction with the non-controlling AR ZEEREIFERER 2 R
interests. The transaction cost for the equity transaction RGN - BRRG LR PRAR
is HK$4,887,000. The effect of changes in the ownership 4,887,000/ 7T ° F A » KK E
interests of Ernest Borel Group on the equity attributable to HEEER EBHRRARHEER A
owners of the Company during the year is summarised as JEIE R 2 R BB AT
below:
2019
E—NF
HK$'000
FHET

Carrying amount of partial equity interest & #R 0 B i 2 AR (B

disposal (47,443)
Consideration received for the disposal HEERZ RE 111,371
Gain on the disposal recognised within PP HE A RERR 2 & W e

equity 63,928
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47. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

(c)

Deeded acquisition of additional interest in
Bendura Group

During the year ended 31 December 2019, Bendura Bank
repurchased its 350 equity share at cash consideration
of CHF189,000 (equivalent to HK$1,490,000). Following
the repurchase, the Company’s effective equity interest
in Bendura Group increased by 0.15% and the Company
effectively hold 85.22% equity interest of Bendura Group.
The Group recognised a decrease of in non-controlling
interests of HK$1,443,000 and a increase in equity
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$47,000. The
effect of changes in the ownership interest of Bendura Group
on the equity attributable to owners of the Company during
the year is summarised as below:

47. BEFEREZ RS (&)

(c)

BRWBEDEE 2 EIMER

HE-_ZT—NF+=A=+—8H1L
FE - BHEITIARSA(E 189,000
I & BB (48 & 71,490,000 7T)
BBl 350 IR 1D - BRI R IE
ARAREREEESEE 2 s
1N0.15% * A AR BEFHE Stk E
85.22% 2 MR HE o AN SR B RERR FEIE IR
¥ %58 4 1,443,000 7T & AN A 7
BB AFE(GHE2S1E hN 47,0008 7T ©
FHN BHEBREERRZEE)
HARRHEE AR IR 2
g

2019
—T-NF
HK$'000
THET
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests & U 3E45 A i 7 2 BRE (B
acquired 1,443
Consideration paid for acquisition of non- WeRE SEIE i i s B S N 2 (B
controlling interests (1,490)
Excess of consideration paid recognised REREAERLEXNREZ
within equity A AR (47)




47. TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

(d) Effect of transactions with non-controlling
interest on the equity attributable to owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December
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47. EBHFERERZ RS (@)

(d) EFZRERZIXSHBE—=
ZT-NAF+=-A=+—HL#%F
EXRTHEE ABLEER 2T
&

2019 =
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
T
Change in equity attributable to owners of ~ RAFHEAB AELER 2 EBKE :
the Company arising from:
— Partial disposal of equity interest in Erest ~ — B 5y (& R 35 2 Bk f
Borel 63,928
— Transaction cost for equity transaction —#o HERREBRE 2 RS
regarding the partial disposal of equity B 32 5 B 7R
interest in Ernest Borel (4,887)
— Deemed acquisition additional equity — R E W IRTT 2 BN
interest in Bendura Bank (47)
Net effect for transactions with BRI RS EITR G H AR AR A
non-controlling interests on equity ElhtEm 2 FE
attributable to owners of the Company 58,994
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48. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 48. ZERERBRME
OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: MEFBEECARZEE
Borrowings
excluding Due toa Due to Lease
bank-overdrafts shareholder directors liabilities
5K Eff—% ERES
BITEXBRH RR2HE 2B HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER
As at 1 January 2020 W=B-%%-f-H 1,692,068 12,000 22,241 83,975
Proceeds from new loans MERZAETE 765,148 - - -
Advance from directors EEL - - 3,992 -
Repayment of loan BREH - - (5,000) -
Repayment of borrowings EREE (939,838) - - -
Repayment of principal portion of ERHEREALHH
the lease liabilities - - - (41,596)
Interest paid EAFIE (78,378) - (1,187) (3,391)
Total changes from financing cash flow ~ BER & REL B (253,068) - (2,195) (44,987)
Other changes: Hi25:
Interest accrued REatHE 78,378 1,187 3,391
Increase in lease liabilties from entering & WERT A4
into new leases during the year HEAREM - - - 4,875
Lease modification REEX - - 8,926
Exchange adjustments A% (5,267) - - 1,390
As at 31 December 2020 RZE-BE+-A=1-A 1,512,111 12,000 21,233 57,570




OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

48. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

48. mEBE T HRERME @)

_7_
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Borrowings
excluding Corporate Duetoa Due to Lease
bank-overdrafts bonds shareholder directors liabilities
fBg =% ENES
RITEZIRIN ASlEe HﬁZm ZHB HERE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHAT TR THET THL THT
As at 1 January 2019 BR=E-h%-F-H 1,032,367 760,244 73,000 - 90,627
Proceeds from new loans HERHMEHA - - 12,000 22,000 -
Repayment of loan EBRER - = (73,000) = =
Proceeds from new borrowings NEEZHMERA 1,479,128
Repayment of borrowings BREE (866,520) = = = =
Redemption of corporate bonds BOARER - (756,022) - - =
Repayment of principal portion of ~ EREEEEREHH
the lease liabilities - - - - (37,480)
Interest paid EfHE (60,78¢) (18,605) - - (4,633)
Total changes from financing cash ~ BER & 28 1EE
flow 551,822 (774,627) (61,000) 22,000 (42,113)
Other changes: 25
Interest accrued JEsHHIS, 71,841 18,605 - 241 4,633
Amortisation of transaction costs REMAEE - 2,729 - - -
Increase in lease liabilities from FRRFTLHRLME
entering into new leases during RERREEM
the year - - - - 20,162
Lease modification MEBR - - - - 10,099
Exchange adjustments I 5 % 36,038 (6,951) - - 567
As at 31 December 2019 R=B-NE+=A=1-H 1,692,068 - 2,000 22,241 83,975
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49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

49.1 Financial guarantees

49. HAREE
49.1 B ER

2020 2019

—ECFF | —ZFNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FAETT

Financial guarantees B S HEIR 55,000 30,000

At 31 December 2020, the Group had provided a corporate
to guarantee in respect of a banking facility of up to
HK$55,000,000 (2019: HK$30,000,000) granted to an
associate. The corporate guarantee is ending on the expiry
of the term of the revolving loan facility. In the opinion of the
directors, it is unlikely that a claim will be made against the
Group and no cash outflow under the financial guarantee
contract. The directors have assessed and considered
the financial impact arising from the above guarantee is
insignificant.

49.2 Credit card commitments

As 31 December 2020, the Group had contingent liability
in relation to credit card commitments of approximately
HK$93,762,000 (2019: approximately HK$93,462,000) given
to third parties. Credit card commitments represents the
undrawn amount of credit card limits. In the opinion of the
directors, those credit commitments are given with collateral
and the possibility of an outflow of economic resources is not
probable.

R—_E-_ZETF+=-_A=+—8"
AEEG —HBEEQANERRS
55,000,000 L (=& — L4 -
30,000,0007% 7T.) 2 $R 17§ & £ fit
RRER - ARIERNERE R
EHREMFRILE EERA R
BB ERENEAEBIELAR
ZHERN AVEBERE -2
HEFHTRE LERES ZH
BHELTERK -

49.2 ZFRIE
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A 7 R B E#993,762,000 7
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group has various financial assets and financial liabilities
such as trading portfolio investments, derivative financial assets,
cash and deposits, due from banks and clients, trade receivables,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
other financial assets at amortised cost, other assets, derivative
financial liabilities, due to banks and clients, trade payables,
corporate bonds, borrowings, due to a shareholder, due to
directors, lease liabilities and other liabilities, which arise directly
from its operations. The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk, fair value risk and equity price risk.

It is not the Group's policy to actively engage in the trading
of financial instruments for speculative purposes. Its treasury
department works under the policies approved by the directors and
identifies ways to access financial markets and monitors the Group's
financial risk exposures. Regular reports are provided to the
directors. The board has reviewed and agreed policies periodically
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

50.

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

TSR A E R B AR A A

50.1 Summary of financial assets and financial liabilities by

category

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and

financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2020 and

2019 are categorised as follows:

50.1

50. BiIEKREEBERBEER (&)

TRHEERESBMAEIBHE

REZZFZEFR-_FT—NF+A
=t HRERZAEESHEER
cHMEBEEREDESEOT

2020 2019
ZEZEF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TABT
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at fair value: EAFEIEZE/MEE
— Due from banks — JEUWSRIT R IR 130,055 56,935
— Trading portfolio investments —RHEERE 80,310 227,903
— Derivative financial assets —PTESREE 29,224 10,275
239,589 295,113
Financial assets at amortised cost: IZE#SEX AR 2 SR & E ¢
— Cash and deposits —BHE RFR 5,612,645 4,897,246
— Due from clients — Y PR IE 2,463,225 2,093,250
— Due from banks — FEUERATFRIE 5,336,205 4,844,263
— Trade receivables — Fguﬁﬁﬁ?f\ 391,747 478,262
— Other financial assets at — IR SH A AR B AR 2 oAb
amortised cost TREE 1,449,886 1,307,960
— Other assets —HtEE 258,809 276,730
15,512,517 13,897,711
Financial assets at fair value EBEAFEFAEMEERKAZ
through other comprehensive CREE
income 470,794 422,861
16,222,900 14,615,685
Financial liabilities SEAasE
Financial liabilities at fair value: EAFEIEZeREE :
— Due to clients — % P RIE 130,119 56,762
— Derivative financial liabilities —TEsREE 31,334 54,788
161,453 111,550
Financial liabilities measured at BH#ERATTECEMAE
amortised cost:
— Due to banks — BT ERATFRIE 2,639 17,968
— Due to clients —ENEFPFHIA 13,835,358 11,906,290
— Trade payables — FEHEE%’\ 360,624 411,427
— Borrowings —&E8 1,564,822 1,740,362
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 57,570 83,975
— Due to a shareholder — B — B Z 5K IE 12,000 12,000
— Due to directors —ENESEZHIA 21,233 22,241
— Other liabilities —HiaE 494,874 467,414
16,349,120 14,661,677
16,510,573 14,773,227
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. MEEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.2 Interest rate risk 50.2 R =& bz

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from borrowings and bank deposits.
Borrowings and bank deposits bearing variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The interest rate
and repayment terms of the borrowings outstanding at the
end of the reporting period are disclosed in note 36.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings and
bank deposits with a floating interest rate.

Sensitivity Analysis

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group's loss after income tax and increase/decrease the
Group's retained profits by approximately HK$16,427,000
(2019: increase/decrease the Group’s profit after income
tax and retained profits by approximately HK$7,877,000).
The assumed changes have no impact on the Group's other
components of equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of reporting period. The assumed changes in interest
rates are considered to be reasonably possible changes
on observation of current market conditions and represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the next twelve month period.

The calculation is based on a change in average market
interest rates for each period, and the financial instruments
held at each reporting date that are sensitive to changes
in interest rates. All other variable are held constant. The
sensitivity analysis for the year ended 31 December 2019 has
been prepared on the same basis.
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BREEKEEEBRA

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.3 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group
mainly operates in Hong Kong, Switzerland, United Kingdom,
Liechtenstein and the PRC with most of the transactions
denominated and settled in HK$, US$, Euro, CHF, GBP
and RMB. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
primarily arise from certain financial instruments including
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, other assets, cash and deposits, due from clients
and banks, trading portfolio investments, derivative financial
assets, other financial assets at amortised cost, due to clients,
derivative financial liabilities, other liabilities and borrowings
which are denominated in US$, Euro, CHF, GBP and
RMB. The management continuously monitors the foreign
exchange exposure.

The following table summarises the Group’s major financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the respective group

companies as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

. B%

50.3

BREEBZERBE @)

SMEE B B
SNERRIESBMTAEZ AFESE
Kﬁ@?ﬁ%[f‘”@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzrt
S AEBEZNES It
B AT HEERRREE j(-‘E‘B
/_\’\5)1«/(/;575 ETT BT It
AR HERARBIEREE
AEEEHZIINERBREZRE S
FLAZETT - BT « B L0ARB ~ TEE
MARBIIEzEBITE B8R
AEEFAEMEARAZ SRHE
E -HEMEE Be kTR Bk
EPRIRITHIE RZHEEERE -
MESREE  RBHEKAS R
HEhSREE BNBEFHKIE 17
AemEaE EMaEREE-E
BE -—EERINERE

TERBIANR-_ZZE_FFR TN,
F+_A=+—HBAEBENE#EE
BN EE B e EB N BT
BxErEsmEERSRARE -

Expressed in HK$'000
UFHETE5
Us$ Euro CHF GBP RMB
EY B IwmLAS B AR¥

As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-EF+-A=+-H
Cash and deposits BeREH 101,794 1,819,104 544 350 1,193
Due from clients EREFHRIE 151,392 1,561,935 = = =
Due from banks FEIERITRIE 4,084,914 204,320 - - -
Trading portfolio investments ~ X B AEE - 26,118 - - -
Derivative financial assets fTESREE 232 28,306 = = =
Financial assets at fair BATEFAEMLER

value through other WAz eREE

comprehensive income - - - - 131,636
Financial assets at amortised X EE SHR AT R 2

cost SHEE 908,663 484,138 = = =
Other assets HihEE 47,106 1,904 = = 10,198
Due to clients R PRI (8,122,566) (4,073,165) = = =
Due to banks R ER1TR0B (2,639) = = = =
Derivative financial liabilities fTESRAR (30,738) (360) = - -
Borrowings BE (732,630) - - - -
Other liabilities Hiba R (6,312) (2,915) = = =
Overall net exposure BREEREH (3,600,784) 49,385 544 350 143,027
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50. I EAEKREEBERBEE (&)

50.3 FMEE Lk (48)

50.3 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Expressed in HK$'000
UTETZ5
Us$ Euro CHF GBP RMB
e Br  ImtAm R ARE

As at 31 December 2019 R-E-AE+=A=1+—H

Cash and deposits ReRER 26990 1,213,291 529 52 1,025
Due from clients e =E 64,613 645,831 = = =
Due from banks USRI HRIA 2599320 797,157 - - -
Trading portfolio investments ~ XS AEE 46,758 - - - -
Derivative financial assets TEERMEE 401 8,635 - - -
Financial assets at fair BATEGFALMEZE

value through other WAz eREE

comprehensive income - - - - 135,174
Financial assets at amortised TR $5 Y 51| 2

cost SREE 843992 411,730 - - -
Other assets HinEE 29,794 143 - - 9,603
Due to clients EREFHIA (6,985,123) (3,751,785) = = =
Due to banks JERISRITHIBE (16,358) = = = =
Derivative financial liabilities fTHEERAR (53,844) (944) = = =
Borrowings =1 (817,702)  (46,731) = = (939)
Other liabilities Hihafg (7,695) (466) = = =
Overall net exposure EEERRTE (4,268,854)  (723,139) 529 52 144,863

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group's loss/profit for the year and fair value through
other comprehensive income reserve (due to the change in
fair value of the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income) in response to reasonably possible
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of reporting period.
The sensitivity analysis includes balances between Group
companies where the denomination of the balances is in a
currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower. A positive number below indicates decrease
in loss (2019: an increase in profit) and increase in fair value
through other comprehensive income reserve where the
underlying functional currency weakens against the relevant
foreign currency. For a strengthening of the underlying
functional currency against the relevant foreign currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the loss/
profit and fair value through other comprehensive income,
and the balances below would be negative.

TRETAKE (RRAFEFA
HtZARAZEREEZ A FE
BB RAEERBEAREEXN
ﬂﬁﬁZ?\\EE?Zéi@TﬁEﬁiﬁFﬁ
EHZ AFEER, BT RIEAF
BFtARMEERARE 2B HE
B o K@E DT BIEAREE L EE
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.3 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

TSR A E R B AR A A

BRREAREEBRERBEER (&)

50.3 FMEE ELk (48)

2020 2019

—E-%F —E-NF
Effect on Effect on
fair value Change in fair value
Change in Effect on through other foreign Effecton  through other
foreign loss for comprehensive exchange profit for ~ comprehensive
exchange rates the year income reserve rates the year income reserve
HENTE HERATE
ST AEA STAE A
HAEE 2EUARE HAEE ZRRAREB
Ex2H BFR¥E EE ExEy Rz E a7 |
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR FET FET
USS eV +5% 148,338 - +5% (173,802) -
-5% (148,338) - -5% 173,802 -
Euro BT +5% 2,469 - +5% (36,157) -
-5% (2,469) - -5% 36,157 -
CHF WLARD +5% (27) - +5% 26 -
-5% 27 - -5% (26) -
GBP R +5% (18) - +5% 3 -
-5% 18 - -5% 3) -
RMB AR +5% (569) 6,582 +5% 484 6,759
-5% 569 (6,582) -5% (484) (6,759)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next annual reporting date. In this
respect, it is assumed that there is no significant exposure
expected on financial assets and liabilities denominated in
US$ for Group companies whose functional currency is HK$
since HK$ are pegged to USD. Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the group entities’ profit for the year
and equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end of
reporting period for presentation purposes. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2019.

7R 2 BB K B IE G HHMNEFE X
REET - FERSHLHAFEZE
BRI RE B 2 FHE UL E AR
BITE TN - HERRYEE
W AEBITZAKEBERBIAKITTAE
BZEMEERABISAEEM
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KRB B EEERANFEm M R
RAZEAWEEETERERS
HIRREFL2I A ERBRES
FBTL) 2R E - — TN
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. MEEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk 50.4 S E&E k2

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the
terms of the financial instruments and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of assets and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the assets as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition.

It considers available reasonable and supportive forward
looking information. Especially the following indicators are

incorporated:
. external credit rating (as far as available)
o actual or expected significant adverse changes

in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparty’s ability to meet its obligations

J actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the counterparty

o significant expected changes in the performance and
behaviour of the counterparty, including changes in
the payment status of counterparties in the group and
changes in the operating results of the counterparty

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

The assessment of credit risk and the estimation of ECL
are unbiased and probability-weighted, and incorporate
all available information that is relevant to the assessment
including information about past events, current conditions
and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future events
and economic conditions at the reporting date. In addition,
the estimation of ECL should take into account the time value
of money.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to
the cash and deposit, due from clients and banks, trade
receivables, other financial assets at amortised cost and other
assets.

The credit risk of the cash and deposit is limited because
the majority of the counterparties are banks with good
reputation. No impairment had been provided under
12-month expected credit loss assessment.

The credit risk of due from clients and banks (excluding the
precious metal) is determined based on the combination
of the internal and external credit rating, the average debt
recovery, peer review information and comparison with
publically available date. The Group calculates ECL using
three main components: a probability of default, a loss given
default ('LGD’) and the exposure at default (‘EAD’). The
12-month ECL is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD,
LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is calculated using the lifetime
PD instead. The 12-month and lifetime PDs represent the
probability of default occurring over the next 12 months
and the remaining maturity of the instrument respectively.
The EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking
into account the repayment of principal and interest from
the balance sheet date to the default event together with
any expected drawdowns of committed facilities. The LGD
represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of
default, taking into account, among other attributes, the
mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is expected
to be realised and the time value of money. Expected credit
losses for due from banks and clients of HK$278,000 has
been recognised (2019: reversal of provision for expected
credit losses of HK$1,812,000) under expected credit loss
assessment for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The balance of due from clients and banks also subject to
concentration risk which the ten largest single exposures
encompass HK$1,116,031,000 (2019: HK$1,024,413,000),
which are related to due from clients of the banking business
as of 31 December 2020.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. MEEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued) 50.4 S E Rk (&)

Since 1 January 2018, the Group adopts the “ECL model”
on its debt instruments which are classified as financial assets
measured at amortised cost and at FVOCI in accordance
with the provisions of HKFRS 9. For financial assets that
are included in the measurement of ECL, the Group
evaluates whether the credit risks of related financial assets
have increased significantly since initial recognition. The
“three stage” impairment model is used to measure their
loss allowances respectively to recognise ECL and their
movements. The ECL assessment made by the Group mainly
reference to the internal and market credit rating information.
Amount to HK$29,348,000 (2019: HK$291,000) impairment
allowance has been provided after the assessment during the
year.

For the trade receivables, the Group carries out regular
review on these balances and follow-up action on any
overdue amounts to minimise exposures to credit risk. The
Group measures the lifetime expected credit losses based on
the outstanding balances and historical credit loss experience
adjusted to reflect the Group's view of current and forecast
economic conditions that may affect the ability of the debtors
to settle receivables. Amounted to HK$16,960,000 (2019:
HK$7,340,000) impairment allowance had been provided
under expected credit loss assessment which calculated
using simplified approach according to the ageing by due
date disclose in note 22.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. EEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 &R B (&)
R_E—EF+_A=+—HEX
2 SR I R EE S TS R AR BR B

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)
The loss allowance as at 31 December 2020 was determined
for trade receivables arising from watches and timepieces

business as follows: BEEOT
31 December 2020 —E-EF+-A=+—H
Gross carrying
Expected amount
credit loss rate (after excluding
- weighted credit-impaired
average (%) balance) Loss allowance Net amount
RAEEEERR HREAE
- I (MREE
(%)  AELERE) BRERE )22
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER THET
Not yet pass due hSal 0.40% 268,969 (1,076) 267,893
Overdue within 90 days AHENBBIOK 1.10% 30,129 (333) 29,796
Overdue 91 to 180 days BHE91E 180K 3.10% 45,543 (1.412) 44,131
Overdue over 180 days BHEE180K 7.10% to 100% 114,057 (73,786) 40,271
Total 5t 458,698 (76,607) 382,091

R-F-hF+-_A=t—BEXE
2 S8 5% N B 5 E an SRS R MR AR UES
BRI

The loss allowance as at 31 December 2019 was determined
for trade receivables arising from watches and timepieces
business as follows:

31 December 2019

—B2-hFt+=-A=t—H

Gross carrying

Expected amount

credit loss rate  (after excluding

- weighted  credit-impaired
average (%) balance)  Loss allowance Net amount

BHEEBER FHRLE

- METH (NBREE
(%) WEERE) EBERE Exc)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT AL
Not yet pass due 1] A 280 0.30% 344,897 (1,034) 343,863
Overdue within 90 days BHINEE0KR 1.00% 44,477 (445) 44,032
Overdue 91 to 180 days B E180K 3.00% 15,481 (464) 15,017
Overdue over 180 days AEEB 180K 7.00%-100% 128,425 (56,404) 72,021
Total st 533,280 (58,347) 474,933
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. MEEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued) 50.4 S E Rk (&)

For the other assets mainly comprise of rental deposits,
dividend receivables, amounts due from an associate and
related parties and other tax recoverable. Management
considers rental deposits do not have significant credit risk
since the deposits are refundable from landlords upon end
of lease term or recoverable by the Group through using the
leased property. For the other assets, given the short term
nature of these assets, the ECL is had been provided under
12-month expected credit loss assessment. The management
considered there is no additional provision has to make for
the other assets after the assessments for the year ended
31 December 2019. The management has provided an ECL
provision of HK$826,000 (2019:HK$2,167,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 after their assessment.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company have assessed the past due status of the debts
under guarantee, the financial position of the debtors as
well as the economic outlook of the industries in which the
debtors operate, and concluded that there has not been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of the financial guarantee contract. Accordingly, the loss
allowance for financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

In both years, the amount of loss allowance is lower than
the premium less cumulative amortisation, therefore, no loss
allowance was recognised in profit or loss for the financial
guarantee contract.

HWEETERRHELES  BI
IR E - B —REEEE QR REEA
TRIBUREAMT IR EFIE o E1E
BRAEHSEES I ES KEEE
B RRARBARBETRES
RERSHAEE G B BER
HEMEREIZS - REMEEM
5 ERZSEE EEYE
HEEBEER12EABHEEER
FEEHREE c EEBNTEER
ARBE-_ZT—h&+=—A=1+—
B IEFE BAE & ErT RN
BE EEEBLTIREBEEREEZES
E-THE+-HA=+—HILtEE:
IRTEHR (= B &5 18 B 15 826,000 77T
(ZZ— 1% : 2,167,000/ TT) °

RI|BEHR - XRABEFCDHEE
RIBTMERS < BEBBAR - B
A Z A TEARM A B B 75 AR & P
TEZEBRNS  LSHAER 8
BARERYBERE HNAKREER
B3t K MR L7 o Eit - BEANEE
BHHUBRERE O 2 BEEERE
ER 12 ESMEEEE 2 2R

=
[EER

RS E 2 B 1B Bt 2 FRIg R
i B R AT - it - WEBLES
BERE ORER P REREMEE
Rt o
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

50. BiIEKREEBERBEER (&)

50.4 S E Rk (&)

Maximum credit risk exposure of the Group (i) TEEZEAGERR
The maximum exposure to credit risk (excluding cash REREBR BRESREFEX
and deposits as at the end of reporting date without PASh 2z mRARIEE R (TaT &
taking into consideration of any collateral held or other AT FrFFiE R sk A fb {5 A
credit enhancement) is represented by the net balance B BARE MR R B &
of each type of financial assets in the consolidated HemEE &R E (BN
statement of financial position (after deducting any BRAEMBEREER) 27 - &
impairment allowance). A summary of the maximum SREBHENT
exposure is as follows:
At 31 December 2020 REB-BHF+=-A=+—H
Non-banking
Banking Financial ~ and financial
business business businesses Total
FRTR
RITER SRER SRER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR THERT
Due from clients RWEFE 2,463,225 - - 2,463,225
Due from banks FEMSRITHR 5,466,260 - - 5,466,260
Trading portfolio assets RHEEEE 26,118 18,134 36,058 80,310
Derivative financial assets ~ fTAE&BIEAE 29,224 - - 29,224
Trade receivables PRI - 9,656 382,091 391,747
Financial assets at fair BATEGALMEE
value through other WAz eREE
comprehensive income - - 470,794 470,794
Other financial assets at REHK AT R 2
amortised cost HivemEE 1,449,886 - - 1,449,886
Other assets HiEE 43,402 12,792 202,615 258,809
9,478,115 40,582 1,091,558 10,610,255
Credit card commitments, {5 F-RK7&¥E - Al
irrevocable commitment  FAIERERHER
and guarantees
provided 127,884 - 55,000 182,884
Maximum credit risk S e
exposure 9,605,999 40,582 1,146,558 10,793,139
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. MEEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued) 504 fEERME ()
()  Maximum credit risk exposure of the Group (i) FTEEzZREAEERE(E)
(Continued)

At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-hF+=-A=+—H

Non-banking
Banking Financial  and financial
business business businesses Total
FERITR
RITER SRES SRES @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT AT TAT THT
Due from clients EME I8 2,093,250 - - 2,093,250
Due from banks JEUSRIT IR 4,901,198 - = 4,901,198
Trading portfolio assets ROMEREE 46,758 127,519 53,626 227,903
Derivative financial assets TS REE 10,275 = = 10,275
Trade receivables JEU R X = 3,329 474,933 478,262
Financial assets at fair BATEFALMEZE
value through other WAz eREE
comprehensive income - - 422,861 422,861
Other financial assets at REER AT
amortised cost HitemEE 1,307,960 = = 1,307,960
Other assets HigE 46,442 3,449 226,839 276,730
8,405,883 134,297 1,178,259 9,718,439
Credit card commitments,  EfF&LE « FArllkE
irrevocable commitment AERBREER
and guarantees
provided 114,445 = 30,000 144,445
Maximum credit risk Rz ERR
exposure 8,520,328 134,297 1,208,259 9,862,884
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. EEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 S E Rk (&)
(i) BBITEBEESZEH
ZERBMOT :

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)
(ii)  Credit exposure by quality of assets of the banking
business is as follows:

As at 31 December 2020 R-BE-ZEHF+-HA=+—H

Book value
No external  of impaired
AMAtoAA  A+toBBB- BB+ orlower rating loans net Total
BHEEH
AMAREAAG A+§ZBBB-§ BB+AZER  EABFR 2 REAFE @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn TAn TAn TAn TAx TAn
Due from banks EWRITHE 2,035,886 3,364,102 - 66,272 - 5,466,260
Due from clients R P - - - 2,461,063 2,162 2,463,225
Financial instruments ~ £BILE 669,870 775,315 2,849 27,970 - 1,476,004
Other assets EHEE - - = 43,402 = 43,402
Derivative financial fTEEBIA
instruments 147 293 - 28,784 - 29,224
2,705,903 4,139,710 2,849 2,627,491 2,162 9,478,115
Contingent liabilities ~ HAR(E 2,376 - - 125,508 - 127,884
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZE—-h&F+=-A=+—H
Book value
Noexternal ~ of impaired
AAAtoAA  A+toBBB- BB+ orlower rating loans net Total
BREER
MARZEAG A+BZBBB-R BB+RAEE  ENFPFHE  cREFE @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TAT TAT TAT TAT
Due from banks FEMSRITIIE 1,558,493 3,304,404 - 38,301 - 4,901,198
Due from clients FlhEPHE - - = 2,089,520 3730 2,093,250
Financial instruments  $fIE 577,316 730,644 - 46,758 - 1,354,718
Other assets EHEE - - = 46,442 = 46,442
Derivative financial ~ {T£2BIA
instruments 1,047 76 - 9,152 - 10,275
2,136,856 4,035,124 - 2,230,173 3730 8,405,883
Contingent liabllities A& E - 2,185 - 112,60 - 114,445




(i)

(iii)
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. I EKREEREBERBUER (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
50.4 Credit risk (Continued) 50.4 S E Rk (&)
(Continued) iy (&)
The above table shows the quality of assets according ERINFRIEE BN R
to the external ratings available. Financial instruments MEEBEX -BIREmMIA
without a rating are mainly instruments for which FERIWMINITR 2 THE -
there is no external rating available. Amounts due W E P RIE SR [ RIS
from clients are allocated to the category “no external aTA] o
rating”.
Credit exposure by collateral of the banking business is as (iii) ZRBPTEHBEFRID 26
follows: EREAT
As at 31 December 2020 REZB-BHF+=-A=+—H
Mortgage- Other
backed collateral  No collateral Total
NgExE HttE#Am BT st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET THET
Due from clients of which RIBEERZ RIKE P FE
mortgage loan
~ Residential property —FEME 1,147,344 116 67 1,147,527
- Office and business property ~ —#AZEREAME 128,096 - - 128,096
- Commercial and industrial ~TEYE
property 191,082 - 15 191,097
- Other —Hft 7,112 982,094 7,299 996,505
Financial instruments SEMIE - = 1,449,886 1,449,886
Trading portfolio investments ~ R HHEEE - - 26,118 26,118
Derivative financial instruments T4 € @I A - - 29,224 29,224
1,473,634 982,210 1,512,609 3,968,453
Contingent liabilities SREE 34,122 93,762 - 127,884
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)
(iii) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019

50. BiIEKREEBERBEER (&)

50.4 S E Rk (&)

(i) (&)

R-ZB-NE+=A=+—H

Mortgage- Other
backed collateral  No collateral Total
Nikiex s AthERm BEA® @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAT TR
Due from clients of which BEER KR FHIE
mortgage loan
— Residential property —EEYE 887,165 158 44 887,367
- Office and business property ~ —#AE REAME 125,998 - - 125,998
- Commercial and industrial —TrhE
property 241,005 - - 241,005
- Other —HAfth 930 824,357 13,593 838,880
Financial instruments SEIE - - 1,307,960 1,307,960
Trading portfolio investments ~ R HHEKE - - 46,758 46,758
Derivative financial instruments T4 &7 T A = = 10,275 10,275
1,255,098 824,515 1,378,630 3,458,243
Contingent liabilities FREE 20,976 93,462 7 114,445

The above table shows that secured lending represents
constantly more than 90 per cent of the total due from

clients.

FRETAEMERFEN
U P SRR A REER 4B 90% ©



50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)
Credlit risk by geographical sector of the banking business

(iv)

is as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

— = —

=

50.4 SE =AM (4)

(iv) BROTEBHURREE S 2

EERRMAT :

R--®E+=B=+-8
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50. I EAEKREEBERBEE (&)

Switzerland and

Europe
(excluding
Switzerland and

Liechtenstein  Liechtenstein) Other Total

B

Btk (FEEHLIR
EE - FIXHLE) Hty @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET TAT TR
Due from banks FEMSR 7T 708 2,964,806 2,501,454 - 5,466,260
Due from clients R FHIE 508,759 1,954,466 - 2,463,225
Trading Portfolio Investments R ZEE K E 26,118 = = 26,118
Financial instruments SRTA = 592,897 856,989 1,449,886
Other assets HihBEE 32,955 10,426 21 43,402
Derivative financial instruments ~ $74 & & T A 507 27,119 1,598 29,224
3,533,145 5,086,362 858,608 9,478,115
Contingent liabilities R =N 116,775 10,039 1,070 127,884
3,649,920 5,096,401 859,678 9,605,999

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZB-AF+=-H=+—H

Europe

(excluding

Switzerland and  Switzerland and
Liechtenstein Liechtenstein) Other Total

B

Ethk (FEERIK
SlZHLE ZHTE) Hity @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR AT THT
Due from banks FEMR1T 508 2,622,390 2,278,808 = 4,901,198
Due from clients el E P FIA 438,164 1,273,231 381,855 2,093,250
Financial instruments SRMIA 46,758 527,041 780,919 1,354,718
Other assets HiEE 31,067 15,354 21 46,442
Derivative financial instruments  $7T4 &R T E 1,146 8,822 307 10,275
3,139,525 4,103,256 1,163,102 8,405,883
Contingent liabilities FABRE 106,966 6,537 942 114,445
3,246,491 4,109,793 1,164,044 8,520,328
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

50. BiIEKREEBERBEER (&)

50.4 S E Rk (&)

(Continued) (iv) (&)
The above table shows a concentration in due from FRBEBRERWR T RH X
banks and clients as well as financial instruments PR ITREE
outside Switzerland and Liechtenstein. As at 31 BERABMTAER R - F
December 2020, outside Switzerland and Liechtenstein —E&E+-—A=+—0 B
LT AT
total Ilendilng v’olum,e ° . F #5.956,079,000%8 7T (=%
: — L% :5,273,837,000%
TL) KR EEE262% (=
Z—NF : 62%) °
Credit risk by counterparty of the banking business is as (v) EBERTEBXZIHEFEHZ
follows: ZERERIT
As at 31 December 2020 R-E-_FEF+-HA=+—H
Private and
institutional
Public sector  investment
Central banks Banks entities clients Other Total
AAR
HREAT #1T NERRE HEREEF Ht ft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TER TER TER TER
Due from banks FEMSRITIE - 5,466,260 - = = 5,466,260
Due from clients BB FFIE - - - 2,463,225 = 2,463,225
Financial tRIA
instruments - 1,053,351 84,447 312,088 26,118 1,476,004
Derivative financial /T4 ¢ R IE
instruments - 440 - 28,784 - 29,224
Other assets HitEE - 8,200 3 35,199 = 43,402
- 6,528,251 84,450 2,839,296 26,118 9,478,115
Contingent HARBE
liabilities - 5,890 - 121,994 - 127,884




50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)

(v)

(vi)
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50. I EAEKREEBERBEE (&)

50.4 S E Rk (&)

(Continued) (v) (%&)
As at 31 December 2019 R=-ZE—-hF+=-A=+—H
Private and
institutional
Public sector investment
Central banks Banks entities clients Other Total
MAR \
RRIEFIT iR1T NEER KERARP HAth @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
Due from banks JEMERTTHA - 4,901,198 - - = 4,901,198
Due from clients ~ [EMEF A - - - 2,093,250 - 2,093,250
Financial tRIA
instruments - 778,199 82,373 447 388 46,758 1,354,718
Derivative financial  #T££ @I A
instruments - 1,123 9,152 - - 10,275
Other assets HtEE - - 3 46,439 - 46,442
- 5,680,520 91,528 2,587,077 46,758 8,405,883
Contingent ARBE
liabilities - 2,426 112,019 - - 114,445
The above table shows a concentration of bank ERBTRRTRZEHFEFAE
counterparties, which is managed by a limit system. HEREREE - ZBIERER
This process ensures the diversification of the RPHFREFMBHT DB
counterparties themselves as well as the counterparty AREBBRTZEMIAR
domiciles. Financial instruments issued by corporate BRIMAREBRERF | -
entities are allocated to the category “private and
institutional investment clients”.
Offsetting (vi) 3E8H

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

EBRARANTENEHEE
REENTERFEEE
5 RRARBREERES
BER SREEETHAE
MEHES BFERGE 5
ARLR IR
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. KREKREEBEZEREE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)
(vi) Offsetting (Continued)

50.4 S E Rk (&)
(vi) S ()

Financial assets subject to offsetting

T EREE

Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position

PERGRUBRA R EE AR LE

Gross amount
of recognised  Net amount of
financial ~ financial assets

liabilities offset ~presented in the Financial
Gross amount in the statement  consolidated instruments
of recognised of financial statement of otherthan  Cash collateral
financial assets position ~financial position  cash collateral received Net amount

REBRRRE  REAHE
BER  EEZCER ARRDESZ SRIE

THEEAE CHARER CREETE (REERRRS) CHRLERR FE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER

At 31 December 2020

R-2-8F+t-A=t-H
Type of financial assets £ EAERE
Trade receivablesfom  EWESFER
clearing house 8,010 (3,387) 4,623 - - 4,623
At 31 December 2019
RZB-NETZA=T-8
Type of financial assets &R AERH
Trade receivables fom BB EAE

clearing house

5,141 (4,248) 893 - - 893




50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued)
(vi) Offsetting (Continued)
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50. I EAEKREEBERBEE (&)

50.4 S E Rk (&)
(vi) 38 (&)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

FEEZERAR

Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement of

financial position

PERGRUBRA R EE L ABLE

Grossamount ~ Net amount
of recognised of financial
financial assets liabilities
Grossamount  offsetinthe presented in the Financial
of recognised  consolidated  consolidated instruments
financial ~ statementof statementof otherthan cash  Cash collateral
liabilities ~ financial position financial position collateral received Net amount
R&a R&a
BERRET  BRHRRRD ¢HMIR
BRE  HECERR gilz  (ReERR Bl
tRARER CHEESE CRARED BY)  ReEfm R
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER TER TEn TEn TER TER
At 31 December 2020
R-B-RETZA=1-H
Type of financial cRARER
ligbilities
Trade payables to EREEHER
clearing house 3,387 (3,387) - - - -
At 31 December 2019
RIB-NETZA=1-A
Type of financial TRAREY
liabilities
Trade payables to AT &5 R
clearing house 7,650 (4,248) 3,402 - - 3,402

310



311 Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited @ EEHKE SE AR AR

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. EEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.4 Credit risk (Continued) 50.4 S E Rk (&)
(vi) Offsetting (Continued) (vi) K8 (&)

The tables below reconcile the amounts of trade TRERES M BARRAEKET

25| EURREENERERZ

receivables and trade payables as presented in the

consolidated statement of financial position:

2020 2019
—ECFF | ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Trade receivables & UK BR X THERT FABT
Net amount of trade receivables from FEW A B PR TR 5
clearing house 4,623 893
Trade, loan and interest receivables not in TEEHR RS E 2
the scope of offsetting disclosure WERF - B E R K
FEIF B 387,124 477,369
Trade, loan and interest receivables as RA SRR R FTIREE
disclosed in the consolidated statement of Z BRI E
financial position X2 JE YA B 391,747 478,262
2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade payables FE A BR AR TET FHETT
Net amount of trade payables to clearing e A EPTERFOF R
house - 3,402
Trade payables not in the scope of offsetting N E K &5 4% 52 6 [E
disclosure JE < AR 3K 360,624 408,025
Trade payables as disclosed in the e BRI R P BR
consolidated statement of financial position Z JET RN 360,624 411,427
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. MEEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.5 Liquidity risk 50.5 KB E &R

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will not able to
meet its obligation associated with its financial liabilities. The
Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring
scheduled debt servicing payments for long-term financial
liabilities as well as cash-outflows due in day-to-day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored on a day-to-day basis. Long-
term liquidity needs for a 360-day lookout period are
identified monthly.

The Group maintains mainly cash to meet its liquidity
requirements for up to 30-day periods. Funding for long-
term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flow (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay. Specially, for bank borrowings which contain
a repayment on demand clause which can be exercised
at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in which the entity can
be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate effect.

RBE R EAEEEEBEITH
TRIGERAEEZ ARG - K
SEFERERERERHERMEGEY
BREERPBRAFEBRESRL
NEBAERBEST K - AEEE
HERERBEESTRK - #EAH360

HERHZRERDHESFTLNE
RHERE °

REEFEFHRESENERZ 30
HERZ e E & F R - rEKH
MEBECHRRFTREAEEEE
Bt o

TREFNBEAARAEECHEE
ZHBRELNENEE - KIS L REL
ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%(a%%A%ﬂ+p#
ZAMBFIE - HBFEME - AR
HEBZERANE) & $%Eﬂ%
BANRZ&ZFERAER - AfEm
E*%F@?&%IE@%%W%
BA IR AT B ERTT 2 A BIB1T 2 2 3R
TTH%EE' ZONRIR B A BE AR
R =R A RESRE - BN
AR A T E 2 RENKERZ
SRR -
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2020

. KRR EEBERBE®

50.5 i B & & E b (4)

R-B-FF+=-A=t+—H

Total contractual

Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year
amount cashflow  or on demand Over 1 year
BHRER 1ERZ

BHE RERELH REX BB1E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT TERT TAT

Non-derivative financial FTELMEE

liabilities
Due to banks FENRITHE 2,639 2,639 2,639 -
Due to clients EREPHE 13,835,358 13,835,358 13,835,358 -
Trade payables EIERR 360,624 360,624 360,624 -
Borrowings EE 1,564,822 1,599,691 1,589,593 10,098
Lease liabilities MEBR 57,570 72,398 35,756 36,642
Due to directors ENER 25 12,000 12,600 12,600 -
Due to a shareholder =% Hﬁz, B 21,233 22,026 22,026 -
Other liabilities Hit e fE 494,874 494,874 494,874 -
16,349,120 16,400,210 16,353,470 46,740
Maximum contractual BRENSE
amount

Financial guarantee issued B EHBIHER - 55,000 - -
Credit card commitments ERFRE - 93,762 = =
Irrecoverable commitments /R A] U1 AGE - 34,122 = =

182,884




50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

_7_

50.5 B E & E b (48)
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50. I EAEKREEBERBEE (&)

W=B—nEt=A=+—8

Total contractual

Carrying  undiscounted Within 1 year
amount cash flow  oron demand Over 1 year
BRAREE 1ERk
BEHE HREnERs REKX i 1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THL TR TR
Non-derivative financial FiTESRER
liabilities
Due to banks B RITHIE 17,968 17,968 16,358 1,610
Due to clients ENEPZE 11,906,290 11,906,290 11,906,290 -
Trade payables & R 411,427 411,427 411,427 -
Borrowings BT 1,740,362 1,750,334 1,750,334 -
Lease liabilities MEAE 83,975 99,761 42,987 56,774
Due to directors EREZZHK 22,241 23,098 23,098 -
Due to a shareholder e — %Hx?ﬁz 12,000 12,600 12,600 =
Other liabilities Hit & & 467,414 467,414 467,414 -
14,661,677 14,688,892 14,630,508 58,384
Maximum contractual BRENLE
amount
Financial guarantee issued B2 HBISE(R - 30,000 30,000 =
Credit card commitments {5 F & - 93,462 93,462 =
Irrecoverable commitments 7/ A U [B] & 2 - 20,983 20,983 =
- 144,445 144,445 -
Liquidity risk also arises when there is mismatch between REHECRBRITBAREREERS

amounts and maturity dates of financial assets and financial

liabilities.

The Group manages liquidity risk by holding liquid assets
(including cash and deposits, financial instruments and other
assets) of appropriate quality and quantity to ensure that
short term funding requirements are covered within prudent

limits.

BefseBRIMABEMES -

AEBEBRAEEEE 2R
BE (BREAS RFR
HiEE) ERRBESRR
RELBEEE ZRBATEES

EEER -

BRI TA R

" ATE
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)
The following tables indicates the analysis by remaining

maturities of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities:

As at 31 December 2020

50. BiIEKREEBERBEER (&)

50.5 B E & E b (48)
TRIFAEFIZBTRHEHE
SREEREBBEZHN

R-®-BF+=A=+-§

Repayable on Within More than ~ No maturity

demand 1 year 1 year date Total

REREE 1R/ BE1F EIHA 5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TER TET TER TET

Total financial assets & FE AL 8,383,429  4,696990 2,664,541 477,940 16,222,900

Total financial SRAREE

liabilities (15,583,897) (689,457) (237,219) - (16,510,573)
Financial asset-liability & MEEBERD

gap (7,200,468) 4,007,533 2,427,322 477,940 (287,673)

As at 31 December 2019 R-Z2—hE+=-A=+—H
Repayable on Within More than ~ No maturity

demand 1 year 1 year date Total

RERER 1R A 1F E3HA @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT THT TAT TR

Total financial assets ~ &M EELT 7,057,966 4,923,765 2,202,963 430,991 14,615,685

Total financial SHERASE

liabilities (14,039,965) (635,598) (97,664) - (14,773,227
Financial asset-liability & &I &ZE & &HR D

gap (6,981,999) 4,288,167 2,105,299 430,991 (157,542)

As the financial instruments such as trading portfolio
investments may be sold before maturity or due to banks and
clients may mature without being withdrawn, the contractual
maturity dates do not represent expected dates of future
cash flows.

HREMITANRZHEARER L
KB HIRT B SR IRTT R EP K
A BEAE MR Z B T2 H
BHIHBAYIFRRRKASRE
ZFAFF A -
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. MEEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.5 Liquidity risk (Continued) 50.5 REE LR (%)

The below table summarises the maturity analysis of
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements. The amounts included interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts
were greater than the amount disclosed in the “Within one
year and on demand” time band in the maturity analysis
above.

As at 31 December 2020, one of the financial covenants
as stipulated in the relevant agreements in respect of
borrowings with outstanding principal of approximately
HK$784,630,000 was not satisfied. Accordingly, from
accounting perspective, the aforesaid borrowings would
be regarded as immediately due and payable should the
lenders exercise their rights under the agreements as at 31
December 2020. HK$52,000,000 of the abovementioned
balance has been fully repaid subsequent to the reporting
date and the relevant banks have granted a waiver to the
Group for the remaining balance of HK$732,630,000 in
respect of the unsatisfied financial covenant before the date
of authorisation of the financial statements.

The maturity analysis of bank borrowings is shown as below:

TR AR R B 5K M5 5 P R 155 E B
ERFTHARERERGERZEE
ZEHBEDN - BRASBEEREAE
BT ERETE 2 M EFKIE - Bt - %
FERAREXBHADHTZI—
FARARRER|IKHEBEMKEZ

TH e

RZBEZZEF+_A=+—H" =K
RREXKBRABEET —BYBLOE
BIH EAEFNREERSNA
784,630,000/ 7T ° At - =5 A
B -R=ZZT=ZTF+=-HA=+—H
WERARBHRITERERN - ZE
EFRA AR A ENRS B HY o bt ke
52,000,000 78 7 E R # &5 A #8182 &
HEE  BRARTERVBRERR
T B AT ph AR R B A5 40 FIEM
88 T 45 £4732,630,000 7 T [A) 748 &
ERTEHE -

RITERIPTAT :

Total
contractual Over 1 year
Carrying undiscounted ~Within 1 year but within
amount cash flow or on demand 2years Over 2 years
BRRER 1ERH BE1F
REE RERELR RER  ER2FR BE2F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TET TEL TET
As at 31 December ~R=Z-ZF
2020 +=ZA=1+-H 772,028 821,642 406,190 415,452 -
As at 31 December RZZ-NF
2019 +=-A=+—H 953,384 1,061,865 232,980 411,561 417,324
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.6 Fair value risk

The fair value of the Group's current financial assets and
liabilities are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because of the immediate or short-term maturity.
The fair values of non-current financial assets and liabilities
were not disclosed because the carrying values were not
materially different from their fair values.

50.7 Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of change in market price (other than changes
in interest rate and foreign exchange rate). The Group
is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity
investments classified as trading portfolio investments and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Decisions to buy or sell trading portfolio investments are
based on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group’'s liquidity needs. Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations.

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group's profit after income tax and consolidated equity
in response to reasonably possible changes in the share
prices of the listed investments classified as trading portfolio
investments and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income to which the Group has significant
exposure at the reporting date. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2019.

50. BiIEKREEBERBEER (&)

50.6 A FEER

HRAEE RS EREERAER
Rk HARIE - A QP EE
FHELEBERER - HRIFRD
TREENBBECREERATE
WEEBRER - WARBELNFE-

R A (B 4% L B2
RAERRRRSBT A AFE
FARKRESRERNTELS K
(7] 2= B SN B SR YRR 51 ) 2 il e
B - "EBEARHKREDARR
ZHERERBRAFEFAR LR
A Z EREEZRAREZ I
NEMEFRR

BEERFGHEARERERBRESR
1B 57 2 2 RI M B A 1T ZEHE AR A
RAEBZRBESHFEEH - 18
R EFARMBEABRAZZEBE
EUNRERHRZBRENREE
WEHERRERREBTATAS -

TRETODBERARFEAREZ L
MIRERE R AEBERRE H AT
HS B ARG 2 RAFE AR
EHBAZERMEEZ AR R
B BASEZBAFHRZEN K&
GEEEcMOES —T-NF
EITZ DT RAEREZE -



50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.7 Equity price risk (Continued)

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

BRRAREEBERBEER (&)

50.7 BRAE &R (&)

2020 2019
i —F-NF
Effect on fair Effect on fair
value through value through
other other
comprehensive comprehensive
Effect on loss income | Effect on profit income
after tax reserve after tax reserve
HRNFEFA HRDTFEA
HRBABE Ht2EWA | SRIEET  Hbo2EKA
E2 REzHE P8 EEzTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET THx
Trading portfolio investments: RZAEKE :
Increase in share prices of the MR & ZRIE £7130%
listed investments by 30% (ZZ2—71% : 30%)
(2019: 30%) (1,551) - 44,205 -
Decrease in share prices of the iR & ZIRE T2 30%
listed investments by 30% (ZZ2—% : 30%)
(2019: 30%) 1,551 - (44,205) -
Financial assets at fair BATEFAEMLZE
value through other BWAZERERE:
comprehensive income
Increase in share price of the EHRE 2 RIE L730%
listed investment by 30% (ZZ2— % : 30%)
(2019: 30%) - 139,453 - 125,177
Decrease in share price of the ~ _ET#R & Z IR BT 2 30%
listed investment by 30% (ZZ2—N% : 30%)
(2019: 30%) - (139,453) - (125,177)

50.8 Operational risks

50.8 &E @

Operational risk is the risk of losses due to faulty internal
processes, procedures and systems, inappropriate behaviour
by employees, or external influences. The definition
includes all legal risks as well as reputational risks. However,
it excludes strategic risks. The ongoing monitoring of
operational risk is, whenever possible, embedded in the
operational processes. Separation of functions and a dual
control principle are crucial elements in monitoring. The
directors oversee the management of operational risk based
on standardised reporting and ad hoc information.

LERBREARTTE ZARR
BREFAHE - BITATER
SMERREMERIER 2R - H5E
EEBRMBZEZRRINALEEE
o AMA T BEEERR - S2
AT AEBRETHEREERE
B\ o BURE D R AN B R A
EEERRER ARAZ B
ERRELBERNBEHRERSE
ERREE -

318



319

Citychamp Watch & Jewellery Group Limited B HKIAE £EHR A A

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. EEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.8 Operational risks (Continued)
Capital management
The Group's capital management objectives are:

(i)  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for stakeholders;

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(i)  To provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers
and acquisitions.

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in proportion
to its overall financing structure. The Group manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, or sell assets to reduce debts.

50.8 & E @k (8)

EXER
AEBERERBRES

() FERAEEEPFELE A
BERTNERMACRER

25
(i) XHAEERBEER: R

(i) REEAHERUBRHES -

AEBERBEEZBMBGHEREZ LD
BEBRAES AEEEEERE
B YRELENREE MEEE
EZRBREBELAE - RERK
HEERGEE  AEEHSHER
BRRZ 2k B2 RREARE
] BTHROIEEEERE

The capital-to-overall financing ratio at reporting date was as RE|ER  ERNEEERELEW
follows: ™
2020 2019
=B-2F | —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
Capital =N
Total equity ERER 4,736,227 4,660,889
Overall financing ERERE
Borrowings BE 1,546,822 1,740,362
Due to a shareholder B — B AR 2 FKIE 12,000 12,000
Due to directors it EE 2 708 21,233 22,241
1,598,055 1,774,603
Capital-to-overall financing ratio B LR E & 2.96 2.63
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. MEEAREEBBERBX @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.8 Operational risks (Continued) 50.8 & E & ke (45)

Capital adequacy of Bendura Group

Starting 1 February 2015, the calculation of regulatory
capital incorporates the capital requirements following
the Capital Requirements Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013
(Capital Requirements Regulation — CRR) and the Capital
Requirements Directive No. 2013/36/EU (CRD 4) as
implemented into Liechtenstein law. The minimum capital
requirement is 8% of risk weighted assets which consists at
least of 4.5% common equity tier 1 (CET 1) capital, 1.5%
additional tier 1 capital and 2% tier 2 capital. In addition, the
Bendura Group has to fulfill 2.5% buffer requirements (capital
conservation buffer). The buffer requirement must be fulfilled
with CET 1 capital.

Capital ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the
Bendura Group's eligible capital with balance sheet assets,
off-balance sheet commitments and market positions at
weighted amounts to reflect their relative risk. Assets are
weighted according to broad categories of notional risk,
first being multiplied by a conversion factor and then being
assigned a risk weighting according to the amount of
capital deemed to be necessary for them. Off-balance sheet
commitments and default risk positions are also multiplied
and risk-weighted. Market risk is calculated with the standard
approach.

All results are based on the full application of the final CRR
and CRD 4 framework in the European Union and thus
without consideration of applicable transitional rules. The
Bendura Group has complied with all externally imposed
capital requirements as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

50.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair values of listed equity investments, precious
metal, and debt instruments classified under due from
banks, trading portfolio investments, financial asset
at fair value through other comprehensive income
and due to clients are determined by reference to
their quoted market prices at the reporting date in
active markets and have been translated using the
spot foreign currency rates at the end of the reporting
periods where appropriate.

EEEELRE R

BT —RAF-_A—HE BZE
FIZ BT BERNABERENE
() (ERERKEMR—CRR)
E575/2013 R EARBRERLH
2013/36/EU 5% (CRD 4) ' EE& & A
A BEBREEAER - EEARE
KERBMNEEEZ8%  EFE
LBIEAS% L —RER (G —
WEXR) ~ 1.5% I —BELRKR 2%
BRI BHEBE AR
25% 2 BEER (BENFEEEE) -
B ESRNBAZ L — R EZNERK ©

BARREUBARLLEEE 71K
REENEE CARERNEEER
BRPEE BERBERIEER
BENESEAEZMERALE -
ARREBE R - BEERE AR
B % 5% E 2 0 - TR A — (B i
HE BRENGAEENEZE
SEEIRNERR - BEBER
SINAEHE B8 #) R AR R TR & 1 3
B BLINAE R © 15 R A
BREET EAE -

FFERRENZEETHRERK
fiR CRR }2 CRD 4{EZRM 1S i > Ftt
AREBERBERTE - BHEER
—EEFRZF-NEF+ZA
=t HEZEETIBEMZE

50.9 REAHMBRRKBEZ AT

EitE
AKBEREERSHABLAT
BRATHEREE

s  DEERWIRITIE R5H
BRE BRATERAEME
HWAZ EBEERENZP
RBEZ LTRARE B8
REBTIAZAFELSE
HRBERRERM S E2
BEAMEETE YO RBEH
R BIHAGE =08 (aEm ) -
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

the fair value of investment fund units as at 31
December 2020 under trading portfolio investments is
determined by reference to their quoted market prices
at the reporting date in active markets and have been
translated using the spot foreign currency rates at the
end of the reporting periods where appropriate.

the fair value of certain equity investments
under financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income is determined based on the fair
value of their underlying net assets.

the fair values of unlisted debt instruments classified
under trading portfolio investments have been
determined using significant inputs, which are market
observable, directly or indirectly.

the fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities classified at level 2 financial assets are marked
to market using the foreign exchange forward rates
ruling at the end of each reporting periods.

the fair value of unlisted investment in insurance policy
is determined based on amount value as stated in cash
surrender value statement issued by insurer.

HKFRS 13 introduced a three-level hierarchy for fair value
measurement disclosures and additional disclosures about
the relative reliability of fair value measurements.

The hierarchy groups financial assets and financial liabilities
into three levels based on the relative reliability of significant
inputs used in measuring the fair value of these financial
assets and financial liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

Level 1:  unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2:  observable direct and indirect inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level 1;
and

Level 3:  unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

50. BiIEKREEBERBEER (&)

509 RGEMBRARBERZAYF

B3

. Eﬁ ToTEFT - H=F—
RoMaRENREES
ﬁﬁﬁ’\]/&?@%%ﬁﬁéi&i
BRERM S LB AME
EEE  WER RS HR 2 BIH
BERE (@A) -

(&)

||Iﬂ|m

. BRATERARMZEKA
2 MEEZETRARE
2 AFERANEEFEL
AFEEFE -

o DHEERGHAEKREZILE
MEKEIEZAFENEE
SEEFEAMBAIERZE
N ABEETE °

s NHRARE_REWMEEZN
EERMEENABZRAFE
Ty UA R M 3 & B R & AT E B
PE XL mERTE

e KRETREREZAFETD
BRBAFHARESERRE
PIRZ &R METE °

BB RS ENE 3RRATE
SERERABATELEAY
o] St 2 BINRB S A= A TE
B -

EREENERBBREARE
ERMEENERABABZAFEZE
REABEZREAEED B =1
ER - AFEBREATER :

- F—H&: HRAEEXERE
K& BT 5 2 W
B CRGAE) :

HENEEATE
Rz AHE
(T BRIEE—RH
B &

BEBERZBA
BETILETS
BB CBARE -



50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the
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50. I EAEKREEBERBEE (&)

50.9 REAHMBRRRBEZ AT

consolidated statement of financial position BT & (450
(Continued) : \
The financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair REMBRRKRNAFEFEZS

value in the consolidated statement of financial position are

REERSBRABEI RATRFE

grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: B
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ FH F=H @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT BT THT
2020 k- Jang 33
Assets BE
Due from bank - precious metal  ERRTHIE-EEE = 130,055 = 130,055
Trading portfolio investments ~ X Z#E KA 23,028 31,164 26,118 80,310
Derivative financial assets TEERMBE = 29,224 = 29,224
Financial assets at fair BATEFAELEZE
value through other WAZ&RAE
comprehensive income 464,843 5,951 - 470,794
487,871 196,394 26,118 710,383
Liabilities =L
Due to clients - precious metal BN EFHE-EEE = 130,119 = 130,119
Derivative financial liabilities TEEmEE = 31,334 = 31,334
- 161,453 - 161,453
2019 “E-hE
Assets BE
Due from bank - precious metal  [ERFTHIE-EEE - 56,935 - 56,935
Trading portfolio investments ~ X Z#E KA 147,349 33,796 46,758 227,903
Derivative financial assets TEEREE - 10,275 - 10,275
Financial assets at fair BAFEFAELEZE
value through other WAZ &REE
comprehensive income 417,256 5,605 - 422,861
564,605 106,611 46,758 717,974
Liabilities =L
Due to clients - precious metal  ENEFPHIE-EEE - 56,762 - 56,762
Derivative financial liabilities etz y =V = 54,788 = 54,788

- 111,550 - 111,550
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. KREKREEBEZEREE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

50.9 RiRE M BRRRBEZ DT

50.9 Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

There have been no significant transfers between Levels 1
and 2 in the reporting period.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
assets and financial liabilities are categorised in its entirely is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement.

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose
of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the
previous reporting periods.

The fair value of unlisted investment funds classified as
trading securities is Level 3 recurring fair value measurement.
A reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value
balances are provided as below.

EFE ()

R|ERAN  BE—RNE R ZHE
W B AR

TREENEBRAGBEEMBEALZ
R EERRR - TDERERFE
AAEBEAZZEEREARES
4 e

STERFEMA AR H T AR
NEREHRER -

DEABEERSFNIIELTREES
AT ERBE =R AT ER
= O RBARAFEERHEER
AT o

2020 2019
—EC-FF | ZFNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Opening balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) Ei#14& 8 (B =REFHER
FEFE) 46,758 -
Acquisition Wi - 47,048
Fair value change during the year FAR T EZE (23,457) (1,172)
Exchange realignment M 5 8 2,817 882
Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) HiR#E &k (B =L EHER
FEFE) 26,118 46,758
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51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 51. BIEMRRE
2020 2019
—E-BHF —E-NEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FBT FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB R 18,956 37,967
Interests in subsidiaries Fr{b B B A 7] Z #E z% 2,200,286 2,182,132
Financial asset at fair value through R AFEFAEMEENRA Z
other comprehensive income CRLEE 288,142 243,930
2,507,384 2,464,029
Current assets REEE
Other assets HEMEE 61,413 62,415
Trading portfolio investments ROGBERE 293 57,466
Cash and deposits e RIFHR 114,218 26,441
175,924 146,322
Current liabilities REBEE
Other liabilities HEigE 44,291 36,379
Borrowings BE 1,125,028 1,329,114
Lease liabilities HEEAE 18,569 17,665
Due to a shareholder JE —RARER 2 BUIA 12,000 12,000
1,199,888 1,395,158
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (1,023,964) (1,248,836)
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERRBEERE 1,483,420 1,215,193
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 767 19,336
Net assets EEFE 1,482,653 1,195,857
EQUITY i
Share capital [N 41 435,189 435,189
Reserves ke 42 1,047,464 760,668
Total equity EREE 1,482,653 1,195,857

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved ~ARRITBRARKNR T - —F=A=+HE
and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company AR R EEFHERKETE  WHIATES

on 30 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: REREZE:
Hon Kwok Lung Shang Jianguang
BEIE [k %0
Director Director

EF EF
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SUBSIDIARIES

52. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL

TSR A E R B AR A A

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of which is a limited

liability company are as follows:

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/

52. ZEMEAREH
TEMBAR (BABRAR)FHENT :

Effective percentage of equity  Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company  place of business
B AR/ SRS BRT/MRRARE  AOIFEREZEREAL IEXRRITEEME
2020 2019
—E-2E | —TNF
Directly held:
ERHE
Qingapen Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment, PRC
BEREARAA BB 2ET RPERENZ
China Haidian Commercial Network Services  Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment, PRC
Limited
hEERERARREERAA Bk 2B RPERENR
Haidian-Creation International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
("BVI")
RERAES 157 RERRAER
(REExEE])
Sure Best Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
B EERAH & 17T RERRAER
Jia Cheng Investment Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
ERRABRAF RERAES 157 REEREER
Citychamp Watch and Jewellery SwissCoAG ~ Switzerland CHF100,000 100% 100%  Issuance of bonds, Switzerland
it 10,0003 /%56 RELETES
Bendura Bank AG Liechtenstein CHF20,000,000 85.44% 85.22%  Assets management, accepting
client deposits, making investment
and granting loans, Liechtenstein
ERETRNERLR flxHtE 20,000,005 1% XA EERAE  EREFR
o RERBHESR
Shun Heng Finance Holding (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 60% 60%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited
EFRBIR(ER) ARAA B 50,000,000/%7C RERRARR
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52. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 52. FEMBRARAER &)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/ ~ Effective percentage of equity  Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
£ HRAY/AMeE  ERT/ARKRARE ARAFBRECERASL  FEERRIEEERY
2020 2019
“ECEE | ZENE
Incliectly held:
BRFE -

EBOHR Luxuries International Co., Limited PRC HK$116,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and distribution of
(note a) watches and timepieces, PRC
xR (R AR AR (fiza) e 116,000,000 72 RPEIRE R 7 HEE RS Em

Shenzhen EBOHR Luxuries Online PRC RMB19,000,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
E-commerce Company Limited (note b) timepieces, PRC
TR ERERETERERAR i AE%19,000,0007 RABEDHEER LB ER
(HzEb)
Actor Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
ZEREERAA B 10,0007t REBREER
Zhuhai Rossini Watch Industry Limited (note d) ~ PRC RMB180,000,000 91% 91%  Manufacture and distribution of
watches and timepieces, PRC
KSBRRRERRAR (Hd) i AR 180,000,000 RPBIRE R 7 HER RS Em
PAMA Precision Manufacturing Limited PRC RMB11,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and distribution of
(note b) watches and timepieces, PRC
AmAEEREEARAR (Hb) HE AR 11,000,00070 RPBIRE R A HEE R ER
Shenzhen Permanence Commerce Co., PRC RMB23,000,000 91% 91%  Distribution of watches and
Limited (note b) timepieces, PRC
#mEEERES8RAR (i) e AR 23,0000007C RABEDEERREER
Zhuhai Rossini Glasses Industry Limited PRC RMB1,000,000 91% 91%  Distribution of glasses, PRC
(note b)
KBERRRERRAR (Hzb) HE AR1,000,00070 RPEDHERE
Sino Swiss Clock & Watch Technology Limited ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 91% 9%  Provision of services in watch
(note b) maintenance and repairment and
technical advisory, PRC
i (5%8) EER AR AR (Mzb) i ARES5,000,00070 RAEREEFEE R ARE
Eterna AG Uhrenfabrik Switzerland CHF6,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and distribution
of watches and timepieces,
Switzerland
Wt 6,000,000 T8 R TRERAHERRETER
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52. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

TSR A E R B AR A A

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/

52. FEMBATRIER (®)

Effective percentage of equity

Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
8 HRAL/AMeE  ERT/ARRARE ALAFBRECERESL  FEERRITEERY
2020 2019
ceoeE | s
Indliectly held: (Continued)
BREE - (Z
Eterna Movement AG Switzerland CHF1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and distribution
of watches and timepieces,
Switzerland
Wt 1,000,00055 L85 R TRERAHEERF T ER
Guangdong Juxin Watch Co., Limited (note d)  PRC RMB15,000,000 51% 51%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, PRC
EREFEREHERAR (HiEd) HE AR 15,000,000 RAE D HER R Em
Liaoning Hengjia Horologe Co., Limited PRC RMB25,500,000 51% 51%  Distribution of watches and
(note d) timepieces, PRC
EEERERARAR (Mid) HE AR 25,500,000 RPE D HER R Em
Guangzhou Five Goat Watch Co., Limited PRC RMB100,000,000 74.1% 74.1%  Manufacture and distribution of
(note b) watches and timepieces, PRC
BNRERERB AR (Hib) HE AR 100,000,000 RPBIRE R 7 HEE R ER
Eterna (Asia) Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 70% 70%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Hong Kong
BEE(TM) 5RAR Bk 5,000,000 REED HER LR ER
Centenaire Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd PRC RMB4,550,000 70% 70%  Distribution of watches and
(note a) timepieces, PRC
ZRRRES (LB)ARAR (Fza) HE AR 4550,00070 KBS HER R ER
Etema (Beijing) Intemational Trading Co., Ltd ~ PRC RMB1,000,000 70% 70%  Distribution of watches and
(note b) timepieces, PRC
BEE (R ERESBRAR (fib) HE ARE1,000,00070 RPEDHER R ER
Jilin Dayou Watch Limited (note d) PRC RMB15,000,000 51% 51%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, PRC
EMAEERBR AR (M) HE AR 15,000,007 RPED HER RFER
Montres Corum Sarl Switzerland CHF3,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture, and distribution
of watches and timepieces,
Switzerland
Wt 3,000,000 T8 Rt RERAHERRETER
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52. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 52. TEMBLARER (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/ ~ Effective percentage of equity  Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
BB AfEY/MEE  BRO/MERARE ANAFERECERESL TEEBRITEXHY
2020 2019
ceoeE | R
Indliectly held: (Continuec)
FERE (&
Montres Corum (UK) Ltd. United Kingdom (BP3,383,424 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United Kingdom
B 3383424 5% REAA HERREER
Corum Italia SRL Italy EUR10,400 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Italy
EAH 1040087 REANAHERREHER
Montres Corum Europe SA Switzerland CHF100,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Switzerland
it 100,000 L% Wt HERRAER
Servicio de Importacion SA Spain EUR739,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Spain
[i]¥3 739,008 A7 BRI Em
Corum Deutschland GmbH Germany EUR200,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Germany
{28 20,0008 70 REBAHBRRETER
Corum (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, Hong Kong
Bk 100087 REED HERRE T ER
The Dreyfuss Group Limited United Kingdom GBP 221,541 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United Kingdom
i 20154155 READ HERRB G ER
Rotary Overseas Limited United Kingdom (GBP 1,000,000 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United Kingdom
i 1,000,000 %4 READ HERRB T Em
Artemis Watch Company Limited United Kingdom GBP 100 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United Kingdom
G 100£4 READ HERRE G ER
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52. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/

52. FEMBATRIER (®)

Effective percentage of equity

Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
£ AT/ AMEE  BRO/MERARE ANAFERECERESL TEEBRITEXHY
2020 2019
ceoeE | s
Indliectly held: (Continued)
FEHE (&
Rotary Watches LLC United States of America  US$10 100% 100%  Distribution of watches and
timepieces, United States of
America
3 10%7 REREDHEERBER
Dreyfuss & Co SA Switzerland CHF 100,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of watches and
timepieces, Switzerland
it 100,003 %56 NetREERREER
Fabrique de Moritres Rotary S.A Switzerland CHF 1,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and distribution
of watches and timepieces,
Switzerland
it 1,000,000%% T8 RetRERDEERRNHER
Bendura Fund Management Alpha AG Liechtenstein CHF1,500,000 85.44% 85.22%  Providing investment counselling,
acting as technical administrator
of fund units, acting as a fund
management company and acting
as an altemative investment fund
manager Liechtenstein
fIXHtE 1,500,005 T8 NI BLBREHRARN LR
SBfIzRMERE REEESE
BRAREERBRELCHE
Bendura Fund Management Beta AG Liechtenstein CHF1,500,000 85.44% 85.22%  Providing investment counselling,

e s 1,500,003 %5

acting as technical administrator
of fund units, acting as a fund
management company and acting
as an alternative investment fund
manager, Liechtenstein

NI BLBREHRARN R
SEN/RIERR REZEE
BRRREESBREZ R
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52. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 52. FEMBARIER (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued/ ~ Effective percentage of equity  Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
£ EMAL/EMEE  ERT/MERAEE ALRDFEREZERASL FEEBRITEEND
2020 2019
sgzer | ST

Indliectly held: (Continuec)
BREE - (%

VFM Mutual Fund AG Liechtenstein CHF 500,000 85.44% 85.22%  Managing a particular fund as
general partner, Liechtenstein
e 50,0003 188 RIXBLEEA-RABAEE-

R ES

LFM ALPHA SOLUTIONS AGmvk Liechtenstein CHF50,000 85.44% 85.22%  Provision of asset investment and
management services for qualified
investors, Liechtenstein

G ALTE 50,0005 L% RIIRH L EMa A RREZRME
ERERERRY
Metasequoia Capital Hong Kong HK$800,000 60% 60%  Provision of asset management
services, Hong Kong
KPAE & 800,000/ REBREEERERK
Shun Heng Hong Kong HK$26,380,000 60% 60%  Dealing and advising in securities,
Hong Kong
(=5 BB 26,380,000/ T REBETEFR S RBRRS
Metasequoria Investment Fund SPC - Global  Cayman Islands 1S$10,000,000 - 44.83%  Investment fund, Cayman Islands
Opportunities Fund SP
REHE 10,000,000% 7 RAEHBIREES
Ernest Borel Holdings Limited Cayman lsland HK$3,474,000 64.08% 64.08%  Investment holding, Hong Kong

FREERARAT REHE 34740007 T RERRAER
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52. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 52. FEMBLARER (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Effective percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/ Principal activities and principal

Name registration paid-up capital interest held by the Company place of business
£ AT/ AMEE  BRO/MERARE ANAFERECERESL TEEBRITEXHY
2020 2019
ceoeE | s
Indliectly held: (Continued)
FEHE (&
Boillat Les Bois S.A. Switzerland CHF100,000 64.08% 64.08%  Development, manufacturing and
marketing of watches, Switzerland
it 100,003 1748 MR RERERER
Ermest Borel S.A. Switzerland CHF100,000 64.08% 64.08%  Manufacturing and trading of
watches, Switzerland
it 10,0003 188 NetREREEER
Ernest Borel (Far East) Company Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000 64.08% 64.08%  Assembling and sales of watches,
Hong Kong
KR (ER) BR AR BB 20,0007 REBRERHEER
Emest Borel (Guangzhou) Trading Co., Ltd PRC RMB20,000,000 64.08% 64.08%  Distribution and sales of watches,
PRC
kiR (BM) B 5ERAR I AR 20,000,000 RPENHRHEEER
Emest Borel (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 64.08% 64.08%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
KIS (B78) BB A BB 1000737 REBRERR
Ernest Borel Watch Company Limited BVI Us$100 64.08% 64.08%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
RERAES 100X REBRERR
Swissmount Holdings Limited BVI Us$100 64.08% 64.08%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
RERAEE 100X REBRERER




52. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, results in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year.

Notes:

(a) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises
under the law of PRC.

(b) These subsidiaries are registered as limited liability companies under
the law of PRC.

(c) This subsidiary is registered as foreign joint venture under the law of
PRC.

(d)  These subsidiaries are registered as sino-foreign joint ventures under
the law of PRC.

ZT-TFFH 2020 Annual Report

52. FEMBARIER (&)

ERFINEERABEIZZEREHRFE
ZEBEABRARBEEFEEAND 2
ARBIMBAR - EFRS  #FIEALH
BRAZEMBESHERAERNBRILE -

MENB R RN FRBITEMNEBES

@ HEMBRARETBEARELRING
BEMLE-

b ZEWBADRBFEEETEAER
A
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Bz
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52. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

52. FEMBATRIER (®)

TXEIMEASEARE LA RE TS
BEAZFERER B RANBE

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the
subsidiaries that had non-controlling interests which is material to

the Group, before any elimination. BHREZE o
Zhuhai Rossini Watch
Ernest Borel Group Bendura Bank AG Industry Limited
RRHEE EHBTRAERAR KEEARKXARLT
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
CRCRE | CTNF | CFCRE | ZTNF | CBCRE | ZTOR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAL TERT THEL TR TETL
Summarised statement of BRRREHE
financial position
As at 31 December R+t=A=1-8
Effective non-controlling BERFEREGA DL
interests percentage 35.92% 35.92% 14.56% 14.78% 9% 9%
Assets BE 468,149 474,848 | 15,051,728 | 13,099,804 1,333,248 1,494,686
Liabilities a8 (317,462) (274,408) | (14,146,343) | (12,185,082) (352,681) (345,176)
Net assets AELFE 150,687 200440 | 905,385 914722 | 980,567 | 1,149,510
Accumulated non-controlling Rt FERER
interests 71416 70,017 117,692 142,934 75,266 92,415
Summarised statement of EARAREE
comprehensive income
For the year ended BET-B=t-HL%FE
31 December
Revenue Wi 122,596 141,518 347,534 453,253 582,452 937,152
(Loss)/profit before income tax ~ FRFT/EHLAT (548) /&7 (13,799) (74,895) 822 171,603 75,781 210,218
Other comprehensive income At 2ERA 11,140 2,217 78,210 (309) - -
Total comprehensive income 2HARAAE 3,893 (72,618) 75,094 146,827 62,174 177,765
(Loss)/profit allocated to PREFERER 2
non-controlling interests (&8) /%7 1,398 (26,084) 10,936 2,217 5,596 15,999
Dividends paid to AFEREREAZRE
non-controlling interests - - 11,677 13,981 27,085 15,470
Summarised statement of cash ~ BE&HERLE
flows
For the year ended BET-B=1-HLEE
31 December
Cash flows (used in)/generated BELE(FR) /EEL
from operating activities Bene (22,040) 11,999 | 1,013,062 | (2,646,025) 186,537 205,028
Cash flows(used in)/generated R EEE) (Fif) /ELZ
from investing activities BenE (5,721) 8,891 (149,982) (316,063) (87,066) (56,946)
Cash flows generated from/ BEEBEL/ (FiA)
(used in) financing activities RERE 25,838 (32,908) (84,433) (94,444) (232,307) (115,152)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BEHN/ (Rilh) F8 (1,923) (12,018) 718,647 (3,056,532) (132,836) 32,930




53.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 16 December 2020, the Company entered into the sale
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to sell, and the purchaser has conditionally
agreed to acquire, the sale shares and the sale loans of the
following Companies (the “Transaction”):

— International Volant Limited;

— EB Brand Limited;

- Jia Cheng Investment Limited;

- Joyful Surplus International Limited;

- Sharptech International Limited;

- Unique Leader Limited; and

- Sure Best Management Limited.

Details of the Transaction are set out in the Company'’s
announcement dated 16 December 2020 and 25 March 2021

and circular dated 25 February 2021. The Transaction was not yet
completed up to the date of issue of this report.

Except for abovementioned, there were no material events
occurred after the financial report date.

53.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEMBERREE

AEBHE_ZT_TFT _A=T—HLFE
FMBENFZ B TEEE KM AR EHT
AT o e B AR EAZ I T HRR 2 — AP

A summary of the published results and financial position of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the last four years is set
out below. This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

e

MBRE

Year ended 31 December

HET-A=+-HLFE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
22 | ZE-NFE ZE-N\§ ZE+F CZTR#F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THBT THL TAT THT
Net interest income from banking RITEBZFS
business Loz 128,028 183,462 180,831 94,992 17,983
Net service fees and commission RIIEBLRBEER
income from banking business BeFE 196,994 212,561 236,361 212,616 72,595
Trading income from banking RITEBZRHPA
business 21,702 57,230 63,172 65,227 18,902
Service fees and commission income £ BERZREE R
from financial business e ON 10,721 3,195 3,342 9,307 -
Interest income from financial SREBLFBBA
business 184 165 193 128 -
Sales of goods from non-bankingand  FESR{TRERER Z
financial businesses EmHEWA 1,405,812 2,249,737 2,444 364 2,583,495 2,811,352
Rental income from non-bankingand ~ JER1TRERBMERZ
financial businesses HeWA 11,108 9,915 9,586 16,936 19,123
Total revenue TGN 1,774,549 2,716,265 2,937,849 2,982,701 2,939,955
Cost of sales from non-banking and ~ FERITREBMEB
financial businesses HEKR (647,405) |  (1,004,030)  (1,022,568) (1,226,494  (1,296,518)
Other income and other net Hi A R H At
gains or losses Wik B8 558 98,333 104,393 79,486 1,300,392 63,165
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (550,428) (817,889 (849,551) (800,923) (841,444)
Administrative expenses THE R (728,432) (777,114) (737,985) (774,011) (648,477)
Share of loss of joint ventures BIEAECEER (494) (1,343) (2,678) (1,159) =
Share of profit of associates (G S DR A 3,180 17,675 8,387 20,711 23,134
Finance costs from non-banking FROIEBZHBER
business (82,956) (95,320 (65,828) (68,453) (79,447)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETEH AT (B]) /=7 (133,653) 142,637 347,112 1,432,764 160,368
Income tax expense Fre R % (25,176) (71,456) (105,664) (221,566) (96,528)
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (BR) /&7 (158,829) 71,181 241,448 1,211,198 63,840




FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)

T -_TFFIR

Bt # R IB ()

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2020 Annual Report

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“EZEE | —ZT-NEFE —E-N\E& —E—t+tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT THEL THAT THRT
Other comprehensive income Hit2EWA
Item that will not be subsequently TERARENDEE
reclassified to profit or loss M EEZEE
- Remeasurement of net defined — B EEEEN
benefit obligations EAFE 3,646 2,490 33,025 15,186 14,368
- Change in fair value of financial —RATEF A EAM
assets at fair value through ZHEAZER
other comprehensive income BENTES 47,933 (204,233) (123,352) = =
- Revaluation gain upon transfer ~RERLBRET
of owner occupied land BRERENER
and buildings to investment Z Efblh
properties - - 57,128 - =
- Deferred tax arising from -KERLHREF
transfer of owner occupied land ERERENE
and buildings to investment EEZBERIA
properties - = (22,212) = =
ltems that may be subsequently R AR EH A EE
reclassified to profit or loss AR ERZIEE
— Exchange differences on ~BREZ5EE
translation to presentation EXER
currency 279,862 (91,282) (162,086) 233,906 (226,038)
— Release of exchange reserve to ~REEMRBREE
profit or loss upon disposal of RIRINEREE
subsidiaries S Fls e R (405) = = (2,809) 4,701
- Share of exchange differenceson ~ —E(REFE N FIE K
translation of associates =2 (490) (108) (117) 96 (112)
— Changes in fair value of —ARHEEREE
available-for-sale financial ATEE
assets - = = (5,041) (75,210)
278,967 (91,390) (162,203) 226,152 (296,659)
Other comprehensive income for ~ AEEEMAEIRA
the year 330,546 (293,133) (217,614) 241,338 (282,291)
Total comprehensive income for AEERERALE
the year 171,717 (221,952) 23,834 1,452,536 (218,451)
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued)

BB RER (&)

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-EF | _Z-NF 2 )\& C"E—+F C"EZRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT THT TAT THT

(Loss)/profit for the year RTATEEREE

attributable to: (B58) /BH

Owners of the Company V/NGIEZZEDN (169,233) 44,246 201,372 1,170,484 36,703
Non-controlling interests FE R R 10,404 26,935 40,076 40,714 27,137
(158,829) 71,181 241,448 1,211,198 63,840

Total comprehensive income for UFATEEREE

the year attributable to: ELON L
Owners of the Company ARBERA 164,456 (243,713) (9,083) 1,395,850 (227,203)
Non-controlling interests R R 7,261 21,761 32,917 56,686 8,752
171,717 (221,952) 23,834 1,452,536 (218,451)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING EE BERIIFEERRERS
INTERESTS
Year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=+—HLFE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
RoRE | CBAE O ENF B tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THx THEL FHET THx
Total assets BEE 21,385,195 19,597,081 20,258,229 21,855,671 17,255,820
Total liabilities mafr (16,648,968) | (14,936,192)  (15,448,738)  (16,707,545)  (13,403,130)
Non-controlling interests IR (317,548) (405,817) (369,700) (343,245) (219,809)
4,418,679 4,255,072 4,439,791 4,804,881 3,632,881
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FEREYEMR

Group interest  Use Tenure
Description E3 SEERz BAR FH
Flat B, 21st Floor, Jolly Villa BB AIBE 8 100%  Residential Medium term lease
No. 8 Tai Hang Road MBH211EBER = FHRFE 4
Hong Kong and Car parking space [l — &5 A
No. 32 on 3rd Floor of 32325k E L
the same building
Industrial Complex I AR KM 100%  Industrial/Residential Medium term lease
including Dormitories in the (MR El) I% /% R HAAE 4
Sixth Industrial Zone ERER=m
Houjie Town A
Dongguan County ENIXEIH
Guangdong Province A AE
The People’s Republic of China (BEES)
(the "PRC")
2nd Lower Ground Level H 100%  Commercial Medium term lease
Jin Hua Building BRE#IH EES FEATE A
Yan He South Road il
Luohu District ] B
Shenzhen BIERE
Guangdong Province ENE=E
The PRC
Shops at Street Nos. 13, 14 and 15 # 100%  Commercial Medium term lease
New City Centre Plaza Garden BERAEIREM [EES R HAAE 4
Nos. 459, 461 and 463 BER
Xiang Hua Road 459 - 461 [ 46357
Zhuhai City T RO IEE
Guangdong Province P& 13 14 R 155
The PRC
Office B, 7th Floor F 100%  Commercial Short term lease
No. 78, Nanguan Road &5 LA & [EES R
Shenhe District, Shenyang City FI R 78 5%
The PRC TERBEMRAE
No. 1004, Block B H 100%  Commercial Long term lease
Xinnengyuan Building BERERYIm [EES REATEAY
Nanhai Avenue, Nanshan District L EREERE
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province R 8L IR K B B 2 1004 5%
The PRC
Nos. 203, 204, 205, ] 100% Residential Medium term lease
206, 208, BRE R EE hERD
Building 16, Dengliang Garden Al B R B
Dengliang Road, Nanshan District & R {EE 164%
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province 203 + 204 ~ 205 -

The PRC

206 - 2085
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TSR A E R B AR A A

Group interest  Use Tenure
Description =3 SERERz RAZ FH
Nos. 228, 229, 230, 231, A 100%  Residential Medium term lease
232, 233, 234, 235, BRARIH Fx RETE A
236,237, MR ILAE
Building A, Lifang Village T AR

Nanshan Avenue, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province
The PRC

228 - 229 + 230~ 231 »
232233234235+
236~ 2375%




CITYCHAMP

WATCH & JEWELLERY GROUP LIMITED
BHERKESEEBRA T

B Units 1902 — 04, Level 19
M AIEYE 1 5% International Commerce Centre
IRIKY 7 5 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon
19 ## 1902-04 = Hong Kong

www.citychampwj.com
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